
Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes Book 
 

Tuesday 17 October 2017 
  

 
  



Page 2 

 

  
Minutes of Cabinet and Committees 

 

July – October 2017 
 

Meeting Date Page Nos. Chairman (Cllr) 

Cabinet 

Cabinet 12 September 2017 5 - 18 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Cabinet 10 October 2017 To Follow Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Overview and Scrutiny Select Committees 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26 September 2017 19 - 24 Graham Wright 

Children's Select Committee 5 September 2017 25 - 38 Jon Hubbard 

Environment Select Committee 19 September 2017 39 - 48 Matthew Dean 

Health Select Committee 27 June 2017 49 - 52 Christine Crisp 

Regulatory Committees 

Strategic Planning Committee 19 July 2017 53 - 72 Fleur de Rhé-
Phillipe 

Strategic Planning Committee 13 September 2017 73 - 92 Fleur de Rhé-
Phillipe 

Northern Area Planning Committee 12 July 2017 93 - 120 Tony Trotman  

Northern Area Planning Committee 9 August 2017 121 - 130 Tony Trotman 

Northern Area Planning Committee 6 September 2017 131 - 144 Tony Trotman 

Eastern Area Planning Committee 5 October 2017 145 - 148 Mark Connolly 

Southern Area Planning Committee 29 June 2017 149 - 160 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Southern Area Planning Committee 24 August 2017 161 - 178 Fred 
Westmoreland 

Western Area Planning Committee 28 June 2017 179 - 196 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 26 July 2017 197 - 212 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 23 August 2017 213 - 230 Christopher 
Newbury 

Western Area Planning Committee 20 September 2017 231 - 238 Christopher 
Newbury 

Joint Committees 

Health and Wellbeing Board 18 May 2017 239 - 246 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 



Page 3 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 13 July 2017 247 - 254 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Local Pension Board 13 July 2017 255 - 264 Mr Howard 
Pearce 

Joint Strategic Economic Committee 28 June 2017 265 - 270 David Renard 
(SBC) 

Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee 28 June 2017 271 - 278 Tony Deane 

Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel 29 June 2017 279 - 284 Richard Britton 

Other Committees 

Audit Committee 26 July 2017 285 - 290 Richard Britton 

Officer Appointments Committee 13 July 2017 291 - 292 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointments Committee 2 August 2017 293 - 294 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Officer Appointments Committee 3 August 2017 295 - 296 Baroness Scott 
of Bybrook OBE 

Staffing Policy Committee 5 July 2017 297 - 300 Allison Bucknell 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 

Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority 27 June 2017 301 - 308 Spencer Flower 
(East Dorset) 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 

CABINET 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 12 SEPTEMBER 2017 
AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice 
Chairman), Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Bridget Wayman, 
Cllr Philip Whitehead and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Pauline Church, Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Jane Davies, Cllr Tony 
Deane, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr Richard Gamble, Cllr Darren Henry, Cllr Alan Hill, 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Atiqul Hoque, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr 
Johnny Kidney, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Horace 
Prickett, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Ian Thorn, 
Cllr Tony Trotman, Cllr Philip Whalley, Cllr Stuart Wheeler, Cllr Roy While and Cllr 
Graham Wright 
  

 
102 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cabinet Members Chuck Berry and Laura Mayes. 
Councillor Jon Hubbard, Chair of the Childrens’ Select Committee also gave his 
apologies. 
 

103 Minutes of the previous meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 3 July 2017 
 

104 Minutes - Capital Assets Committee 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2017 
 

105 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
106 Leader's announcements 

 
The Leader made the following announcements: 
 
That the route for the £1.6 billion Stonehenge Tunnel, a key part of the ‘South 

West expressway’, had today been published by Transport Secretary Chris 

Grayling.  It was noted that this ‘expressway’ would upgrade this key route and 

improve journey times for millions of people.  

  

Furthermore that this major investment would support economic growth and 

tourism in an area where congestion and slow journeys have long had a 

negative impact on the  economy.  The tunnel at Stonehenge would remove the 

traffic blight on local communities such as Shrewton and  reconnect the two 

halves of the 6,500 acre World Heritage Site which is currently split by the road. 

  

The Leader welcomed the announcement of the Preferred Route, and stated 

that the council would continue to work with government and all its partners and 

local communities to deliver this major improvement scheme. 

 

107 Public participation and Questions from Councillors 
 
The Leader explained her approach to public participation and stated that she 
would take any representations under the item to which it related. 
 

108 Performance Management and Risk Outturn Report: Q1 2017/18 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which provided an update on 
the progress against the stated aims in the council’s Business Plan. It also 
included measures and activities reported on the Citizens’ Dashboard and other 
key measures, as well as the latest version of the council’s strategic risk 
register. The report covered the period April to June 2017. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Whitehead highlighted the areas of good 
performance and those that required some attention; he also explained the new 
approach to the classification of risk that it was hoped would enable better 
ownership of higher risk areas. 
 
Councillor Whitehead expressed his significant concern as to the negative 
impact on the Wiltshire and Swindon arising from  the unduly negative picture 
painted by the recent Channel 4 programme following police in the area.  
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note updates and outturns 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. Against the measures and activities ascribed against the council’s 
key outcomes; and 
 

2. To the strategic risk register. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 
The current performance framework compiles and monitors outturns in relation 
to the outcomes laid out in Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan 2013-17. The 
framework is distilled from individual services’ delivery plans. In doing so, it 
captures the main focus of activities of the council against each outcome. 
The strategic risk register captures and monitors significant risks facing the 
council: in relation to significant in-service risks facing individual areas, in 
managing its business across the authority generally and in assuring our 
preparedness should a national risk event occur. 
 

109 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring report 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which advised members of the 
revenue and capital budget monitoring position as at the end of period 4 (end of 
July 2017) for the financial year 2017/2018 with suggested actions as 
appropriate; informed Cabinet on the position of the 2017/2018 capital 
programme, as at Period 4 (31 July 2017), including highlighting budget 
changes. It was noted that the report was the first combined revenue and 
capital report. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that a £4.4m overspend was currently predicted, but that this was lower than the 
predicted overspend of £10m at the same time last year which itself was 
addressed by management actions; whether it was possible to do more to 
financially plan for unpredicted events; and that sometimes decisions are made 
in year, for the right reasons, that have a negative impact on the budget 
previously planned for. 
 
Following a short debate, it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
to note the outcome of the period 4 (end of July) budget monitoring and to 
approve all budget amendments outlined in the report. 
 
To note the budget movements undertaken to the capital programme 
shown in appendices D and E and to also note the reprogramming of the 
capital £23.620 million between 2017/2018 and 2018/2019. 
 
Reasons for Decision: 
 
To inform effective decision making and ensure a sound financial control 
environment. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

To inform Cabinet of the position of the 2017/2018 capital programme as at 
Period 4 (31 July 2017), including highlighting any budget changes 
 

110 Treasury Management Report Quarter 1 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which summarised the annual 
performance against the agreed Treasury Management Strategy. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Councillor Whitehead 
stated that he would be happy for future Treasury Management reports to be 
considered by the Financial Planning Task Group if they so wished. 
 
Resolved 
 
to note that the contents of this report are in line with the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To give members an opportunity to consider the performance of the Council in 
the period to the end of the quarter against the parameters set out in the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/2018. 
 

111 Business Rates Discretionary Relief Scheme 
 
Councillor Philip Whitehead presented the report which sought agreement on 
proposals to amend the Business Rate Discretionary Relief Policy in order to 
award additional funding to those ratepayers who are facing an increase in their 
bills following revaluation with effect from April 2017. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the scheme had no impact on discretionary relief for village halls; how the 
scheme was designed so that chain establishments did not benefit; and the 
number of establishments that would be positively affected. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree changes to the discretionary rate reduction scheme set out at 
section 6 of this report, with effect from April 2017. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
On 8 March 2017 the Chancellor announced that new schemes of relief would 
be made available to those ratepayers facing large increases as a result of 
revaluation. He set out three schemes and how they would be funded over four 
years from 2017/18. The Chancellor stated that local government is best placed 
to determine how this fund should be targeted and administered to support 
those businesses that are in greatest need. 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
This report explains the three schemes, how they will integrate with the existing 
discretionary rate relief schemes and how the schemes are funded. The report 
goes onto explain the criteria for awarding the reliefs, the process to ensure the 
‘best-buy’ for the customer and how those funds will be directed. 
 
The Government’s intention is that every billing authority in England will identify 
recipients of the new reliefs and be provided with a share of the £300 million to 
support their local businesses and will be administered through existing 
discretionary relief powers under section 47 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1988. The proposal sets out the criteria and process by which new relief will 
be awarded. 
 

112 Impact of Adult Care Charging Policy 
 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which had been prepared to 
provide the Cabinet with an update on the implementation and impact of the 
Adult Care Charging Policy (the charging policy) which came into effect in 
August 2016, including the Council’s response to the report commissioned from 
Healthwatch into the impact of the implementation of the Charging Policy. The 
report also provided a summary of the actual and projected financial impact of 
this new policy based on data collected between August 2016 and the 
beginning of July 2017. 
 
Councillor Wickham also introduced Sandie Lewis from Healthwatch Wiltshire to 
provide further information on the work undertaken on the matter. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Wickham highlighted the issues that were 
identified with the implementation of the policy, the changes made following its 
review, and stated that he had apologised the people who had been affected by 
the changes.  
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and debate included: how 
the Health Select Committee had been involved in the matter; that the Council 
had been successful in helping clients maximise the benefits they were entitled 
to; and that the lessons learnt from the review of the implementation of the 
policy were being shared in other areas of the council’s work. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the implementation of the new Charging Policy; Healthwatch 
Wiltshire’s review of the implementation; and the actions taken by the 
Council in respect of that review. 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
This paper has been prepared for the Cabinet following the recommendation of 
the Health Select Committee. 
 

113 Integrated Urgent Care Procurement 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which provided an update on the 
joint procurement process between Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG, in 
partnership with B&NES CCG and Swindon CCG for integrated urgent care 
services; and asked Cabinet to delegate the authority to award the contract. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
a) To note the update of the joint commissioning exercise with Wiltshire 

Council and Wiltshire CCG, in partnership with B&NES CCG and 
Swindon CCG, of urgent care services. 
 

b) To delegate the authority, in relation to the services being 
commissioned by Wiltshire Council (as set out in paragraph 13 
below): 

 
i.  To approve the terms of the contract and all associated 

documents within the parameters set out in this report; and 
 

ii.  To award and enter into the contract and all associated 
documents, to the Corporate Director for Adult Social Care in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for or Health (including 
Public Health) and Adult Social Care. 

 
114 User Engagement with Adult Care 

 
Councillor Jerry Wickham presented the report which informed the Cabinet of 
current contract and funding arrangements that the Council has with User Led 
Organisations and Healthwatch Wiltshire to engage with customers on adult 
care services; and sought the Cabinet’s view of the options set out below to 
commission the statutory Healthwatch function and the non-statutory customer 
engagement functions provided by User Led Organisations (ULOs) and to 
agree an option. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Wickham gave a summary of the position of 
the contracts, the views expressed by the ULOs, and stated that he wished the 
matter to be deferred to enable further constructive discussion with partners so 
that an approach could be agreed. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Clare Evans MBE, Chair of the Wiltshire Centre 
for Independent Living, addressed the meeting and stated that: the valuable 
work of the ULOs had given the disabled communities the confidence to make 
their views known, and in doing so, worked with the council over a number of 
years to improve policy and practice. Furthermore, she stressed the ULOs 
commitment to working with the council recognising the need to address 
financial constraints. 
 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Crisp, Chair of the Health Select Committee, gave an overview of the 
debate previously held on the matter, and stated that the Committee broadly 
welcomed the further opportunity given to the ULOs to discuss the matter with 
the council and its partners. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To defer consideration of the item until the November 2017 meeting of 

Cabinet on the proviso that constructive dialogue takes place between 
commissioners in both Wiltshire Council and Wiltshire CCG together 
with the three User-Led Organisations (ULOs); and  
 

2. That the current contract is extended until 1 June 2018 and the 
specification for the new arrangements are developed in readiness for 
a tender to be issued in late November 2017 

 
Reason for Decision 
 
Commissioners recognise that there is scope to remove duplication and that are 
several activities currently funded in contracts that could be removed from 
future service specifications to achieve savings and provide a more focused 
service. 
 

115 Freehold of asset to be sold 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which asked Cabinet to declare 
that freehold interest of the 5 assets could be sold by the Council. 
 
In response to representations from Councillor Stewart Dobson, Councillor 
Mervyn Hall – Mayor of Marlborough, and Ian Mellor – from the Marlborough 
Area Neighbourhood Plan Group, it was agreed that the decision to delegate 
authority to dispose of Site 2, St Peter’s School, would be subject to officers 
working with the local community to develop guidance for potential developers 
of the site. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, it was confirmed that none 
of the assets under consideration for disposal were on the Community Assets 
register, and that officers would circulate a briefing note to all Councillors to 
make them aware of the process and the list of asset already identifited. 
 
Resolved 
 

i) To confirm that the freehold interest of the 5 assets, as listed below, 

can be sold by the Council:  
a. Site 1 - Trowbridge – Land at The Halve 
b. Site 2 - Marlborough – St Peter’s School 
c. Site 3 - Westbury – Part of Coulston Allotments 
d. Site 4 - Macklin Road, Salisbury – Land used as garden 

extension 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

e. Site 5 - Devizes – Land at John Rennie Close 
 

ii) To confirm the approach set out in paragraph 8 of the report. 
 

iii) To authorise the Associate Director for People and Business to 
dispose of freehold interest of the assets. 

 

iv) That the delegation to the Associate Director, as stated in iii), in 
relation to Site 2 - Malborough – St Peter’s School, is subject to the 
involvement of the community in the development of planning 
information for potential developers of the site. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To confirm the freehold interests of the assets can be sold in order to generate 
capital receipts in support of the Council’s capital programme. 
 

116 Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2011-2026 – Car 
Parking Strategy 
 
Councillor Bridget Wayman presented the report which asked Cabinet to 
consider and agree possible car parking charging options for inclusion in a 
subsequent public consultation exercise. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Wayman highlighted: the history of parking 
charging in the area; how the revenue generated is used to support subsidies 
for rural bus routes; the opportunities to pilot technology to support staff and car 
park users; the plans for consultation, and how some the decision had already 
been made not to pursue some options such as charging for blue badges and 
levying charges in the evening. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
concerns expressed by some councillors that the need for charging be balanced 
against the need to encourage visitors to towns to promote economic 
regeneration; whether schools would be willing to pay for some static cameras; 
how best to engage with the various communities and interest groups; and that 
the Cabinet had not taken a position on preferred options. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
(i) To note the technology and operational improvement proposals 

outlined in this report. 
 
(ii) To confirm that all seven proposals for car parking charging options 

be included in a public consultation exercise.  
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

(iii) To approve the suggested format for the public consultation exercise 
as set out in paragraphs 49 to 54. 

 
(iv) To agree that, subject to any responses received during the public 

consultation, Option 1 is implemented as soon as possible through a 
variation notice to the Traffic Regulation Orders and delegates 
authority to the Associate Director for Highways and Transport in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Highways, Transport and 
Waste to consider any suggestions from respondents for alternative 
ways in which the estimated income increase from the option could 
be met by other means, and, with the advice of legal and parking 
services, to negotiate and agree any resulting legal agreements. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To seek comments and approval from cabinet to undertake consultation on 
proposed parking charging options to address the identified financial, 
technology and operational pressures faced by Parking Services. 
 

117 Wiltshire Local Development Scheme update 
 
Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which sought Cabinet’s approval 
for a revised Local Development Scheme (LDS) for Wiltshire to ensure it is up 
to date and sets out the Council’s priorities for development plan document 
preparation in Wiltshire over the period 2017 to 2020. 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Sturgis highlighted the changes that were 
being made, and the work that would be undertaken in line with the timetable. In 
moving the recommendation stated that he would like an additional resolution 
that reflected the requirement for Swindon to have established a five-year land 
supply as a prerequisite for any joint agreement. 
 
Councillor Gamble in referring to the list of Neighbourhood Plans in the Local 
Development Scheme, expressed concern about the weight to be given to 
emerging neighbourhood plans in the preparation of the Local Plan that had not 
reached the Regulation 16 stage and the need for engagement with all 
neighbourhood plan groups, whatever stage they had reached. Councillor 
Sturgis stated that he did not support an extension of the list of Neighbourhood 
Plan Schemes to include those that were not further developed but that 
neighbourhood planning groups would be consulted on the preparation of the 
plans and their views taken into account. 
 
In response to a question from Francis Morland, Councillor Sturgis stated that 
the issue of the publication of the SHMAA and FEMAA documents, considered 
in draft in part ii of the meeting, will be considered at the joint meeting of the two 
authorities on the 18 September at which time a publication date will be 
decided. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

(i) To approves the Local Development Scheme as set out at Appendix 
1. 

 
(ii) To authorises the Associate Director for Economic Development and 

Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Spatial 
Planning, Development Management and Property, to make minor 
amendments to the Local Development Scheme in the interests of 
clarity and accuracy before publishing it on the Council’s website. 

 
(iii) To delegates authority to the Associate Director for Economic 

Development and Planning, in consultation with the Associate 
Director for Finance and Cabinet Members for ‘Spatial Planning, 
Development Management and Property’ and ‘Finance’ to undertake 
subsequent reviews and updates to the LDS with any significant 
modifications being referred to Cabinet as appropriate. 

 
(iv) To agree that a strategy for emergency stopping places for Gypsies 

and Travellers should be undertaken as part of delivering the 
approved Wiltshire Traveller Strategy. 

 
(v) To reaffirm its commitment to joint working with Swindon Borough 

Council, however given the Council’s responsibilities to support the 
interests of Wiltshire’s communities, that Cabinet will need to be 
satisfied that plans are in place to maintain a deliverable 5 year 
housing land supply in both authority areas before approving the 
plans. 

 
 

118 Chippenham Station Hub update 
 
The Leader presented the report which provided an update on project progress 
and the main considerations concerning the next phase of project development: 
The development of a Full Business Case (FBC) and submission of a planning 
application. 
 
In presenting the report, the Leader highlighted the history of the project, the 
next steps including the risks and benefits of the project. 
 
In response to representations made by Councillor Clare Cape, the Leader 
stated that whilst the project would be beneficial for Chippenham overall, she 
agreed that some issues arising from the works, such as parking and traffic, 
would need to be considered. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Ian Thorn, Alistair Cunningham – 
Corporate Director, confirmed that in accordance with normal guidance to 
developers, those responsible for delivering the project were in pre-application 
discussions with the planning authority. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

Resolved 
 
1. To note the progress of the Chippenham Station Hub project. 

 
2. To note the identified risks involved with progressing the project. 

 
3. To approve the development and delivery of the Full Business Case 

and Planning Application using Department for Transport retained 
funding. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To ensure that Wiltshire Council maximizes the benefits and opportunities 
associated with the Growth Deal programme in terms of delivering key 
infrastructure projects and building Wiltshire’s economy whilst managing the 
financial implications and associated risks to the organisation. 
 

119 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

120 Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
Resolved 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of 
business because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the items in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
A representation was received as to why the item, Swindon and Wiltshire 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMAA) and Functional Economic 
Market Area Assessment (FEMAA), should not be held in private. The response 
is given in the minute of the relevant item below. 
 

121 Chippenham Station Hub update (Part ii) 
 
The information contained in the additional paper was noted. 
 

122 Swindon and Wiltshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMAA) 
and Functional Economic Market Area Assessment (FEMAA) 
 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Toby Sturgis presented the report which asked Cabinet: to consider 
the draft Strategic Housing Market Assessment and Functional Economic 
Market Area Assessment; and to agree to their publication as part of the 
evidence base to inform the review of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
Prior to consideration of the item, and in a response to a representation from a 
member of the public, the council’s Monitoring Officer confirmed: that the paper 
had been made exempt from publication due to the documents being in draft 
form; that this was done in the public interest and in the interest of Wiltshire 
Council and Swindon Borough Council; and that the full documentation should 
be published in October once it had been agreed with Swindon Borough 
Council. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To approve the draft Swindon and Wiltshire Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment and Functional Economic Market Area Assessment for 
the purposes of evidence for the review of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy. 

 
ii) To publish the Swindon and Wiltshire Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment and Functional Economic Area Assessment on an 
agreed date with Swindon Borough Council, with a clear explanation 
of their status in the plan making process and planning system. 

 
iii) To delegate authority to the Associate Director for Economic 

Development and Planning in consultation with the Cabinet Member 
for Spatial Planning, Development Management and Property and 
Swindon Borough Council to determine the agreed date for 
publication. 

 
Reason for Decision: 
 
To ensure that the Council can make timely progress on the proposed review of 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 

123 Housing Repairs Contract Extensions 
 
Councillor Richard Clewer presented the report which sought to gain approval 
to extend four contracts for planned and responsive repairs services to council 
housing stock up to March 2020. This would enable sufficient time to fully 
review current services, agree a new model for service provision and implement 
the new proposals. 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

That approval be delegated to the Associate Director responsible for 
housing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development and Housing to agree contract extensions up to March 2020 
for the four contracts delivering the following services; 
 
- Planned and cyclical maintenance 
- Planned and responsive gas works 
- Planned and responsive electrical works 
- Responsive repairs and voids works 
 
Reason for Decision: 
 
The responsive repairs and planned maintenance services for council housing 
stock are currently under review. A proposal to reshape services was approved 
in principle by Cabinet in March 2017 subject to a further report to Cabinet to 
confirm the business case for the revised proposal. 
 
The current contracts are due to end in March 2018. All four contracts were 
awarded with the option to extend. As more time is required to conclude the 
business case to reshape services and report back to Cabinet, it is proposed 
hat the current contracts are all extended to enable sufficient time to fully 
consider the implications of the service change proposals. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 12.23 pm) 

 
These decisions were published, earlier, on the 14 September 2017 and will come 

into force on 22 September 2017 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is William Oulton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct lines (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 26 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM 
- COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Halik, Cllr Alan Hill (Vice Chairman - in 
the Chair), Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Simon Jacobs, Cllr Gordon King, 
Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Peter Fuller (Substitute) and 
Cllr Roy While (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Stuart 
Wheller and Cllr Philip Whitehead. 
 
  

 
62 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from:- 
 
Cllr Graham Wright (Chairman) 
Cllr Christine Crisp, who was substituted by Cllr Peter Fuller 
Cllr Howard Greenman, who was substituted by Cllr Roy While 
Cllr John Walsh 
 

63 Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minus of the meetings held on 6 and 21 June 
2017. 
 

64 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

65 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements:- 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(1) Message from Cllr Graham Wright  The Chairman reported that the 
Cllr Graham Wright was away on leave on a holiday he booked prior to 
being elected to the post of Chairman and read out a message from him 
sending his sincere apologies and thanking both Members and officers 
for the support he had received since his appointment to this post. 

 
(2) DCLG Enquiry The Chairman announced that in January 2017 the 

Department for Communities & Central Government launched an enquiry 
looking at whether overview and scrutiny arrangements in England were 
working effectively and whether local communities were able to 
contribute to and monitor the work of their councils. The Management 
Committee received Wiltshire Council’s response to the call for evidence 
in March. 
 
Following pauses from all parliamentary select committee work during 
the General Election period, the Committee had now been reconstituted 
and its Members had agreed that the enquiry should be resumed and 
would be considering oral evidence in October.  
 
This Committee would be updated in due course.       

 
66 Public Participation 

 
There were no statements or questions submitted. 
 

67 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Forward Work Programmes for the Select Committees and updates on 
previous work was received. Additional updates were received as follows:  
 
Children’s Select Committee  
Cllr Jon Hubbard Chairman of the Select Committee informed Members of 
recent activity, including the provision of SEND in schools. There had not been 
complete agreement between the Local Authority and the schools involved but 
the Committee had agreed to recommend to the Overview & Scrutiny 
Management Committee that a task and finish group be formed to consider the 
future provision of education for SEND children and young people, specifically 
working with Officers, Schools and Parents to identify and consider the 
challenges outlined in the Wood Report and other associated documents. In 
order to proceed with this task and finish group without delay, permission to 
start had been sought and obtained from the Chairman of this Committee and 
approval was now being sought retrospectively. 
 
The Committee also received a report by Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Chairman of the 
Rapid Scrutiny – Traded Services for Schools in which she set out their 
findings. 
 
Environment Select Committee 

Page 20



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Cllr Matthew Dean, Chairman of the Select Committee, gave an update of work 
undertaken so far by that Committee. In particular he drew attention to the 
Resident Engagement Strategy for which a draft report was likely to be 
presented to the Select Committee in early 2018.  
 
Cllr Dean also highlighted work which was continuing on the Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy and proposed changes to the Council’s Housing 
Allocations Policy. 
 
Members noted that the Select Committee at its next meeting would receive a 
report on the joint working between the Council and train operating companies 
to consider the transport outcomes for Wiltshire residents and to assess the 
economic benefits of Wiltshire train stations.    
 
Health Select Committee  
Cllr Gordon King, Vice-Chairman of the Select Committee provided an update 
on the work of the Select Committee. He highlighted the impact of the Adult 
Care Charging Policy, a further report on which was likely to be presented to the 
January 2018 meeting of the Select Committee.  
 
A report on Wiltshire CCG’s commissioning intentions would be considered at 
the next meeting of the Select Committee. In particular, proposals would be 
presented about care proposals in Chippenham, Melksham and Trowbridge. 
 
O & S Management Committee      
The Chairman reported that the previous week he and Cllr Graham Wright had 
received a briefing from the Head of the Programme Office on the Council’s key 
corporate programmes. It was pleasing to note that all of the most significant six 
programmes were already receiving some form of scrutiny engagement. 
 
In consideration of the Council’s new Business Plan, at the meeting of this 
Committee on 21 June 2017, mention was made of the Council’s Community 
Asset Transfer Policy, it being noted that the Leader had expressed a wish that 
the Policy be revised in order that the process of transferring assets could 
become faster and more cost effective.  The Committee had resolved that the 
new Policy be scrutinised before being presented to Cabinet, which had now 
been scheduled for 7 November 2017.      
 
It was also noted that the Management Committee would receive an update on 
the Council’s Highspeed Broadband Programme at its next meeting in 
November.  
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved:  

 
1. To note the Overview and Scrutiny forward work programme and 

the updates on recent Overview and Scrutiny activity provided. 

Page 21



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
2. To endorse the establishment of the S.E.N.D. Provision in Schools 

Task Group by Children’s Select Committee. 
 

3. To endorse in principle the establishment and commencement of a 
task group looking at Traded Services for Schools to complete its 
work within 9 months, noting that the task group’s establishment 
will also be considered by Children’s Select Committee at its next 
meeting on 31 October.  
 

4. To agree that the Chairman of Health Select Committee will sit on 
the Adult Social Care Transformation Programme Board as the 
Overview and Scrutiny councillor representative. 
 

5. To establish a rapid scrutiny exercise to consider the revised 
“Asset and Service Devolution and Community Asset Transfer 
Policy” prior to its approval by Cabinet in November.  
 

6. To congratulate Alistair Cunningham and Terence Herbert on their 
appointment as Corporate Directors and to thank Carolyn Godfrey 
for all her work during her tenure since the formation of Wiltshire 
Council in 2009. 

 
68 Management Committee Task Groups 

 
The Committee received an update on the activity of the following Task 
Groups:- 
 

 Financial Planning Task Group 
 

 Digital Strategy and Implementation Task Group 
 

 Military and Civilian Integration Project Task Group 
 

 Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership Task Group 
 

 Planning Committee System Task Group – The Chairman suggested that 
the terms of reference of this Task Group should be widened to include 
a review of the planning committee system.  Cllr Jon Hubbard did not 
support this addition as he was concerned that members of the public 
might find it difficult to attend meetings should the Task Group 
recommend a reduction in planning committees.     

 
Resolved: 
 
1. To note the memberships of OS Management Committee’s task 

groups, as appointed by the Chairman and Vice-chairman 
following Committee’s request in June. 

Page 22



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
2. To note the updates on Task Group activity provided. 

 
3. To endorse the terms of reference for the Planning Committee 

System Task Group as follows: 
 

a.   To explore the extent to which the Council’s current 
development control processes meet the needs and objectives 
of Wiltshire’s residents and communities, to potentially 
including consideration of: 

 The public’s and applicant’s experience, including digital 
access 

 Communications and liaison with local councillors and 
their role 
 

b. To investigate whether the present planning committee 
structure is best suited to delivering an efficient, effective and 
sustainable service; with particular reference to the number of 
and geographical areas covered by the existing area 
committees, their agendas and meetings. 

 
c. To suggest any recommendations for improvement of the 

planning committee system as appropriate. 

 
(Note: Cllr Jon Hubbard requested that his vote against the Motion be 
recorded.) 

69 Emergency Planning and Management 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the interim Director, Public Health which 
provided a synopsis of recent actions and testing of the Council’s preparedness 
to the response and recovery of an emergency, paying special attention to 
actions and lessons identified in the wake of the Grenfell Tower fire. 
 
Attention was drawn to Exercise Concido which took place on 6 July 2017 at the 
Dorset & Wiltshire Fire Training Centre in Devizes. This exercise tested the 
recovery processes in the aftermath of the structural collapse of a four story 
block of residential flats and it was found that Wiltshire Council’s plans were 
robust. However, lessons identified from both the Grenfell tower fire and 
Exercise Concido would be reviewed closely and changes would be made to 
Wiltshire’s plans as necessary. 
 
During discussion, whilst Members applauded action taken, it was considered 
that buildings lower than four stories, particularly three story buildings, should 
be investigated in due course.   
 
Resolved: 
 
1. To note the contents of the report. 

Page 23



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
2. To support a continuing programme of training and exercising for 

emergency response and recovery across the organisation and 
increased engagement with partners in the voluntary sector. 

 
3. To receive a progress report on the council’s emergency planning 

and management arrangements in six month’s time. 
  

70 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting was scheduled to be held on Tuesday 28 
November 2017 in the Kennet Room at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting 
at 10.30am. 
 

71 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30  - 11.55 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton (Senior Democratic 
Officer), of Democratic Services, direct line (01225) 713035, e-mail 

roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

 

Page 24



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE CHILDREN'S SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 5 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Christopher Devine, 
Cllr Mary Douglas, Cllr Sue Evans, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Jacqui Lay, 
Cllr Hayley Spencer, Ms J Hughes, Miss Sarah Busby and Mr J Hawkins 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Laura Mayes and Cllr Philip Whalley. 
 
  

 
45 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr David Halik (who was substituted 
by Cllr James Sheppard), Cllr Deborah Halik (who was substituted by Cllr Peter 
Fuller), Dr Mike Thompson, Miss Tracy Cornelius, Mr Paul Daniel and James 
Wilkins.   
 

46 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 June 
2017 as a correct record. 
 

47 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

48 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements:- 
 
a) Mr Terence Herbert  On behalf of the Committee, the Chairman warmly 

congratulated Mr Terence Herbert on his appointment as Corporate 
Director, Children & Education with effect from 14 August 2017. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

b) Mrs Carolyn Godfrey   The Chairman reported that this would be the last 
meeting that Carolyn Godfrey would be attending as a Corporate Director 
prior to her retirement in October 2017.  Together with members of the 
Committee, he warmly thanked her for her outstanding assistance and 
support for the work of this Committee and wished her every success and 
happiness in her future endeavours. 

 
c) Cabinet Items   At its meeting on 3 July 2017, Cabinet considered the 

following items:- 
 

 Children’s Services Integration Project 

 Adoption Agency Annual Update 2017 

 Wiltshire CSE Action Plan Update 
 
d) Outdoor Education Item  For information the item originally scheduled on 

the Children’s Select Committee’s forward work programme for this 
meeting regarding Outdoor Education in Wiltshire had been removed. This 
item had been referred to the Traded Services for Schools Rapid Scrutiny 
Exercise for in depth consideration. The outcomes of this and their 
meeting would be received by this Committee at its next meeting in the 
form of their rapid scrutiny report. 

 
49 Public Participation 

 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public.  
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. He then explained the rules 
of public participation and procedure to be followed at the meeting.  
 

50 Activities of the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY) 
 
The Committee received a report which set out a summary of activities of the 
Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY) during the period April to August 2017. 
 
It was noted that WAY organised its activities according to its Agenda for Action 
which had the following five priorities:- 
 
 Priority 1: Improve emotional wellbeing and mental health support 

for young people  Attention was drawn to the design of an illustrative 
interpretation of this service to assist children, families and professionals 
in understanding the service. A film clip had also been prepared for the 
home page of the www.onyourmind.org.uk website. Members requested 
that copies of the briefing slides previously received by this committee on 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services be recirculated. 

 

 Priority 2: Personal, Social, Health and Economic Education  No 
specific work had been carried out in this period, although the link with 
the Healthy Schools had been maintained and young people would be 

Page 26

http://www.onyourmind.org.uk/


 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

reviewing the next round of applications for Healthy School status as well 
as having input into a review of the standards.     

 

 Priority 3: Bullying  WAY members were working on the development 
of podcasts which would be available during Anti-Bullying Week 2017 
(13-17 November). These recordings would consider specific themes 
and areas of concern, such as racial discrimination and the causes of 
bullying. It was suggested that area boards be informed of initiatives that 
were being planned in their areas. . It was also requested that the WAY 
update to 31 October include an update on anti-bullying. 

 

 Priority 4: Public Transport  It was noted that WAY had been holding 
discussions about transport issues and that they had a number of issues 
as set out in the report. WAY intended to raise the profile of these issues 
and arrangements were being made for representatives to attend a 
meeting with bus company representatives in Salisbury.  WAY also 
intended o convey its concerns to members of the Youth Safeguarding 
Board at a joint meeting later in this month. A progress report would be 
made back to this Committee in due course. 
 

Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Wiltshire Assembly of Youth (WAY). 

 
 

 
51 Provision of SEND Schools 

 
Consideration was given to a report by the Associate Director, Commissioning, 
Performance Management & School Effectiveness which provided an overview 
of the work undertaken since January 2016 on securing appropriate and 
adequate special school provision for children and young people in Wiltshire. 
 
It was the Local Authority’s responsibility for commissioning and securing 
provision to meet children and young people’s identified special education 
needs. The Local Authority would also retain responsibility for the oversight and 
management of the High Needs Block of the Dedicated Schools grant.    
 
It was reported that since January 2016 the Local Authority had been 
discussing with Wiltshire’s special schools the potential to re-shape provision, 
including the possibility of creating a Multi-Academy Trust involving a number of 
special schools working together so as to improve the services provided for 
children and young adults with special educational needs and disabilities.  
Special schools had put forward a proposal to form a Special School 
Collaborative Partnership (SSCP) with potential for each special school to join a 
Multi-Academy Trust that also included mainstream schools. 
 

Page 27



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Following receipt of a number of concerns, a joint steering group had been set 
up supported by a specialist SEN consultant, with agreed terms of reference. 
This work had now concluded and steering group’s terms of reference and the 
key findings and summary of the consultant’s findings were noted as set out in 
the report, which were categorised into short term, medium term and long term 
recommendations.   
 
Representations were received from the following special school 
representatives, copies of which are appended to these minutes:- 
 
Paul Cooke, Chair of Governors, Downland School 
Annette Foster, Chair of Governors, Rowdeford School 
Tanya Rhodes, Bursar, Downland School 
 
In particular, the school representatives drew attention to Para 14 of the report 
which stated that education outcomes were not as good as they should be for 
children with SEN.  The representatives went on to say that:- 

(a) This claim was unsubstantiated and strongly refuted by the Special 
Schools. The statement included all SEN students across the entire county 
including those in mainstream schools, and 
 

(b) In relation to the SS outcomes this was misleading. With the exception of 
Springfield Academy, who were rated RI at their last inspection and recent 
section 8 monitoring visit, all other Special Schools were rated by Ofsted 
as Good or Outstanding. 

In response, the Committee was informed that there was certainly no criticism 
of individual schools which were recognised as providing an excellent service 
but rather that there was insufficient provision for children and young adults with 
SEN in Wiltshire, particularly in the south of the County.   

It was noted that a number of Special Needs placements were made outside 
the County which were very costly to the Council. There was also considerable 
pressure on the Council’s transport budget due to SEN travel costs. Some 
children had to travel significant distances to attend a school that could meet 
their individual educational needs. 

The Committee recognised that options for reducing spend were limited, with 
long lead in times and it was noted that the current pattern of provision to meet 
the changing needs of children and young adults needed careful attention as 
this was driving unaffordable cost into the system.  However, there was no easy 
way to deal with the projected overspend. 

During discussion it was suggested that the various proposals set out in the 
short and medium term categories of the Wood Report should be prioritised but 
Members considered that receipt of the complete consultant’s report was 
needed before any meaningful discussion could take place. 

The Cabinet Member for Children’s Services stated that the provision of 
services for SEND children was continually being monitored and there was a 
need to be receptive as the situation changed.   

Page 28



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Resolved: 

To recommend to the Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee  that a 
task and finish group be formed to consider the future provision of 
education for SEND children and young people, specifically working with 
Officers, Schools and Parents to identify and consider the challenges 
outlined in the Wood Report and other associated documents. 
 

 

 
 
   
 

52 DfE Changes - Update from Department for Education - 
 
The Committee received an update from Carolyn Godfrey, Corporate Director, 
on developments relating to children’s services arising from the Department for 
Education from June to August 2017 as follows:- 
 

 30 hours free childcare: LA and early years provider guide 

 Future arrangements for school and high needs funding 

 Preventing bullying in schools 

 Exclusions guidance 

 Publication of EBacc consultation response 

 Academies update 

 SEND provision capital funding for pupils with EHC plans 

 Further education area reviews 

 The Children and Social Work Act 2017 – new local safeguarding and 
child death review arrangements 

 
Reference was made to the excellent GCSE results in Wiltshire and the 
Committee extended its congratulations to both the students and the teaching 
staff on achieving these results. Members also looked forward to receiving a 
detailed analysis once these results had been fully validated at a future 
meeting.     
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update provided.  
 

53 Task Group Updates 
 
The Chairman reported that a discussion had been held between the Cabinet 
Member for Children’s Services, the Portfolio Holder for Children’s 
Safeguarding and Martin Davis, Head of Service Care and Placement,    
regarding the potential for scrutiny input on children transitioning out of care 

Page 29



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

from which it was being recommended that a one-off piece of rapid scrutiny 
should take place in October to consider the draft covenant. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To hold a rapid scrutiny exercise on Children in Care Leavers in October 
2017. 
 

54 Forward Work Programme 
 
The Committee received a document showing the relevant items from the 
Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programme.  
 
The Chairman reported that meetings between the Chairman, Vice Chairman 
and the Executive had been arranged to take place as follows:- 
 

 21 September 2017 to consider safeguarding issues 

 18 October 2017 to consider education and skills issues 

 19 October 2017 to consider issues relating to disabled children and 
adults 

 
He asked members of the Committee to let himself, the Vice Chairman or the 
Senior Scrutiny Officer have any questions on these topics which could be 
discussed and considered at these meetings. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Programme for this Committee. 
 

55 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting is due to be held on Tuesday 31 
October 2017 at County Hall, Trowbridge, starting at 10.30am. 
 

56 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items of business. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.50 pm) 

 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

2b   

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Statement to Children’s Select Committee 

On Behalf of Special Schools0.0… 

 
Please note that the special schools were unable to undertake written submissions to the 

committee prior to the deadline. In addition, none of the special school heads are available to 

attend today’s meeting as it is the first day of the new school year. 

Given the time available to us today, we will each be making statements in order to address 

some of the major points in the progress report: 

1. Para 6 – Conclusion of work 

a. The agreed terms of reference for the WASSP steering group included that: 

i. The consultant’s report (the Wood report) should be ratified by the steering 

group 

ii. Ratification should incorporate a draft plan for the next steps 

iii. The finding and plan should be presented to the Corporate Director 

b. This agreed procedure was not followed. In contrast the following actions were 

taken 

i. The LA produced a confidential position statement setting out their 

preferred way forward 

ii. Individual meetings were held with the schools  

iii. The position statement was presented to the Corporate Director 

iv. The progress report  for the Select Committee is based on the position 

statement 

v. Neither the position statement nor progress report have been agreed by the 

WASSP steering group or the schools 

vi. Ratification of the Wood report is still outstanding.  

2. Para 11 – Demand for SEND places 

a. The Wood report highlights confusing data regarding the designation of SEND pupils 

within the categories of SEMH/BESD/ASD and recommended an urgent review to 

inform future planning in this area 

b. The graph showing declining predicted numbers for SEMH has been taken out of 

context – the preceding graph in the Wood report shows that Wiltshire is out of line 

with the SW region and the rest of the country in this regard and needs 

investigating. 

c. Numbers at Downland were low, which follows the pattern of recent years, due to 

the way commissioning is undertaken. However over the summer the school has 

been asked to provide for a cohort of Y6 and Y5 pupils and is now near capacity.  

d. Springfield Academy has a number of pupils with a primary designation of SEMH. 

The education officers recommend that Downland would be more appropriate, also 

releasing capacity for ASD children at Springfield. 

3. Para 12 – Local Authorities no longer have access to capital for building work 
a. This statement is not consistent with the DfE announcement that “Wiltshire has 

been allocated a total of £801K to help create new school places and improve 

Page 9

Minute Item 51

Page 33



existing facilities for children and young people with SEND (See agenda item 8 

paragraph 15) 
b. Whilst some Special Schools have constricted sites most have unused space. No 

analysis of the potential development opportunities within the existing estate, or 

associated costs have been considered Whilst additional capacity is required and the 

potential for a new school proposed in the Wood report, no cost benefit analysis has 

been undertaken nor evaluated against the potential changes and flexibility 

available in the existing schools. The schools suggest that focusing heavily on a free 

school approach  is potentially a high risk strategy given recent Government changes 

to the Free School funding 

c. The opportunity to bid for specific funding to secure a special free school in 

Wiltshire arose in Sept 2016; this was missed by the council and as a result Wiltshire 

are not one of the 19 authorities named in the July 2017 bid paper for special free 

schools  

4. Para 14 – Education Outcomes are not as good as they should be for children with SEN 

a. This claim is unsubstantiated and strongly refuted by the Special Schools. The 

statement includes all SEN students across the entire county including those in 

mainstream schools. 

b. In relation to the SS outcomes this is misleading. With the exception of Springfield 

Academy, who were rated RI at their last inspection and recent section 8 monitoring 

visit, all other Special Schools are rated by Ofsted as Good or Outstanding. 

  

Page 10Page 34



Further to the points raised by the previous speaker I would like to draw your attention to the 

following: 

5. Para’s 15/16/17/18/22 – Impact of housing strategy & rebasing leading to an additional 120-

180 SEND places 

a. National and regional trends have shown an increasing demand for SEND places for 

a number of years. Whilst Wiltshire’s demand has been “historically low” (para 22), 

the Wood report suggests this is likely to be an “artificial” position due to under 

approval of EHCPs and possibly under diagnosis.  

b. A percentage of new EHC Plans will be as a direct result of the housing strategy and 

rebasing, yet all financial contributions received under the S106 community 

infrastructure levy have been allocated to mainstream provision 

6. Para 23  

a. The paper highlights the fact that high needs funding allocated to children being 

educated in mainstream schools is not always being utilised in a way that result in 

maximum impact. This is a long standing issue and little action has been taken to 

address it. 

7. Para 24/26/27 – Analysis of current commissioning process 

a. Much of the impact on the HNB is the number of children being placed out of county 

or in independent provision. The Wood reports stresses this cannot be quickly 

‘fixed’, and proposes a series of actions needed; but the LA’s proposed direction 

jumps to proposed solutions that alone will not address the commissioning failures. 

b. The special schools have proposed a solution based on a formal collaborative 

partnership between mixed community MATs (SSCP). This provides a much more 

robust and immediate solution to the admissions challenges as it incorporates ALL 

special schools and mainstream provision. The DfE has stated in its original response 

to questions about the SSCP proposal “With regards to developing a suitable vehicle 

for MAT to MAT partnership, the Department would be content for new and existing 

MATs and SATs to establish an umbrella charity where its purpose is to facilitate 

collaboration between the trusts.” 

c. Admissions challenges have highlighted failures and special schools have requested 

the LA to develop joint admissions processes. This has not received support from the 

Authority. 

d. There is available space at the existing special schools which could be developed and 

utilised at a potentially lower cost than new build. Schools have approached the LA 

to do this yet their proposals have been rejected. 

e. For a number of years there has been a growing need for additional provision in the 

South of the county, which the Wood report highlights. Why was this not predicted 

by the LA and appropriate actions already taken?  

8. Para 28 – Short term improvements to policy and practice 

a. The forward work plan that is due from the Wood report has yet to be discussed by 

WASSPP and the SSs have not yet been informed of any changes in policy or 

practice. The SSs are keen to understand what is to be changed and the impact this 

will have on Wilts CYP with SEND. 

9. Para 30 – Change in Rowdeford’s designation from MLD to MLD/SLD or SLD 

Page 11Page 35



a. All special schools have indicated that they are more than happy to flex their 

provision. The SSCP model would achieve this in an efficient and effective way. 

Membership of community MATs will allow all special schools to flex their 

designations more successfully, to meet on-going demands. 

10. Para 31 – Mechanism for collaboration 

a. In January/February this year all the Special schools/ academies submitted a 

detailed proposal to the LA for the development of a formal collaborative 

partnership based on mixed community MATs, called the SSCP.  This was in response 

to a request from the LA for the schools to propose a solution.  

b. The SSCP proposes improvements which can be made quickly, by utilising the 

existing collaboration regulations to form a formal joint committee of the 

schools/academies. Improvements would include improved placement processes, 

increasing and beginning the formalisation of collaboration and sharing of resources 

between schools, increasing flexibility. 

 

  

Page 12Page 36



Further to the points raised by the previous speakers I would like to draw your attention to the 

following: 

11. Para 32/33/34 – Need for new provision and funding 

a. The Special Schools agree that some reconfiguration and new provision is required 

but at least 5 of the schools disagree with the LA’s interpretation of the Wood report 

and have written to the LA on this basis.  The collaborative partnership proposed by 

the schools could meet this requirement through the delivery of an integrated 

Specialist provision involving all Special schools and community MAT partners. 

b. The paper contends that the most viable route to secure funding is via the Free 

School budget. There is no evidence to support this conclusion, which is further 

diluted by the recent government changes to that budget. There is no guarantee 

that a Free School bid would be successful and Special Schools are concerned that 

the authority has missed the opportunity to be part of the defined special school 

free school wave  

i. Wave 13 is possible but as yet there is no firm date for a further wave and 

any a free school bid will be considered nationally amongst a vast number of 

other bids 

ii. The funding for free schools is subject to change as at least 30 would now 

need to be funded via the New Presumption route – ie; LA funded  

iii. In speaking with the RSC there is a concern that by focusing efforts on free 

school bids the LA has no Plan B 

c. The need is for places/provision some of which can be accommodated in the short-

medium term by increasing capacity at existing SEN schools, exploring the re-

designation of schools and additional SEN provision within some mainstream schools 

and MATs. 

12. Equalities impact  

a. The progress report states that there are no barriers within the LA proposal to 

improving inclusion. The SSs ask the committee to ensure that they question 

whether the LAs approach is the most “inclusive” and offers YP the best 

opportunities and equalities.    

13. Conclusion 

a. “Officers will continue to work with the Lead Member and Portfolio Holders to 

develop firm proposals”. WHAT ABOUT THE SPECIAL SCHOOLS? Throughout these 

discussions the Special Schools have felt their voice is being ignored and this 

statement does little to reassure them that their voice, as key stakeholders and 

delivery experts, is being listened to.  

b. Special Schools have already responded to the Authority’s ‘Position Paper’, we have 

also raised our concerns with the Regional Schools Commissioner, who requested a 

meeting with us which we had last week. The letter was copied to Baroness Scott 

and Carolyn Godfrey and we’d be very happy to share it with the committee. 

c. Finally I would like to point out that by noting the statement before you today you 

are implicitly condoning the commissioners proposal to continue with their plans. 

We have not been able to respond as fully as we would have liked and so would 

Page 13Page 37



welcome the opportunity to discuss this in more detail with the committee so you 

are in a position to take an informed view of the way forward. 

Page 14Page 38



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 19 
SEPTEMBER 2017 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, 
BYTHESEA ROAD, TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Derek Brown OBE, Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Peter Evans, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Bob Jones MBE, 
Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Ian McLennan and Cllr Nick Murry 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Chuck Berry, Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Philip 
Whitehead, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr John Thomson, Cllr John Smale and Cllr Bridget 
Wayman 
  

 
30 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Stephen Oldrieve and Cllr Sarah Gibson.  
 

31 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2017 were agreed and signed 
as a true and accurate record. 
 

32 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

33 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcements: 
 

1. Planning Task Group 
The Committee were advised that, as agreed in the last meeting, the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman, Cllr Lay and Cllr Murry, met with Chuck 
Berry- Cabinet Member for Planning and Strategic Asset Management 
and Alistair Cunningham, Corporate Director for Growth, Investment and 
Place. At this meeting, it was decided that Overview and Scrutiny 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 

 
 
 

Management Committee’s Task Group could consider ‘Planning 
Outcomes and Delivery’. 
 

2. Capital requirement for new and replacement waste containers – Waste 
Services 
The Committee were informed that following a meeting held between the 
Chairman and the Associate Director for Waste and Environment, Tracy 
Carter in July, it was agreed that this item could be removed from the 
Committee’s Forward Work Plan, because scrutiny involvement is not 
deemed to add value. 
It was also explained that the issue of waste bags and wheelie bins had 
been discussed in this meeting. The Chairman informed Members that 
refuse bins could not be issued to some properties, where there was no 
adequate storage for the bins, as they would obstruct the highway. 
However, it was emphasised that Waste Services were willing to work 
with Members to address any issues relating to waste containers in their 
divisions.  
 

3. Housing Repairs Contract Extension  
The Chairman advised that at Cabinet on 12 September 2017, it was 
resolved that approval be delegated to the Associate Director 
responsible for housing in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Economic Development and Housing, to agree contract extensions up to 
March 2020 for all the existing contracts that the Council held under this 
item, to give time to fully complete the review of the repairs and 
maintenance service and to implement any agreed changes. 
 

4. Allocation of Pavement Funding: 
The Chairman referred to the attached briefing note and advised 
Members that the money had been allocated proportionately, in the same 
way that CATG funds were allocated, and that the money was now 
available to be spent in community areas. After questioning by Members, 
it was confirmed that this fund was for discretionary improvements and 
not for work undertaken under mandatory safety duties.  

 
34 Public Participation 

 
There were no public questions or speakers, 
 

35 Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
 
The report was introduced by Tracy Carter- Associate Director Waste and 
Environment, which was described as an update report on the work done in the 
development of the new strategy. She announced that she was pleased to see 
the level of Councillors interest in the strategy and referred to the success of the 
well-attended Waste Workshops, held in July, with 43 Councillors having 
participated.   
 
The Committee advised that as part of the Consultation, the Waste Team were 
making presentations at Area Board meetings, which were being well received. 

Page 40



 
 
 

 
 
 

It was explained that some Consultation questions were being put to audiences, 
and would be included in the overall response to Consultation. Members were 
informed that the Consultation was now live and would close on 14 November 
2017, and were urged to encourage their divisions to participate.  
 
A number of questions were raised by Councillors in response to the report. 
Firstly, a recognition of the efforts of Officers and the success of the 
Consultation, so far, was voiced by Members. The point was raised that the 
Strategy could be used as an ambitious piece of work in addressing the future 
long term impacts of household waste and climate change, amongst other 
environmental factors. Concern was also raised about the introduction of 
charges for non-household waste at Household Recycling Centres and how 
improper use could lead to an increase in fly-tipping. 
 
In regards to the specific issue of Single-Use Plastics (SUPs), Tracy Carter 
advised Members that from July 2018, under a new contract, a wider selection 
of plastics would be recycled at the kerbside. However, it was also explained 
that the policy on SUPs was based on educating the public to minimise use, 
although it was recognised that without national legislation restricting 
packaging, the Council had limited influence over the producers of SUPs. 
 
It was highlighted that events managed by the Council always have a waste 
management plan attached to them and independent traders have set waste 
management standards and legislative requirements to abide by. Furthermore, 
in response to questioning, Tracy confirmed that the Council manages its 
Single-Use Plastic waste properly and therefore, Single-Use Plastic waste 
collected by Wiltshire Council does not end up in the world’s oceans. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee agreed: 

1. To note the update on the early development of a new household 
waste management strategy for Wiltshire Council; noting the key 
themes resulting from member workshops and how these have 
been used in shaping the questions for a public consultation. 

2. For the final report on the Wiltshire Council Waste Management 
Strategy, to be received by the Committee in January 2018, to 
include information on: why individuals choose not to recycle in 
Wiltshire; clearly defined and strategic goals for the Strategy, of a 
similar nature to those found in the ‘Zero Waste Scotland’ Strategy. 

3. For the Committee’s consideration of the Notice of Motion on SUPs 
to be closed, as the Council’s management of plastic waste ending 
up in the oceans is legally compliant and would ensure that this 
does not end up in the world’s oceans and there is nothing further 
that the Council could do at present to combat the amount of 
plastic waste found in the ocean.  

 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
 

 
 
 

36 Amendments to the Wiltshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) - Car Parking 
Strategy 2011-2026 
 
Parvis Khansari-  Associate Director for Highways and Transport introduced the 
report, which outlined 7 options for the Car Parking Strategy explaining that, at 
its meeting on 12 September 2017, Cabinet considered a report on possible car 
parking charging options for inclusion in a subsequent public consultation 
exercise. The report also included a number of technology and operational 
proposals. It was explained that the report was being considered in 
Environment Select to provide an opportunity for the Committee to consider its 
role in the process.  
 
In the debate that followed, it was confirmed that the Consultation would start 
the week commencing 25 September 2017 and run for 8 weeks. It was agreed 
that the Committee should await the outcome of the Public Consultation and 
that the Strategy should come back to Environment Select at its meeting on 16 
January 2018, prior to returning to Cabinet on 30 January 2018.  
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee endorsed the contents of the report and the options 
presented for Public Consultation and agreed to await the outcome of the 
detailed Consultation before considering the Strategy again, at its 16 
January 2018 meeting, prior to the Strategy returning to Cabinet on 30 
January 2018. 
 

37 Final Report of the Public Transport Review Task Group 
 
Cllr Peter Evans- Chairman of Public Transport Review Working Group, 
introduced the report explaining that its purpose was to present the findings and 
recommendations of the task group for endorsement by the committee and 
referral to the Cabinet Member for response. The Committee were informed that 
the Consultation had attracted 11,000 responses and this had delayed work 
slightly.  
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee agreed: 

1. To endorse the report of the Task Group and refer it to the Cabinet 
Member for Highways and Transport for response at the 
Committee’s next meeting. 

2. Receive an update in 12 months regarding the implementation of 
the options selected following the public transport review, which 
would mean receiving an update in the next Environment Select 
Committee in November. 

3. Cease the work of the Public Transport Review task group. 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
 

 
 
 

38 Flood Risk Management 
 
Cllr Jonathan Seed- Portfolio Holder for Flooding and the Military Covenant 
gave an update on the work of the Strategic Flood Risk Management Group 
(FRMG), as its Chairman.  
 
It was explained that Group worked closely with the three Operational Flood 
Working Groups (OFWGs), covering the north and south of the county, with a 
separate group for Salisbury. Members were advised that most of the work was 
done on the ground, working with partner agencies, such as Environment 
Agency (EA) and other organisations having an interest in flooding and 
drainage matters. Members were informed that the Groups work with local 
communities on initiatives to reduce flood risk, and encourage the development 
of local Flood Plans and the appointment of Flood Wardens. Members were 
advised that there are now 148 communities with Flood Plans and Flood 
Wardens across the county. Cllr Seed also drew attention to the Council’s 
Parish Emergency Assistance Scheme (PEAS) making communities less reliant 
on Wiltshire Council during flooding. 
 
Questions were asked surrounding the capability of Wiltshire Council to respond 
to a major flooding incident. Cllr Seed assured Members that the Council was 
an exemplary model of Flood Risk Strategy and that emergency plans were in 
place to deal with flooding risks. It was confirmed that vast improvements had 
been made since the December 2013 and March 2014 flooding, although he 
acknowledged that people were still suffering from the lasting impacts of the 
flooding. Particular mention was made of the ability to provide emergency 
housing in Salisbury, in the event of a major incident. Cllr Seed, did however 
state that although Wiltshire Council were heavily invested in this area, they did 
not have the capacity to alleviate all flooding risks in the County. He urged 
Members to look at their own divisions and support their communities in taking 
their own precautions. 
 
A further point was raised regarding the long term plans to tackle flooding risks 
caused by climate change and increased water levels. Cllr Seed advised 
Members that the strategy surrounding this policy was a living document and, 
therefore, it would naturally adapt to meet changing environmental needs. Cllr 
Seed identified a number of schemes in place across the County, such as 
purpose built properties and expert submissions in planning applications. In this 
respect, Alistair Cunningham- Corporate Director Growth, Investment and 
Place, confirmed that where planning applications involved flooding risks that 
could not be mitigated, those applications would not be approved. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee noted:  

1. The Operational Flood Working Groups continue to be a successful 
way of working with local communities, the Environment Agency 
and other organisations to manage flood risk in Wiltshire. 

2. There are currently 148 communities with Flood Plans and Flood 
Wardens, with 97 communities taking part in the Council’s Parish 

Page 43



 
 
 

 
 
 

Emergency Assistance Scheme (PEAS), which provides sand bags 
and equipment to local town and parish councils so that they can 
store these locally, and deploy them as necessary.  

3. The Council carries out a large programme of flood alleviation and 
drainage projects which are managed and co-ordinated through the 
Operational Flood Working Groups, and bids for additional funding 
as opportunities arise. 

 
39 Housing Board 

 
James Cawley, Associate Director for Adult Care, Commissioning and Housing 
introduced the report which concerned the Governance Management of the 
Housing Board. The Committee were asked to consider the options to follow for 
the Board’s future arrangements, the remuneration level and whether 
recruitment to vacant positions on the Board could commence. 
 
Much of the discussion surrounded the issue of remuneration of the Housing 
Board Members, particularly the Chairman. Cllr Clewer- Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services, Heritage, Arts and Tourism, spoke in this regard, having 
previously been Chairman of the Housing Board. He detailed that the role 
entailed a vast amount of work and commitment, and he made the case for the 
proposed levels of remuneration.  
 
An issue was raised with some Members voicing a discomfort with the Portfolio 
Holder of Housing Stock also being the Chairman of the Housing Board, and 
receiving remuneration for both roles. However, in the debate that followed it 
was agreed that the roles entailed their own significant responsibilities and 
duties, which justified remuneration, and there was nothing improper with a 
Councillor holding both positions simultaneously. Cllr Chuck Berry- Cabinet 
Member for Economic Development and Housing spoke to this effect and gave 
his support to Cllr Smale- the current Portfolio Holder for Housing Stock 
Chairman to the Housing Board.  
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee noted this report and agreed the following: 

1. For Housing Services to pursue the ‘As is structure with revised 
Terms of Reference’s’ option, subject to the Terms of Reference 
being developed by Housing Services in collaboration with the 
Housing Board members. 

2. Remuneration level to be continued for the second term of the 
Housing Board (on and from 4 May 2017). 

3. Recruitment to commence, as soon as reasonably practicable, via 
the Elected Wire, Housing Matters magazine and Wiltshire Council’s 
website. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
 

 
 
 

40 Task Group Update 
 
Traveller Reference Group 
 
Steve Maddern- Acting Consultant in Public Health introduced the update report 
on the progress of the Traveller Reference Group and Traveller Strategy. 
 
Firstly, he gave apologies for Carolyn Gibson, Spatial Planning, who was 
unable to attend the meeting. He then explained that progressive work was 
being done under the strategy and that they were one year into the four year 
strategy, as detailed in the report, but that more work was needed. He advised 
Members that the precise number of Travellers in England and Wiltshire is 
unclear, due to definitional and identification problems, however, according to 
the 2011 Census, 757 people in Wiltshire identified themselves as being of 
gypsy or of Irish traveller ethnicity.  
 
There was discussion around the historical, and current, perceived 
discrimination against these groups and what measures the Council is adopting 
to counteract this prejudice. Members recounted their own experiences with 
Traveller Groups in their divisions and gave support to the ambitions of the 
strategy. Members were advised that despite a lack of statistical data to 
evidence the improvements, those working in the Traveller Reference Group 
believed that they were achieving the objective outcomes, identified in the 23 
point action plan of the Strategy. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee agreed to note the report and the Wiltshire Traveller 
Strategy.  
 

41 Forward Work Programme 
 
Cllr Nick Murry raised the point of the Committee receiving information on the 
Council’s current Climate Change strategies. It was relayed that the current 
FWP meetings between the Committee’s Chairman and Vice-Chairman and 
Members of the Executive would present an opportunity for this to be raised. A 
full update on each of these portfolio meetings would be received by the 
Committee at the next appropriate meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee agreed to note the Forward Work Plan.  
 

42 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items raised in the meeting, (see next item).  
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 
 

 
 
 

43 Urgent Item- Proposed Changes to the Council's Allocations Policy 
 
As included as a late supplementary item, with consent of the Chairman, the 
Committee was asked to consider the proposed changes to the Council’s 
Allocations Policy.  
 
Nicole Smith, Head of Housing Operations and People Services introduced the 
report, to allow the Committee to consider the recommendations to amend the 
Council’s Allocation Policy. It was explained that there had been a 9 week 
consultation from January 2017 to April 2017.  
 
There was a consensus that Recommendations 1-11 were non-contentious. 
However, Recommendation 12- ‘Options for a proposal to make the system 
more efficient’, (regarding definition of local connection) attracted criticism from 
some Members. Members expressed support for the Local Connection aspect 
of allocation. A number of options were presented and in a motion proposed by 
the Chairman, and seconded by the Vice-Chairman, the Committee passed a 
motion in support of Option Two – ‘Retain current wording but discontinue with 
the authorisation process and just conduct random checks’. 
 
Similarly, Recommendation 13- ‘Rural allocations of new build developments’, 
attracted discussion, having identified the problem of local families moving out 
of villages, due to no available housing, but then not being considered to have a 
housing need when properties become available in the said village at a later 
date, it was felt that this recommendation of the policy required amendment. 
The options associated with Recommendation 13 were presented to the 
Committee and in a motion proposed by the Chairman, and seconded by the 
Vice-Chairman, the Committee passed a motion in support of Option Four- 
‘Allow for bids from Band 1-4 and Open Market Register (OMR) at stage 1 on all 
allocations, but to include the allocations of all rural properties in Local Service 
Centres, Small and Large Villages, as described in the core strategy’. 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee agreed: 

1. Recommendations 1-11 
To endorse the recommendations to amend the council’s housing 
allocation policy and make a recommendation to Council to update 
the policy.  

2. Recommendation 12 
To endorse Option Two– Retain current wording but discontinue 
with the authorisation process and just conduct random checks 

3. Recommendation 13 
To endorse Option Four- Allow for bids from Band 1-4 and OMR at 
stage 1 on all allocations, but to include the allocations of all rural 
properties in Local Service Centres, Small and Large Villages, as 
described in the core strategy. 

 
 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

 
 
 

44 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as Tuesday 21 November 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
27 JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Diane Gooch, Irene Kohler, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Deborah Halik, 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Melody Thompson, Cllr Graham Wright and 
Cllr Peter Fuller (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ben Anderson, Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Johnny Kidney and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
  

 
30 Election of Chairman 

 
Will Oulton, Senior Democratic Services Officer, called for nominations for the 
position of Chairman. 
 
Councillor Mary Champion proposed Christine Crisp be appointed Chairman of 
the Health Select Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 
 
There being no other valid nominations, the Senior Democratic Services Officer 
announced: 
 
Councillor Christine Crip was elected Chairman of Health Select for the 
ensuing municipal year 2017/18. 
 

31 Election of Vice-Chairman 
 
Councillor Christine Crisp called for nominations for the position of Vice-
Chairman. 
 
Councillor Christine Crisp proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor 
Graham Wright that Councillor Gordon King be appointed Vice-Chairman of the 
Health Select Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 
 
There being no other nominations, it was announced that: 
 
Councillor Gordon King was elected Vice-Chairman of Health Select 
Committee for the ensuing municipal year 2017/18. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
32 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Peter Hutton (substituted by 
Councillor Peter Fuller) and Pip Ridout. 
 

33 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 7 March 2017 were considered. 
 
Resolve 
 
To approve for signing the minutes of the 7 March 2017 as a correct 
record. 
 

34 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Clare Cape declared that she works for NHS Digital but that this did 
not constitute a pecuniary interest in relation to any items on the agenda. 
 

35 Chairman's Announcements 
 
a) New Overview and Scrutiny task group opportunities 

 
The Chairman announced, that following the first meetings of three or our four 
select committees, an email had been sent to all non-executive members 
advertising vacancies on task groups and other ad hoc OS activities. These 
included new activities with no memberships in place as well as historic 
activities where one or two vacancies have arisen following the local elections. 
 
She encouraged all non-exec members to express their interest in participating 
in any of the activities they feel suited for, and asked them to contact the 
Scrutiny team for more information if they had any questions about any of the 
exercises. 

 
b) Healthwatch stakeholder representative 

 
Following the departure of Healthwatch’s former rep on the Committee, it was 
noted that Healthwatch would appoint their new rep at their Board meeting in 
July. In the meantime, Mr David Walker, one Healthwatch’s voluntary directors, 
was welcomed to the meeting. 
 

36 Public Participation 
 
Brian Warwick, Older People’s Champion, introduced himself to the Committee 
and welcomed opportunities to work with them in the future on issues such as 
how to best focus resources on prevention work to enable people to stay in their 
own homes. 

Page 50



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
37 Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme (HSC) 

 
The Chairman drew the meeting’s attention to the report which presented the 
recommendations of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee under the 
last council in regards to Committee’s work programme for the ensuing 
municipal year. 
 
It was noted that these recommendations were formed following a robust and 
well-established “legacy process”, which included a councillor workshop event 
in January, ‘end of term’ style reports to every select committee in the Spring, 
and, finally, discussion and agreement by Management Committee at its final 
meeting on 28th March.  
 
The Health Select Committee, was asked to consider the topics listed in the 
table from page 14 for inclusion in the new forward work programme. 
 
The meeting was also asked to note that a draft new council Business Plan 
which had been considered by the Overview &  Scrutiny Management 
Committee and that the final version would be brought to Full Council on 11 July 
for adoption. It was noted that the new Business Plan would be influential in 
shaping the work programme and that, following its adoption, there would be 
early discussions between the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen with Cabinet 
members, portfolio-holders and directors to gain a more informed understanding 
about Executive priorities. 
 
The Cabinet Member and Steve Maddern, Consultant in Public Health, are here 
to answer any questions on the report regarding the retrospective evaluation of  
the NHS Health Checks programme in Wiltshire. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion regarding 
the NHS Health Checks programme included: that the programme started in 
201, and that it was one of the first to meet this target; the structure of the 
programme; how anonymous case  studies and patients experience had been 
reviewed; how levels had continued to increase so that now record levels of 
people were involved; the impact of the health check on changing behaviour 
and the decreasing risk of cardiovascular issue; the percentage of take up and 
that male patients are underrepresented; that patients with Learning Difficulties 
are subject to separate annual healthchecks. 
 
In response to an issue raised by Cllr Gordon King, officers agreed to look to 
see how outcomes for those on the programme compared with those not 
participating in it. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officer for the report and looked forward to a further 
update in the future. 
 

Page 51



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Issues highlighted in the course of the discussion on the workplan included: that 
the Sustainable Transformation Programme remained a top priority; the on 
going issue of service integration reflected in the joint Director position to be 
appointed by the Council and the CCG; the possible inclusion of the  
Adult Transformation Programme; that local issues be addressed when the 
Ambulance Service present their update. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, the meeting; 
 

Resolved 

 

1. To consider the scheduled Committee activity agreed by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee; 
 

2. To note that a new council Business Plan will be brought to Full 
Council on 11 July, which will be influential in shaping the new OS 
forward work programme; 
 

3. To support early discussion between the Chairman and Vice-
Chairman with Cabinet members, CCG, portfolio-holders and 
directors, following adoption of the new council Business Plan, to 
gain a more informed understanding about Executive priorities, 
with outcomes reported back to Committee. 
 

4. To note evaluation of the Health Check Programme and to receive 
further report to include information on those not attending the 
programme. 

 
38 Urgent Items 

 
There were no urgent items. 
 

39 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting would at 3.00pm, Tuesday 5th September, County Hall, 
preceded by a briefing at 2.00pm. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 3.50 pm) 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01225) 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 52



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 19 
JULY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Derek Brown OBE (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr Tony Trotman, 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland and Cllr Matthew Dean (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr David Halik, Cllr Nick Murry, Cllr Tony Jackson and Cllr Howard Greenman 
  

 
38 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr James Sheppard who was 
substituted by Cllr Matthew Dean.  

39 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 21 June 2017, subject to the inclusion of apologies 
received from Cllr Derek Brown OBE. 

40 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis declared a non pecuniary interest because of his 
membership of both Warminster Town Council and Wilshire Council and having 
attended a number of events and functions organised by the applicant.  

41 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

42 Public Participation 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

43 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals and decisions was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

To note the update. 
44 15/11886/FUL - Land over Railway Line, End of Parsonage Way, 

Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 3LR - Construction of a Bridge Across the 
London to Bristol Railway Line, as an Extension to Parsonage Way so as 
to Serve the Proposed Housing Development at Rawlings Green 
 
Public Participation 
 
The following members of the public spoke against the proposal: 
 
Mr Chris Caswill, a local resident 
Cllr David Mannering, on behalf of Langley Burrell Parish Council 
 
The following member of the public spoke in support of the proposal: 
 
Mr Peter Frampton, the agent 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission should be granted, subject to conditions.  The Case Officer also 
reported late observations received.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Howard Greenman, the local Member, 
who suggested that consideration of the application was premature bearing in 
mind that there were site ownership issues still to be determined and also 
highway problems to be resolved at Junction 17 with increasing pressure of 
traffic flows.  He considered that the application should be deferred until these 
issues had been resolved. 
 
Members also heard the views of Cllr Nick Murry who also thought that 
consideration of this application was premature and also highlighted the traffic 
problems in the area. 
 

During discussion, the concerns raised by the Langley Burrell Parish Council 
were acknowledged. However, it was noted that even if the Neighbourhood 
Plan was afforded more weight it would have to accord with the Core Strategy 
and the Chippenham Site Allocations Plan (CSAP). The development was 
therefore acceptable and not in conflict with the Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
During discussion, although Members appreciated the highway concerns 
expressed, were mindful that work on Junction 17 was due to be completed by 
December 2017 whilst work on the provision of the bridge was not scheduled to 
start until Spring 2018. 
 
On the proposal of Cllr Tony Trotman, which was seconded by Cllr Fred 
Westmoreland, 

Page 54



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 

2 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
external materials and appearance of the development hereby 
approved has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: The proposed application contains insufficient 
information and the matter raised above require to be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an 
acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the 
character and appearance of the area. 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development full details of 
the structural design of the bridge, including cladding and 
exposed surface materials, arrangements for surface water 
drainage, lighting, lining and signing shall have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; the 
bridge shall be constructed in accordance with the approved 
details. 
REASON: To ensure a structurally and aesthetically acceptable 
design. 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the 
alignment of the road over the railway bridge, and the design 
speed to be used, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. The alignment shall be in accordance 
with the standards set out in Design Manual for Roads and 
Bridges. VOLUME 6 ROAD GEOMETRY. SECTION 1. PART 1. TD 
9/93, and have regard to DfT Circular 01/2013. 
REASON: To ensure that any future road across the bridge can 
be designed to a safe and appropriate speed standard, and be 
compatible with the bridge design. 
 

5 Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction 
Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be undertaken in accordance with the 

Page 55



 
 
 

 
 
 

approved CTMP. The CTMP shall include, but not be limited to, 
details of the access haul routes to the eastern side of the 
railway line, the arrangements for the main site compound 
(including access thereto and manoeuvring of lorries), craneage 
arrangements and timings for deliveries. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure that 
inappropriate haul routes to the site are avoided. 
 

6 The bridge, when completed, shall remain barriered to vehicles 
unless and until permitted development on the east side of the 
bridge requires vehicular access over the bridge. 
REASON: In order to avoid unwanted encampment or parking in 
an area where a formal turning facility will not be provided, and 
in the interests of highway safety. 
 

7 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 

 location and current canopy spread of all existing trees 

and hedgerows on the land; 

 full details of any to be retained, together with measures 

for their protection in the course of development; 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant 

species, supply and planting sizes and planting densities;  

 retained historic landscape features and proposed 

restoration, where relevant. 

 details and location of any new or replacement trees, of a 

size and species and in a location to be agreed in writing 

with the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted in 

accordance with BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), BS4043 and 

BS4428 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to 
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning 
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the 
Local Planning Authority before development commences in 
order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

8 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding season following the first use of the bridge or the 
substantial completion of the bridge whichever is the sooner;  

Page 56



 
 
 

 
 
 

All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and 
stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority.  
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
PF/9517.01- Site Location Plan-  Received 08 December 2015 
CB-001- Proposed Plan- Received 08 December 2015 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission 
does not include any separate permission which may be needed 
to erect a structure in the vicinity of a public sewer.  Such 
permission should be sought direct from Thames Water Utilities 
Ltd / Wessex Water Services Ltd. Buildings are not normally 
allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer although this may 
vary depending on the size, depth, strategic importance, 
available access and the ground conditions appertaining to the 
sewer in question. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not 
affect any private property rights and therefore does not 
authorise the carrying out of any work on land outside their 
control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the 
applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such works 
commence. 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site 
boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party 
Wall Act 1996. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to 
receive material samples. Please deliver material samples to 
site and inform the Planning Officer where they are to be found. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by 
compliance with Building Regulations or any other reason must 
first be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority 

Page 57



 
 
 

 
 
 

before commencement of work. 
 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The proposed bridge will be subject to a legal agreement in 
respect of its adoption as highway and its future maintenance; 
the agreement will be made under the provisions of s38 and 
s278 of Highways Act, and the agreement should be concluded 
prior to the commencement of the works. The agreement will 
include a specific commitment to meet the costs of remediating 
unacceptable differential settlement at the bridge approaches, 
for a period of at least ten years. 
 

  
 

       
45 17/01124/OUT - Land South & South East of Tascroft Court & North of 

Cannimore Track, Tascroft Court, Warminster, Wiltshire, BA12 7RA - 
Outline planning application (with all matters reserved except for access) 
for a new hotel resort (comprising Class C1, D1 and D2 uses) and to 
include a water park, business conference facility and an immersive 
animal experience; landscaping; highways infrastructure including car 
parking, new pedestrian and vehicular access and servicing 
arrangements; plant; associated development; and requiring: the 
stopping up, creation and improvement of footpaths, improvements to 
bridleways, site clearance works, the installation of new services and 
infrastructure, earthworks and engineering works, and other ancillary 
works and activities. 
 
Public Participation 
 
The following members of the public spoke in support of the proposal: 
 
Ms Mandy Patterson, Acting Chief Executive Officer, Inspire 
Mr Bob Montgomery, Chief Executive Officer, Longleat Enterprises Ltd, the 
applicant 
Mr Geoffrey Wheating, Lead Consultant for Public Consultation, Longleat 
Enterprises Ltd, the applicant 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission should be granted, subject to conditions and to no objections being 
raised by Highways England.   
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Tony Jackson, the local Member, who 
supported the application but sought clarification regarding the proposed 
footpath diversion.  The Case Officer explained the proposed diversion which 

Page 58



 
 
 

 
 
 

would be subject to a separate procedure as set out in Section 257 of the Town 
& Country Planning Act 1990.  
 
During discussion, Members referred to the site visit held immediately prior to 
this meeting and several of them stated that there was a specific need for a 
large conference facility in Wiltshire.  However, some concern was expressed 
about traffic management issues and it was noted that the Council’s Highways 
Engineer raised no objections, subject to conditions and a planning agreement, 
but a response was still awaited from Highways England.    
 
On the proposal of Cllr Andrew Davis, which was seconded by Cllr Fred 
Westmoreland, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That subject to Highways England raising no objections, the Associate Director 
Economic Development and Planning be authorised to grant planning 
permission using delegated powers, subject to the conditions set out below and 
any additional and reasonable conditions required by Highways England.   

 
In the event that Highways England objects, the Associate Director 
Economic Development and Planning be authorised to negotiate minor 
amendments, and using delegated powers, grant planning permission 
with or without additional and reasonable conditions.  In the event that the 
objection can only be addressed through non-minor amendments or that 
the objection cannot be addressed at all, the application be referred back 
to the Strategic Planning Committee. 
 
Conditions 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before 

the expiration of five years from the date of this permission, or 
before the expiration of two years from the date of approval of 
the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the 
later. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 No development shall commence on site until details of the 
following matters (in respect of which approval is expressly 
reserved) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority:  
 
(a) The scale of the development; 
(b) The layout of the development; 
(c) The external appearance of the development; 
(d) The landscaping of the site; 
 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

Page 59



 
 
 

 
 
 

approved details. 
 
REASON:  The application was made for outline planning 
permission and is granted to comply with the provisions of 
Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and 
Article 5 (1) of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. 
 

3 An application for the approval of all of the reserved matters 
shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before the 
expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  
 

4 The details of the 'layout of the development' to be submitted 
under condition no. 2 shall be broadly in accordance with the 
Proposed Land Use Plan (no. PL02 (rev 1)) dated 24 March 2017. 
 
REASON:  To clarify the terms of the planning permission and to 
accord with the documentation that supported the application, 
this in the interests of amenity. 
 

5 The details of the 'scale of the development' to be submitted 
under condition no. 2 shall be strictly in accordance with the 
Scale and Massing Plan (no. PL03 (Rev 1)) dated 24 March 2017.  
In particular, buildings/structures to be erected in 'Zone B' 
shown on the Plan shall not exceed 22m in height and project 
above 184m AOD; and buildings/structures in 'Zone A' shall not 
exceed 8m in height and project above 188m AOD. 
 
REASON:  To clarify the terms of the planning permission and to 
accord with the documentation that supported the application, 
this in the interests of amenity. 
 

6 The details of the 'layout of the development' and the 
'appearance of the development' to be submitted under condition 
no. 2 shall include plans of all proposed earthworks including 
screen bunds.  The details shall include the proposed grading 
and mounding of land areas and the levels and contours to be 
formed, and the nature and source of the material, showing the 
relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and 
surrounding landform. The development shall not be first 
occupied by guests or visitors until such time as the earthworks 
have been carried out in accordance with the details approved.    
 
REASON: Earthworks and screen bunds are proposed but there 
is insufficient detail in the outline application to enable approval 
of the details at this stage.  Detailed approval is required at the 
reserved matters stage in the interests of ensuring the amenities 

Page 60



 
 
 

 
 
 

of the site and surroundings are safeguarded. 
 

7 The details of the 'layout of the development' to be submitted 
under condition no. 2 shall include internal vehicular accesses, 
turning spaces and parking provision in accordance with the 
standards set out in the Wiltshire Council Local Transport Plan 
2011-2026, or any plan replacing this.  No part of the 
development shall be first occupied by guests or first used by 
visitors until the internal accesses, turning areas and parking 
spaces have been completed in accordance with the approved 
plans. The areas shall be maintained for their planned purposes 
at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

8 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first 
occupied or first used by paying guests or visitors until the 
'means of access to the site' has been completed and all 
associated works carried out fully in accordance with the details 
set out in drawing no 0745-010 Rev C by KTC dated 17/01/17 
('Proposed Junction Improvements for Folly Lane/A362 
Junction') and drawing no. 0745-009 Rev A by KTC dated 
17/01/17 ('Proposed Entrance Layout from Folly Lane') forming 
part of the Design and Access Statement by Longleat 
Enterprises Ltd dated February 2017, and drawing no. 'Figure A2' 
by KTC dated 04/17 ('Potential Junction Improvements to Cley 
Hill Roundabout').   
 
REASON:  To accord with the terms of the planning application, 
and to ensure highway safety and maintain the free flow of traffic 
on the wider highway network. 
 

9 Prior to Folly Lane being used by any construction traffic 
associated with the development hereby approved, a survey of 
the whole route of Folly Lane to be used in connection with the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with a scheme 
which shall have been first submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority.  The scheme shall make 
provision for survey techniques which allow for the local 
planning authority to retain both a photographic record of the 
carriageway and roadside verges (hard and soft) and a non-
invasive structural test of the integrity of the road. The results of 
surveys shall be provided to the local planning authority for 
ratification within 1 month of completion. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety, and to ensure that 
damage caused by construction traffic can be identified, on a 
comparative basis, and addressed through appropriate highway 
law. 
 

Page 61



 
 
 

 
 
 

10 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation or of any of the buildings 
by guests or visitors, or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge planting 
shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from 
damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 
period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting 
season with others of a similar size and species, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  All 
hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape 
features. 
 

11 The 'multi-purpose entertainment and immersive animal 
experience' elements of the development hereby approved shall 
function as ancillary to the hotel and conference facilities only 
and shall not operate as standalone destinations / visitor 
attractions in their own right. 
 
REASON:  To accord with the terms of the application, and to 
safeguard the amenities of the locality and to avoid 
inconvenience being caused by additional traffic to users of the 
wider highway network. 
 

12 Prior to the first use by paying guests or visitors of the buildings 
to be erected in the ‘multi-purpose entertainment and associated 
parkland, associated development area’ on the Proposed Land 
Use Plan, an Event Management Plan for this area shall be 
submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.  
The Event Management Plan will set out in generic terms the 
types of events that will be held, and that will not be held, in that 
area.  For those to be held it will define how the events will be 
managed, this in terms of controlling numbers of guests/visitors 
at the events and the management of those guests before, during 
and after the events.  Thereafter events at the site shall be 
managed in accordance with the approved Event Management 
Plan. 
 
REASON:  The application contains insufficient information to 
finalise an Event Management Plan at this time.  The Plan is 
required to safeguard the amenities of the locality and to avoid 
inconvenience being caused by additional traffic to users of the 
wider highway network. 

Page 62



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

13 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence 
on site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be 
brought on to site for the purpose of development, until a Tree 
Protection Plan showing the exact position of each tree/s and 
their protective fencing in accordance with British Standard 
5837: 2012: "Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and 
Construction -Recommendations"; has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and;  
 
The protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the 
approved details. The protective fencing shall remain in place for 
the entire development phase and until all equipment, machinery 
and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Such 
fencing shall not be removed or breached during construction 
operations. 
 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor 
shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in 
accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 
topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance 
British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" or 
arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in 
the interest of good arboricultural practise. 
 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, 
another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and 
species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the 
canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and 
no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be 
mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any tree or 
group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining land. 
 
[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is 
to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars; and the paragraphs above shall have effect until the 
expiration of five years]. 
 
REASON:  To safeguard and protect trees to be retained in the 
interests of amenity. 
  

14 A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before first occupation of the development. The 
content of the LEMP shall include, but not necessarily be limited 
to, the following information: 

Page 63



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
a) Details of the Management Company responsible for 

implementing the plan  
b) Consolidation of all mitigation elements relevant to 

the LEMP from the Ecological Impact Assessment 
Ecosulis, February 2017, Version 8 

c) The extent of all ecological and landscape features 
to be managed located up on a scaled plan 

d) Aims of management for each feature 
e) Management prescriptions for each feature  
f) Monitoring, including monitoring of dormouse 

boxes  
g) 5 year work schedule capable of being rolled 

forward 
h) Mechanism for reviewing the plan 
 

REASON: To ensure the long-term management of protected and 
priority habitats and other landscape and ecological features, 
and to maintain and enhance these habitats and features in 
perpetuity. 
 

15 No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing 
the type of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, 
illumination levels and light spillage details have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
Illumination levels shall not exceed those specified for 
Environmental Zone 1 as set out by the Institute of Lighting 
Engineers in their publication "Guidance Notes for the Reduction 
of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)".  The approved lighting shall be 
installed and shall be maintained in accordance with the 
approved details and no additional external lighting shall be 
installed without further approval under this condition.  
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to 
minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the 
development site. 
 

16 (a) Prior to first use of the hotel, the water park and the 
conference facilities by paying guests and/or visitors an 
Operational Noise Management Plan (ONMP) and an Event 
Noise Management Plan (ENMP) for these elements shall be 
submitted to the local planning authority for approval in 
writing.  Thereafter these elements of the development shall 
be managed strictly in accordance with the terms and 
limitations set out in the approved Plans. 

 
(b) Prior to commencement of the immersive animal experience 

elements of the development hereby approved an 
Operational Noise Management Plan (ONMP) for these 
elements shall be submitted to the local planning authority 

Page 64



 
 
 

 
 
 

for approval in writing.  Thereafter these elements of the 
development shall be managed strictly in accordance with 
the terms and limitations set out in the approved Plan. 

 
(c) Notwithstanding (a) and (b) above, at all times all building 

services, plant and machinery forming any part of the 
development shall be so sited and designed in order to 
achieve a Level of -10dB below the lowest measured 
background noise level, determined to be LA90 (15min)dB at 
the nearest noise sensitive receptor.  For the purposes of 
this condition, measurements and assessments shall be 
carried out in accordance with BS4142:2014. 

 
REASON:  In the interests of amenity. 
 

17 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site, incorporating 
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first brought into use or first occupied 
until surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance 
with the approved scheme.  
 
REASON:  The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order that 
the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to 
ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 

18 Disposal of foul water from the site shall be strictly in 
accordance with off-site network 'Option 1' or ‘Option 4’ as set 
out in the Drainage Strategy (revision 1) by Burohappold 
Engineering dated 19 June 2017.  
 
REASON: To accord with the terms of the application and to 
ensure adequate capacity in the wider foul water network. 
 

19 No development shall commence on site (including demolition, 
ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
CEMP shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the 
following: 
 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction 

activities 
b) Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones' 
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive 

working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during 
construction (may be provided as a set of method 
statements) 

Page 65



 
 
 

 
 
 

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm 
to biodiversity features 

e) The times during construction when specialists ecologists 
need to be present on site to oversee works 

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk 

of works (ECoW) or similarly competent person(s) 
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning 

signs. 
i) On-going monitoring, including compliance checks by a 

competent person(s) during construction and immediately 
post-completion of construction works. 

 
The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented 
throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
A report prepared by a competent person(s), certifying that the 
required mitigation and/or compensation measures identified in 
the CEMP have been completed to their satisfaction, shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 3 months of the 
date of substantial completion of the development or at the end 
of the next available planting season, whichever is the sooner. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and 
compensation for protected species, priority species and priority 
habitats. 
 

20 No development shall commence on site until a construction 
management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The plan shall include details of 
the measures that will be taken to reduce and manage the 
emission of noise, vibration and dust during the construction 
phase of the development. It shall include details of the 
following:  

 

 The movement of construction vehicles; 

 The cutting or other processing of building materials on 
site; 

 Wheel washing and vehicle wash down facilities; 

 The transportation and storage of waste and building 
materials; 

 The recycling of waste materials (if any) 

 The loading and unloading of equipment and materials 

 The location and use of generators and temporary site 
accommodation 

 Pile driving (If it is to be within 200m of residential 
properties)  
 

Page 66



 
 
 

 
 
 

The construction/demolition phase of the development will be 
carried out fully in accordance with the construction 
management plan at all times. 
 
REASON:  To safeguard amenity. 
 

21 No construction or demolition work using machinery or power 
tools shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays or outside 
the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 
on Saturdays.  
 
REASON:  To safeguard amenity. 
 

22 In the event of a stopping-up or diversion order being made in 
relation to right of way WARM66, within 12 months of it being 
stopped-up or diverted the proposed separate 'new' right of way 
between Folly Lane and WARM1 shall be provided in accordance 
with a scheme to be first submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority.  Thereafter, the new right of way will 
become a definitive right of way and retained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON:  To accord with the terms of the planning permission 
and ensure continued and beneficial connectivity within the local 
rights of way network. 
 

23 During construction and thereafter air quality management 
controls shall be implemented in accordance with the 'mitigation 
measures' set out in the Air Quality Assessment report by 
Burohappold Engineering dated Feb 2017 and forming part of the 
planning application. 
 
REASON:  To comply with the terms of the application and to 
ensure existing air quality levels are maintained.  
 

24 The development hereby approved shall be constructed and 
thereafter operated strictly in accordance with the 'Travel Plan 
Measures' set out in the Framework Travel Plan by Key Transport 
Consultants Ltd dated February 2017 and accompanying the 
planning application.  Thereafter the Travel Plan Measures shall 
be monitored and reviewed in accordance with the 'Monitoring 
and Review' programme also set out in the Framework Travel 
Plan; and results of surveys and copies of the monitoring reports 
shall be made available to the local planning authority when 
requested.  Should the reports recommend changes to the 
Framework Travel Plan then such changes shall be first agreed 
in writing with the local planning authority prior to 
implementation. 
 
REASON:  To accord with the terms of the application, and in the 
interests of highway safety and transport sustainability. 

Page 67



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

25 No part of the hotel building hereby approved shall be 
commenced until evidence that the development is registered 
with a BREEAM certification body and a pre-assessment report 
(or design stage certificate with interim rating if available) has 
been submitted indicating that the development can achieve the 
“very good” BREEAM standard (or any such equivalent national 
measure of sustainable building which replaces that scheme).  

No building shall be occupied until a final Certificate has been 
issued certifying that the “very good” BREEAM standard (or any 
such equivalent national measure of sustainable building which 
replaces that scheme) has been achieved for the development. 

REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable 
development set out in policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.  

26 No development approved by this planning permission shall 
commence until a remediation strategy to deal with the risks 
associated with contamination of the site has been submitted to, 
and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. This 
strategy will include the following components: 
 

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 
a. all previous uses; 
b. potential contaminants associated with those uses; 
c. a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, 

pathways and receptors; and 
d. potentially unacceptable risks arising from 

contamination at the site. 
 

A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide 
information for a detailed assessment of the risk to all 
receptors that may be affected, including those off site. 
 

2. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk 
assessment referred to in (2) and, based on these, an 
options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full 
details of the remediation measures required and how they 
are to be undertaken. 
 

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be 
collected in order to demonstrate that the works set out in 
the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and 
identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for 
contingency action. 

 
Any changes to these components require the written consent of 
the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented 

Page 68



 
 
 

 
 
 

as approved. 
 
REASON:  To ensure that the development is not put at 
unacceptable risk from, or adversely affected by, unacceptable 
levels water pollution in line with paragraph 109 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 

27 
 

The details reserved by this planning permission (the 'reserved 
matters') shall incorporate the ecology mitigation measures set 
out in the Ecological Impact Assessment (Issue 8 - 19 June 2017) 
by Ecosulis and forming part of the application. 
 
REASON:  To safeguard ecology interests. 
 

28 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
PL01 (rev 0) dated 10/01/17 - Site Location Plan 
PL02 (rev 1) dated 24/03/17 - Land Use Parameter Plan 
PL03 (rev 1) dated 24/03/17 - Scale and Massing Plan 
PL04 (rev 1) dated 04/04/17 - Access & Movement Parameter Plan 
(footpaths) 
PL05 (rev 1) dated 24/03/17 - Access & Movement Parameter Plan 
(vehicles) 
PL06 (rev 1) dated 24/03/17 - Indicative Master Plan 
0745-007A dated 17/01/17 - Proposed Entrance Layout from Folly 
Lane 
0745-009A dated 17/01/17 - Proposed Entrance Layout from Folly 
Lane 
Fig A2 dated 04/17 - Potential Junction Improvements to Cley Hill 
Roundabout 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

29 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Definitive public right of way 'WARM66' crosses the site.  No 
works affecting this right of way and/or no stopping-up of this 
right of way may commence unless or until a stopping-up or 
diversion order has come into effect.  The applicant must apply 
separately to Wiltshire Council for such an order, and it cannot 
be presumed that the granting of this planning permission will 
automatically be followed by the making of the order.   
 
If Wiltshire Council makes an order and any objections to it 
cannot be resolved, the matter will be referred to the Secretary of 
State for determination.  The Planning Inspectorate will make the 
determination on behalf of the Secretary of State. 
 

Page 69



 
 
 

 
 
 

30 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
may represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is 
determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued 
notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional 
Information Form has not already been submitted, please submit 
it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please 
submit the relevant form so that we can determine your 
eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of 
Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to 
commencement of development.  Should development 
commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the 
local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not 
apply and full payment will be required in full and with immediate 
effect. Should you require further information or to download the 
CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website  - 
 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/c
ommunityinfrastructurelevy.  
 

31 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
may represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is 
determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued 
notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an Additional 
Information Form has not already been submitted, please submit 
it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please 
submit the relevant form so that we can determine your 
eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of 
Liability must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to 
commencement of development.  Should development 
commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by the 
local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not 
apply and full payment will be required in full and with immediate 
effect. Should you require further information or to download the 
CIL forms please refer to the Council's Website  
 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/c
ommunityinfrastructurelevy.  

 

46 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 70



 
 
 

 
 
 

To note that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 16 August 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge.  

47 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.30 am - 1.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 13 
SEPTEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe (Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Ernie Clark, 
Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Stewart Dobson, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, Cllr James Sheppard, Cllr Tony Trotman and 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
  

 
48 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Derek Brown OBE. 

49 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19 July 
2017. 

50 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 

51 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 

52 Public Participation 
 
The questions submitted by Cllr Ernie Clark and the responses included in the 
agenda papers were noted.  
 
It was also noted that a supplementary question submitted had been recently 
submitted as follows:- 
 

“On what basis therefore can the statement ‘At this stage, it is not envisaged 
that any sites will be listed in Part 2 of the Register’ be justified?  Does this not 
clearly show the predetermination of this LPA against any brownfield sites 
especially within the Trowbridge Community Area?” 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Head of Development Management responded by stating that sites could 
only be listed in Part 2 of the Brown Fields Register if agreed and granted in 
principle by the Council.  There was a detailed process to be undertaken and it 
had to be demonstrated that such areas of land were available, achievable and 
suitable for residential development of a minimum size.  Furthermore, a 
consultation and publicity exercise similar to that of a planning application had 
to be carried out at the Council’s expense.  It would not be feasible for this to be 
undertaken by the publication deadline of 31 December 2017. 
 
 
The rules of public participation were noted. 

53 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
An update on planning appeals and decisions was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 

54 17/03219/REM - Land at Junction of Blenheim Road And Salisbury Road, 
Marlborough, SN8 4FD - Construction of 168 new 1,2 3,4 & 5 bedroom 
dwellings (to include 67 (40%) affordable homes) and associated 
highways and engineering works, landscaping and open space 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr David Pocock, a local resident, spoke in opposition to the application. 
 
Cllr Peter Cairns, representing Marlborough Town Council, spoke in support of 
the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that reserved 
matters consent be granted.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Stewart Dobson, an adjoining local 
Member, who stated that whilst he reluctantly accepted the need for additional 
housing in Marlborough, did express concern regarding resulting increased 
traffic and air quality. He also drew attention to the urgent need for a second 
hotel in Marlborough.  The Head of Development Management informed the 
Committee that both resultant traffic volumes and air quality had been 
addressed as part of the outline application and no problems had been raised 
by appropriate technical officers.  
 
Cllr Dobson also questioned why public access could not be allowed to the 
Ecological Mitigation Area and whether controlled access could be permitted. 

Page 74



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Council’s Ecologist explained the need for the ecological mitigation area 
and outlined the reasons why this area needed to remain private. She did, 
however, indicate that allowing controlled access for educational or research 
purposes was a good idea.    
 
After some discussion, on the proposal of Cllr Andrew Davis, which was 
seconded by Cllr Ernie Clark, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant reserved matters consent, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans and 

documents:  

 

Drawing no.RHSW.5333.SL001 Rev A (Site Location Plan), 

received 12.04.17 

Drawing no.PL-03 Rev H (Planning Layout), received 

30.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-04 (Materials Plan), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-05 (Affordable Distribution Plan), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-06 (Storey Heights Plan), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-07 Rev A (Enclosure and Surface Materials 

Plan), received 22.08.17; 

Drawing no.PL-08 (Presentation Layout), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.SS-01 (Site Sections and Street Scenes), 

received 03.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.RED20987-03C Sheets 1 to 10 (Tree Protection 

Plan), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.RED20987 10 (Landscape Masterplan), received 

03.04.17;  

Drawing no,RED20987 11C Sheets 1 to 9 (Landscape 

Proposals), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no,RED20987 15C Sheets 1 to 5 (Open Space 

Proposals), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.RED20987-20C (Play Area Proposal), received 

30.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.P17136-01 Sheet 1 Issue B (Adoptable Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-01 Sheet 2 Issue B (Adoptable Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Page 75



 
 
 

 
 
 

Drawing no.P17136-02 Sheet 1 Issue B (Private Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-02 Sheet 2 Issue B (Private Area 

Lighting Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.P17136-03 Issue B (Private Area Lighting 

Environmental Calc), received 03.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.440-P-100 Rev B (Drainage Strategy), received 

30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-01 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

1 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-02 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

2 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-03 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

3 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-200-04 Rev B (Engineering Layout Sheet 

4 of 4), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-300-01 Rev A (Road Longitudinal 

Sections Sheet 1 of 2), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-300-02 Rev A (Road Longitudinal 

Sections Sheet 2 of 2), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-400-01 Rev B (Refuse Vehicle Tracking), 

received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-400-02 Rev B (Fire Tender Vehicle 

Tracking), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-500 Rev D (Infiltration Basin Layout and 

Cross Sections), received 30.08.17; 

Drawing no.440-P-600 Rev B (Flood Exceedance Routing), 

received 30.08.17; 

 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-01 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-02 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-03 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Ludlow-04 (House type Ludlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Warwick-01 (House type Warwick), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Warwick-02 (House type Warwick), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Amberley-01 (House type Amberley), 

Page 76



 
 
 

 
 
 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Amberley-02 (House type Amberley), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Sherbourne-01 (House type Sherbourne), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Sherbourne-02 (House type Sherbourne), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Marlow-01 (House type Marlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Marlow-02 (House type Marlow), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Shaftesbury-01 (House type Shaftesbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Shaftesbury -02 (House type Shaftesbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Camebridge-01 (House type Camebridge), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Camebridge-02 (House type Camebridge), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Canterbury-01 (House type Canterbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Canterbury-02 (House type Canterbury), 

received 03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Henley-01 (House type Henley), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT- Henley -02 (House type Henley), received 

03.08.17; 

Drawing no.HT-Richmond-01 Rev A (House type 

Richmond), received 22.0 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 

proper planning. 

 

2 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 

landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 

seeding season following the first occupation of any dwelling 

or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority; All shrubs, trees and hedge 

planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 

protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or 

plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or 

become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 

the next planting season with others of a similar size and 

Page 77



 
 
 

 
 
 

species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 

planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried 

out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

occupation of any part of the development or in accordance 

with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important 

landscape features. 

 

 

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict 

accordance with the Arboricultural Impact Assessment & 

Method Statement by ACD Environmental (ref RED20987aia-

ams / Rev C: 29.08.2017).  

 

REASON: In order that the development is undertaken in an 

acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to 

ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of 

visual amenity. 

 

4 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence 

on site, and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be 

brought on to site for the purpose of development until the tree 

protective fencing has be erected in accordance with the 

approved details. The protective fencing shall remain in place 

for the entire development phase and until all equipment, 

machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the 

site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached during 

construction operations. 

 

No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, 

nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in 

accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 

topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance 

British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" 

or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to 

be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 

 

If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, 

another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a size and 

species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in 

Page 78



 
 
 

 
 
 

writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

 

No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of 

the canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining 

land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals 

shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of any 

tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining 

land. 

 

[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which 

is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 

particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the 

expiration of five years from the first occupation or the 

completion of the development, whichever is the later]. 

 

REASON: In order that the development is undertaken in an 

acceptable manner, to enable the Local Planning Authority to 

ensure the retention of trees on the site in the interests of 

visual amenity. 

 

5 Notwithstanding the details of earthworks shown on drawings 

number.RED20987 15C Sheets 1 to 5 (Open Space Proposals), 

no development shall commence on the residential part of the 

site until full details of the proposal to dispose of waste soils in 

the wildflower meadow / ecological mitigation area to the south 

of the site, including a soil management strategy and disposal 

plan, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. These details shall include existing 

and proposed cross-sections and contour plans, and the 

nature and source of the material. The development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the details approved under this 

condition. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and to ensure sub soil and top soil are properly 

separated and layered during any necessary re-profiling/re-

contouring of land to protect the integrity of existing soil 

structure.  

 

NOTE: The surplus soils should be evenly distributed across 

Page 79



 
 
 

 
 
 

the site to maintain the character of the existing valley slope.  

 

6 No development shall commence on the residential part of the 

site until a programme and timetable for the delivery of the 

wildflower meadow / ecological mitigation area to the south of 

the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out 

in accordance with the details approved under this condition. 

 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order 

that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 

to ensure adequate mitigation and compensation for protected 

species, priority species and priority habitats. 

 

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), the garages hereby 

permitted shall not be converted to habitable accommodation. 

 

REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking 

provision, in the interests of highway safety. 

 

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), there shall be no 

additions/extensions or external alterations to any building 

forming part of the development hereby permitted. 

 

REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to 

enable the Local Planning Authority to consider individually 

whether planning permission should be granted for 

additions/extensions or external alterations. 

 

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 

Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 

2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that 

Order with or without modification), no window, dormer 

window or rooflight, other than those shown on the approved 

plans, shall be inserted in the roofslopes of the dwellings 

hereby permitted. 

Page 80



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

REASON:  In the interests of residential amenity and privacy 

and to protect the character of the built environment.  

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the contents of the 

consultation response from the Council's Public Right of Way 

Officer, which can be viewed on the Council's website at 

www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

Your attention is also drawn to the conditions imposed on the 

outline planning permission reference 15/02026/OUT and dated 

29 July 2016.  

 

 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  

This approval of matters reserved refers only to condition 2 of 

outline planning permission 15/02026/OUT for the residential 

part of the site only, but does not by itself constitute a planning 

permission. 

 

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 

The applicant is requested to permit controlled access into the 
private ecological mitigation area i.e. accompanied access for 
educational or research purposes. This issue should be 
addressed within the Ecological Management Plan which 
needs to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority in accordance with the requirement of 
condition 13 of the outline planning permission.   

  
 

  
 
  

55 17/02371/FUL - Land to the rear of The Paddock, Heath Lane, Startley, 
Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 5HH - Change of use of land to a residential 
Gypsy and Traveller caravan site, consisting of 3 permanent pitches, 
including construction of utility/dayroom and associated works 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Mike Lewis, a local resident, spoke in opposition to the application. 
 
Dr Murdoch, the agent, spoke in favour of the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation by the Head of Development 
Management which set out the main issues in respect of the application.  He 

Page 81

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 
 
 

 
 
 

explained that since the preparation of the report, it had been discovered that 
the site was directly accessed from a bridleway where no public vehicular rights 
existed. Thus there was doubt that the site could be served by a safe and 
convenient vehicular access and therefore the recommendation for approval 
was now being withdrawn.  
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as listed above, expressing their 
views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Great Somerford Parish Council objecting to 
the proposal which were read out by Cllr Toby Sturgis, the local Member.  Cllr 
Sturgis then expressed his own concerns that doubling the size of the gypsy 
and traveller site would be a disproportionate addition for such a small rural 
community. This expansion in size would also have implications with regards to 
landscape impact. He went on to explain that he had met with the residents of 
Startley who had serious concerns about the proposal. They drew attention to 
the lack of a safe vehicular access to the site and that vehicles were likely to be 
parked in green open space. There was no evidence that soakaways would 
work efficiently in view of the clay soil and furthermore the septic tank did not 
function correctly, foul water discharging into the lane. There was no mains 
water supply to the site.    
 
During discussion, Members considered in detail the concerns that had been 
raised. 
  
On the proposal of Cllr Tony Trotman which was seconded by Cllr Christopher 
Newbury, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons:-    
 
The site lies in a rural location outside of the defined limits of 
development for any nearby settlement. The relevant development plan 
policy for assessing proposals for new gypsy and traveller pitches in 
such locations is CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. When assessed 
against this policy, the proposal conflicts with criteria (ii); (iii); (vi) and 
(viii) of CP47. In relation to criteria (ii), the site is directly accessed from a 
bridleway where no public vehicular rights exist and therefore the site is 
not served by a safe and convenient vehicular access; in relation to 
criteria (iii), the site is not supplied with essential services; in relation to 
criteria (vi), the proposal would have an unacceptable impact on the 
character and appearance of the landscape, being seen in conjunction 
with the adjacent authorised site and creating an unacceptable erosion of 
the countryside scene; in relation to criteria (viii), the development would 
result in a conjoined gypsy and traveller site of 5 pitches in a rural 
location that is out of scale and character in this situation where the 
closest settlement at Startley is so small that it is not recognised in the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy as a settlement where even infill development is 

Page 82



 
 
 

 
 
 

permitted. The Council does not consider that there are any material 
circumstances in this case that outweigh this conflict with the 
development plan. 

56 16/11850/FUL - Land At White Horse View, Hisomley, Dilton Marsh, 
Wiltshire - Application for the change of use of land to accommodate two. 
additional Gypsy pitches comprising, 2 mobile homes, 2 touring caravans, 
2 dayrooms and associated works 
 
Public Participation 
 
Dr Simon Ruston, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr Francis Morland, representing Dilton Marsh Parish Council, spoke in 
opposition to the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jerry Wickham, the local Member, who 
expressed a number of concerns regarding this application.  He raised concerns 
regarding:- 
 

 The need for additional pitches in this area 
 

  Its location in or near to existing settlements within reasonable distance of 
a range of local services and community facilities, in particular schools and 
essential health services. 

 

 The need for the site to be served by a safe and convenient vehicular and 
pedestrian access and that the proposal would not result in serious harm 
to other road users. 

 

 The need for the proposal not to have an unacceptable impact on the 
character and appearance of the landscape and the amenity of 
neighbouring properties, and was sensitively designed to mitigate any 
impact on its surroundings. 
 

After some discussion, on the proposal of Cllr Fred Westmoreland, which was 
seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis,  
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

Page 83



 
 
 

 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
Location and Block Plan 2361/1 REV B received on 5 June 
2017; and 
Proposed Dayroom Plan and Elevations registered on 19 
January 2017.  
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 No development shall commence on site until the details of 
the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs of the 
'Day Rooms' have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient 
information to enable this matter to be considered prior 
to granting planning permission. 
 

4 Prior to the commencement of development a scheme of 
hard and soft landscaping shall have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the 
details of which shall include:- 
- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, 
supply and planting sizes and planting densities;  
- details of hard and soft surfacing with on-site parking and 
turning provision. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority before development commences in order 
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, 
to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important 
landscape features. 
 

5 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and 
seeding season following the first occupation of the site or 
the completion of the development whichever is the sooner;  
All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free 
from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin 
and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five 

Page 84



 
 
 

 
 
 

years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the local planning authority.  All hard 
landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important 
landscape features. 
 

6 The access to the existing and new sites shall be maintained 
in accordance with Condition 4 to the Planning Inspector’s 
Appeal Decision issued under reference No, 
APP/F3925/C/08/2088696 dated 23 February 2009.  
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

7 The site shall not be permanently occupied by persons other 
than gypsies and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of 
Planning policy for traveller sites, August 2015.  
 
REASON: Planning permission has only been granted on the 
basis of the provision of accommodation for gypsies and 
travellers and it is necessary to keep the site available to 
meet that need.  
 

8 Occupation and use of the Mobile home and touring caravan 
hereby permitted for each pitch shall be limited solely to and 
by close family members of the occupants of the application 
site. Close family members defined as dependents, sons, 
daughters and grandchildren. 
 
REASON: Planning permission has only been granted on the 
basis of a demonstrated unmet need for accommodation for 
gypsies and travellers and it is therefore necessary to keep 
the site available to meet that need. 
 

9 There shall be no more than three permanent pitches on the 
application site, including the existing pitch. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenity 
of occupants of the site. 
 

10 No more than one commercial vehicle shall be kept on each 
of the three sites for use by the occupiers of the caravans 
hereby permitted, and they shall not exceed 3.5 tonnes in 
weight and no commercial activity or use, including the 

Page 85



 
 
 

 
 
 

storage of materials and waste, shall be carried out on the 
site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity, highway 
safety and the character of the countryside. 
 

11 There shall be no more than two caravans as defined in the 
Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960 and the 
caravans Sites Act 1968 on each of the three sites, of which 
no more than one shall be a static caravan or mobile home 
and no more than one shall be a touring caravan, shall be 
stationed on the site at any time. 
 
REASON: It is important for the local planning authority to 
retain control over the number of caravans on the site in 
order to safeguard interests of visual and residential amenity 
in accordance with CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015. 
 

12 Prior to the commencement of development details of the 
extension to the works for the disposal of sewerage shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved sewerage details shall be fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans prior to 
the first occupation of either of the new pitches. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the 
risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the 
environment 
 

13 The development shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the recommendations stipulated in section 4 of the 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (TP-Ecology Ltd, 23rd July 
2017) and the ecological enhancement measures proposed 
in section 4.19 shall be implemented. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and 
enhancement for protected and priority species and priority 
habitats. 
 

14 Prior to the installation of any new external artificial lighting 
a lighting plan shall be submitted to Wiltshire Council for 
approval in writing. The lighting plan shall illustrate the 
location of proposed external lighting and shall specify the 
type, height and position of luminaire(s) and other 
fixtures/fittings such as cowls, louvres or baffles; and shall 
demonstrate that the proposed lighting will not illuminate the 
hedgerows and treelines along the site boundaries through 
provision of a lux plot/lighting contour plan. 
 

Page 86



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To minimise light spillage and to maintain dark 
foraging and commuting corridors for bats.  
 

15 INFORMATIVES: 
 
For the avoidance of doubt  the requirements of Condition 4 
to the Planning Inspector’s Appeal Decision issued under 
reference No, APP/F3925/C/08/2088696 dated 23 February 
2009 were as follows: 
 
"No development shall commence and no caravans shall be 
brought onto the site until a new vehicular access has been 
constructed and laid out as follows: 
 
i. The new vehicular access shall be constructed to a width 

of 5m from the western boundary of the site; 
 

ii. Any gates to this access shall be set back Sm from the 
edge of   the carriageway and hung to open inwards; 
 
iii  Visibility splays with intervisibility between points on X 

and Y axes at a height of 600mm above the adjacent 
carriageway/drive level shall be provided at the new point 
of access; the X distance measured into the site from the 
edge of the carriageway on the centreline of the new 
access shall be 204m and Y distance measured along the 
carriageway in both directions shall be 140m. 

 
The access shall be retained as such thereafter." 
 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) it is an offence to disturb or harm any protected 
species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
place. Please note that planning permission does not 
override the statutory protection afforded to any such 
species. In the event that your proposals could potentially 
affect a protected species you should seek the advice of a 
suitably qualified and experienced ecologist.  
 
 

  
 

57 16/11414/FUL - Land opposite 6 Hawkeridge Road, Heywood, Wiltshire, 
BA13 4LE - 1 no. Gypsy Traveller pitch and associated works including, 1 
no. mobile home, 1 no. touring caravan, 1 no. dayroom and amendments 
to the existing dayroom. 
 
Public Participation 

Page 87



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Dr Simon Ruston, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Cllr John Masson, representing Heywood Parish Council, spoke in opposition to 
the application. 
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Case Officer which set out the 
issues in respect of the application, with a recommendation that planning 
permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
Members then had the opportunity to ask technical questions after which they 
heard statements from members of the public as detailed above, expressing 
their views regarding the planning application. 
 
Members then heard the views of Cllr Jerry Wickham, the local Member, who 
expressed a number of concerns regarding this application.  He raised concerns 
regarding:- 
 

 Barriers to development existed in terms of flooding, poor drainage, poor 
ground stability etc  

 

 The proposal’s impact on the character and appearance of the landscape 
and the amenity of neighbouring properties. 

  

 The absence of a condition to prevent burning on the site. 
 
The Head of Development Management pointed out that neither the 
Environment Agency nor the Water Authority had raised any objection to the 
proposal or made no comment on a possible flood risk at the site.     
 

During discussion Members considered that there should be additional conditions 
regarding landscaping, the burning of waste and the number of commercial 
vehicles allowed on the site.  
 
On the proposal of the Chairman, which was seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:- 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
Drawing reference PBM16-SLP Site Location Plan registered on 

Page 88



 
 
 

 
 
 

12.01.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/01 Site Survey registered on 
12.012.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/02B Proposed Site Layout received on 
24.08.2017 
Drawing reference 16114/03RPL Dayroom plan and Elevations 
received on 29.08.2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 The site shall not be occupied by persons other than gypsies 
and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of DCLG Planning Policy for 
Gypsies and Travellers, August 2015. 
 
REASON: This planning permission has been granted on the 
basis that the site is occupied by gypsies and travellers and it is 
therefore necessary to keep the site available to meet the need. 
 

4 There shall be no more than two permanent pitches on the 
application site, including the existing pitch.   
 
REASON: In the interests of clearly defining the extent of the 
permission 
 

5 The location and siting of the mobile homes and day rooms 
hereby approved shall continue to be located outside of the 
flood zone 3 area at all times. 
 
REASON: In order to prevent any increase in the risk of flooding. 
 

6 No additional external lighting shall be installed on site until 
plans showing the type of light appliance, the height and 
position of fitting, illumination levels and light spillage have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The lighting approved shall be installed and shall be 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to 
minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the 
development site. 
 

7 The hedgerow to the immediate north of the site adjacent to the 
sewage pumping station, as described within Planning 
Permission reference W/14/08114/FUL within Wessex Waters' 
letter of 15 October 2014  reference RS/CRT, shall be cut back to 
ground level height at all times, to aid highway visibility. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 

Page 89



 
 
 

 
 
 

8 Contaminated water shall not be discharged into any stream, 
watercourse or underground strata, whether direct or via 
soakaways. 
 
REASON:  In order to minimise the risk of pollution of the water 
environment 
 

9 Occupation and use of the Mobile homes and touring caravans 
hereby permitted shall be limited solely to and by close family 
members of the occupants of the application site. Close family 
members defined as dependents, sons, daughters and 
grandchildren. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity. 
 

10 Within three months of the granting of planning permission, a 
scheme for the repair of existing water bank erosion and for the 
prevention of further erosion, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, in 
consultation with the Environment Agency.  All works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To protect the integrity of the main river, and prevent 
unnecessary flooding. 
 

11 Within each of the two pitches, there shall be no more than one 
mobile home, one touring caravan and one day room, stationed 
on the site at any time. 
 
REASON: In order for the local planning authority to retain 
control over the number of caravans on the site, in order to 
safeguard interests of visual and residential amenity in 
accordance with CP47 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 2015. 
 

12 Within three months of the granting of planning permission, the 
applicant shall provide elevation details of the proposed raising 
of the brick piers and erection of metal railings, on the front wall 
of the site, as highlighted within plan reference 16114/02A.  All 
works shall be carried in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity of the area. 
 

13 No more than one commercial vehicle shall be kept on each of 
the two pitches for use by the occupiers of the caravans hereby 
permitted, and they shall not exceed 3.5 tonnes in weight and no 
commercial activity or use, including the storage of materials 
and waste, shall be carried out on the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity, highway safety 
and the character of the countryside 

Page 90



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

14 There shall be no burning of waste or open fires on the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of public and highway safety as well as 
to ensure the on-site and boundary trees are safeguarded. 
 

15 A  scheme of soft landscaping to be sited adjacent to the raised 
front wall shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development.  
 

16 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
final completion of the front wall. The hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage 
by vermin and stock and if  within a period of five years, if it 
should die, be removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority.  
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting 
 

17 INFORMATIVE: The European otter has been recorded on the 
watercourse adjacent to the development site, the Bitham Brook. 
The Otter is protected under The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended), which implements the 
EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United Kingdom, and the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). The applicant should 
note that under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 
1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to disturb or 
harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat 
or resting place.  Please note that this consent does not override 
the statutory protection afforded to any such species.  In the 
event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected 
species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 
experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from 
Natural England prior to commencing works.  Please see Natural 
England's website for further information on protected species:  
 

18 INFORMATIVE: Safeguards should be implemented during the 
construction phase to minimise the risks of pollution from the 
development.  Such safeguards should cover: 
- the use of plant and machinery 
- wheel washing and vehicle wash-down 
- oils/chemicals and materials 

Page 91



 
 
 

 
 
 

- the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles 
- the location and form of work and storage areas and 
compounds 
- the control and removal of spoil and wastes. 
 

19 INFORMATIVE: In addition to any other permission(s) that you 
may have already obtained, e.g. planning permission, you may 
need an environmental permit for flood risk activities (formerly 
known as Flood Defence Consent prior to 6 April 2016) if you 
want to carry out work: 
" in, under, over or near a main river (including where the 
river is in a culvert) 
" on or near a flood defence on a main river 
" in the flood plain of a main river 
" on or near a sea defence 
For further information and to check whether a permit is required 
please visit: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-activities-
environmental-permits. 
  
For any further advice, please contact your local Environment 
Agency FRA Permitting Officer, daniel.griffin@environment-
agency.gov.uk / yvonne.wiacek@environment-agency.gov.uk 
 

58 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held 
on Wednesday 11 October 2017, starting at 10.30am, in the Council 
Chamber at County Hall, Trowbridge.  

59 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  2.30  - 5.25 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 92



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 12 JULY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Chris Hurst, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Bob Jones MBE (Substitute) and 
Cllr Jacqui Lay (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Alan Hill, Cllr Tom Rounds and Cllr Ian Thorn 
  

 
55 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Brian Mathew who was substituted by Cllr 
Bob Jones MBE. Apologies were also received from Cllr Chuck Berry who was 
substituted by Cllr Jacqui Lay.  
 

56 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 14 June 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

57 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis declared an interest in agenda item no 7b)- 17.03545.FUL - 
Land at Frog Lane, Great Somerford, Chippenham. The Committee were 
advised that he had a family connection to the application. Cllr Toby Sturgis 
announced that he would leave the room during the application and not 
participate in determination of the item.  
 

58 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 
 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

59 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

60 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

61 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 7b 17.03545.FUL - Land at 
Frog Lane, Great Somerford, Chippenham, 7c 17.03123.FUL - Nos 8 to 10 
Brokenborough, Malmesbury and 7e 17.04117.FUL - Upper Studley Farm, 
Swindon Road, Royal Wootton Bassett, as listed in the agenda pack. 
 
61a 17.04080.FUL - Land East of 19 Crown Close, Chippenham 
 
Members of the public Ian Dunbar, Shawn Bialley and Mrs Tree spoke against 
the application. The applicants’ agent Richard Harlow spoke in favour of the 
application. Cllr Richard Banbury from Chippenham Town Council spoke 
against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application for a new dwelling with associated 
access and landscaping. It was explained that the dwelling would be a 
bungalow of limited scale in terms of height and would be constructed to reflect 
the form and materials of the existing dwelling. Photographs of the existing site 
were shown along with detailed plans of proposed development. It was clarified 
that the legally use of land was defined under a recently granted Certificate of 
Lawfulness, and so was in effect a private garden to the existing dwelling and 
not public open space. It was also confirmed that conditions had been proposed 
to prevent further development, including withdrawing Permitted Development 
Rights. The Officer’s recommendation was for permission to be granted subject 
to conditions.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and Officers clarified that 
withdrawal of Permitted Development Rights would not prevent some forms of 
lightweight non-permanent sheds being installed in the gardens. Officers 
advised that in this circumstance it was not considered that a condition to 
remove permitted development rights for the creation of hard surfacing which 
could be used for parking purposes; and the erection of boundary fencing was 
necessary or reasonable in all respects and so not in accord with planning 
policy. It was also confirmed that a Construction Method Statement could be 
conditioned if required. 
 
Local Member Cllr Clare Cape was not present in the meeting but had provided 
Cllr Gavin Grant with a statement to read. Emphasis was given to the fact that 
this site was previously public open space and that the Town Council had 
supported the application for a Certificate of Lawfulness, on the condition that it 
would not be built upon. The statement also referred to the significant levels of 

Page 94



 
 
 

 
 
 

objection from neighbours, based on the impact on parking, access and amenity 
of the area.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above. Officers advised that the 
refusal of an application for a fence on a nearby site did not set a precedent for 
refusal of the application before the committee which raised different 
considerations as part of the planning balance assessment. 
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton explained that he has previously 
fought hard against building on amenity areas. He proposed that the application 
be refused on the grounds of Core Policy 57(3). This was seconded by Cllr 
Gavin Grant. Some Members expressed support for this motion, stating that the 
site was amenity space that was never intended to be built upon. However, 
others voiced concerns that the Committee were not there to decide the validity 
of the Certificate of Lawfulness but had to deal with the application in front of 
them. This motion was voted against by the majority.  
 
Cllr Tony Trotman proposed the Officer’s recommendation for approval, with an 
additional condition of a Construction Method Statement, restricting the size of 
delivery vehicles. This was seconded by Cllr Bob Jones and approved by the 
majority.  
 
Resolved: 
To GRANT planning permission, as per Officer’s recommendation and 
subject to an additional condition requiring submission and approval of a 
Construction Method Statement; This statement to include a specific 
requirement for restriction as to the size of delivery vehicles. Wording of 
the condition delegated to Officers, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the 
development hereby permitted shall match those listed on the application 
form 
received by the Local Planning Authority on 26th April 2017. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plan received by the Local Planning Authority 
on 30th May 2017: AH2016/103 - proposed new dwelling 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

Page 95



 
 
 

 
 
 

4 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site 
until an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) prepared by an qualified 
arboricultural consultant providing comprehensive details of construction 
works in relation to trees has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by, the Local Planning Authority. All works shall subsequently be carried 
out in strict accordance with the approved details. 
In particular, the method statement must provide the following:- 
A specification for protective fencing to trees during both demolition and 
construction phases which complies with BS5837:2012 and a plan 
indicating the alignment of the protective fencing; 
A specification for scaffolding and ground protection within tree 
protection zones in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012; 
A schedule of tree works conforming to British Standard 3998: 2010; 
Details of general arboricultural matters such as the area for storage of 
materials, concrete mixing and use of fires; 
Plans and particulars showing the siting of the service and piping 
infrastructure; 
A full specification for the construction of any arboriculturally sensitive 
structures and sections through them, the method of construction of the 
proposed extension including details of the no-dig specification and 
extent of the areas of the proposed extension to be constructed using a 
no-dig specification; 
Details of the works requiring arboricultural supervision to be carried out 
by the developer’s arboricultural consultant, including details of the 
frequency of supervisory visits and procedure for notifying the Local 
Planning Authority of the findings of the supervisory visits; and 
Details of all other activities, which have implications for trees on or 
adjacent to the site. 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in order that the Local Planning 
Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained on and adjacent to 
the site will not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure 
that as far as possible the work is carried out in accordance with current 
best practice and section 197 of Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
5 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together 
with permeability test results to BRE365, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
6 The development shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
7 The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use 
until the first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 

Page 96



 
 
 

 
 
 

carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 
 
8 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first brought into 
use until the access and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
9 The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use 
until splays have been provided on both its sides of the access to the rear 
of the existing footway based on co-ordinates of 2.4m x 2.4m. The splays 
shall be kept free of obstruction above a height of 600mm at all times. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garage hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
11 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England)Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A, B and E shall take 
place on the dwelling house hereby permitted or within its curtilage. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
12 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no buildings or structures, or gate, wall, fence or other 
means of enclosure, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall 
be erected or placed anywhere on the site on the approved plans. 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 
13 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until a final Code 
Certificate for it has been issued and submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority certifying that Code Level 4 has 
been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development set 
out Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy are achieved. 
 

Page 97



 
 
 

 
 
 

14 Before the development hereby permitted is first brought into use the 
window in the side (west) elevation shall be glazed with obscure glass 
only [to an obscurity level of no less than level 3] and the windows shall 
be maintained with obscure glazing in perpetuity. 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
15 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The proposal includes alteration to the public highway and the consent 
hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out works on 
the highway. The applicant is advised that a license may be required from 
Wiltshire's Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any 
footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the 
highway. Please contact the vehicle access team on telephone 01225 
713352 or email vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk for further details. 
 
16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
17 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
18 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres 
of a Public Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, 
strategic importance, available access and the ground conditions 
appertaining to the sewer in question. 
 
19 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 

Page 98



 
 
 

 
 
 

Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy 
 
20 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The Council recommends that the applicant notes and implements the 
recommendations of the UK Constructors Group Good Neighbour Site 
Guide during the construction of the development hereby approved. 
 
61b 17.03545.FUL - Land at Frog Lane, Great Somerford, Chippenham 
 
As announced under Declarations of Interest, Cllr Toby Sturgis left the 
Committee Room, prior to commencing this item.  
 
Members of the public Mr Hardwick spoke against the application. The 
applicant’s agent Ben Pearce spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application for the erection of two detached 
dwellings with ancillary garaging and associated landscaping. Attention was 
drawn towards the updates in the Late Items. Photographs were shown of the 
existing site, along with the proposed plans. It was explained that the 
application related to land that had been used for storage of motor vehicles and 
informally as a turning- circle at the gift of the landowner but that this informal 
turning space could be closed at any time. Objections had been raised, 
regarding a lack of turning provision if the site was developed but the Planning 
Officer explained that this was not wholly a responsibility of the applicant in 
terms of existing adjacent dwellings and their requirements. It was also noted 
that a previous application for permission, which had been refused, was 17 
years ago, and there were material considerations, such as policy changes, for 
the Officer’s recommendation for approval, subject to conditions, including a 
Construction Method Statement, which was added in the Late Items, mentioned 
above. Policy changes included the adoption of the NPPF; Wiltshire Core 
Strategy and preparation of the emerging neighbourhood plan which proposed 
to allocate the site for residential development. 
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and Members sought clarity 
on what matters could be added to the Construction Method Statement. 
Possible options were discussed such as no burning of fires on site, during 
construction, and an impact assessment to be carried out on the road after 
construction with an obligation on the developer to address any issues. Officers 
advised that both matters could be addressed. 
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 

Page 99

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

In the debate that followed, Cllr Peter Hutton proposed the Officer’s 
recommendation for approval, with two additional elements were added to the 
Construction Method Statement: no burning on site, during construction, and an 
impact assessment to be carried out on the road, before and after construction, 
with an obligation on the developer to address any issues identified. This was 
seconded by Cllr Mollie Groom and passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission, as per recommendation and additional 
condition included in late items, subject to amendment to inclusion of the 
additional two matters as follows:- 
 
- No burning of fires on site during construction 
- Survey of the condition of the access road prior to and post 
construction, the developer to address any harm/impact to the road 
identified through this survey. 
 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area 
 
3 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include: 

 a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 

 finished levels and contours; 
 means of enclosure; 
 retained historic landscape features and proposed restoration, where 

relevant. 
 Hard surfacing materials 
 Bin storage facilities 

Page 100



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
4 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site, 
and; no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to site for 
the purpose of development, until the Tree Protection Plan (Plan number 
14B) has been be erected in accordance with the approved details. The 
protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire development phase 
and until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been 
removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached 
during construction operations. No retained tree/s shall be cut down, 
uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped 
other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 
topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance British 
Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" or arboricultural 
techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in the interest of good 
arboricultural practise. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, 
destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at the same place, at a 
size and species and planted at such time, that must 
be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No fires shall be lit 
within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of any retained trees 
or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or 
other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 metres of the trunk of 
any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or adjoining land. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
6 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the first 
five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the carriageway, has 

Page 101



 
 
 

 
 
 

been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The access 
shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7 No dwelling shall be occupied until the parking space(s) together with 
the access thereto, have been provided in accordance with the approved 
plans. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and the amenity of future 
occupants. 
 
8 Any gates shall open inwards only, this shall be retained in perpetuity. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the car ports hereby permitted shall not be extended, 
altered or converted to habitable accommodation and shall be left free for 
the parking of vehicles. 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure, other 
than those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected anywhere on 
the site. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity. 
11 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be occupied until surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
12 No development shall commence on site until details of the works for 
the disposal of sewerage including the point of connection to the existing 
public sewer (if applicable) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling shall be first 
occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 

Page 102



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is provided with a 
satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the risk of flooding 
or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
13 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
01- Location Plan- Received 11 April 2017 
03- Proposed site plan- Received 11 April 2017 
04A- Proposed Floor Plans Dwelling 01 Received 11 April 2017 
05- Proposed Elevations Dwelling 01 Received 11 April 2017 
06- Proposed Floor Plans Dwelling 02 Received 11 April 2017 
07- Proposed Elevations Dwelling 02 Received 11 April 2017 
08- Proposed Elevations Dwelling 02 Received 11 April 2017 
09- Proposed Plans & Elevations Car Port for Dwelling 02 Received 11 
April 2017 
10B- Proposed site location plan Received 07 June 2017 
13A- Landscape Plan Received 07 June 2017 
14B- Tree Protection Plan Received 07 June 2017 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
14 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
15 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include 
the following: 
a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d) wheel washing facilities; 
e) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
f) hours of construction, including deliveries; 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 

Page 103



 
 
 

 
 
 

is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to 
the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, 
detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
17 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
18 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
19 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
61c 17.03123.FUL - Nos 8 to 10 Brokenborough, Malmesbury 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis returned to the Committee room before the commencement of 
this Agenda Item.  
 
Members of the public Anthony Hole and the applicant Bruce Griffin spoke in 
favour of the application. Member of the public Bob Tallon spoke against the 
application.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the application for demolition of existing 
properties and erection of a residential property. A presentation was delivered 
showing photographs of existing site and proposed plans. Details were given 
explaining how the applicant had sought to address any issues and objections 
raised. The Committee were also advised that materials in keeping with the 

Page 104



 
 
 

 
 
 

area would be used, such as Cotswold stone. The updated conditions, as 
included in the Late Items, were highlighted. 
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and it was clarified that the 
property would be “cut-in” so to level the build with its neighbouring properties. It 
was also confirmed that Permitted Deployment Rights would be removed from 
the site.  
 
Local Member Cllr John Thomson spoke in regards to the application, he 
explained that he had previously supported an application for the site, but that 
he could not support the current application. He thought the design was too 
modern for a village such as Brokenborough and referred to Core Policy 57 in 
his objection.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
In the debate that followed Members remarked on the fact that it was a modern 
design, which was to some peoples taste and not others, however it was 
discussed that there are a variety of properties in that area already and it would 
not be out of keeping. Cllr Gavin Grant proposed the Officer’s Recommendation 
of approval, subject to an additional condition, requiring slab levels to be agreed 
prior to commencing the build. This was seconded by Cllr Hurst and passed by 
the majority,  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT the planning permission, as per officer recommendation and 
the updated list of conditions contained in late items. Subject to an 
additional condition as follows:- 
 
No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed 
ground floor slab levels have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved levels details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
Subject to following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 105



 
 
 

 
 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Drawing No.s 
Proposed Location Plan 1629.P.100 Rev C 
Proposed Block Plan 1629.P.101 Rev C 
Proposed Site Plan 1629.P.105 Rev C 
Proposed Ground Floor Plan 1629.P.110 Rev C 
Proposed First Floor Plan 1629.P.111 Rev C 
Proposed Roof Plan 1629.P.112 Rev C 
Proposed Drainage Plan 1629.P.115 Rev D 
Proposed Rainwater Drainage Plan 1629.P.116 Rev D 
Proposed Access Plan 1629.P.117 Rev C 
Proposed North Elevation 1629.P.200 Rev C 
Proposed West Elevation 1629.P 201 Rev D (26.06.17) 
Proposed South Elevation 1629.P.202 Rev C 
Proposed South Studio Elevation 1629.P.203 Rev C 
Proposed East Elevation 1629.P.204 Rev C (26.06.17) 
Proposed North Studio Elevation 1629.P.205 Rev B 
Proposed North Garage Elevation 1629.P.206 Rev B 
Proposed South Garage Elevation 1629.P.207 Rev B 
Proposed Site Section 1629.P.300 Rev C 
All received 30.05.17 except where specified 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 
4 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :- 
* means of enclosure; 
* all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 

Page 106



 
 
 

 
 
 

access / driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details together 
with permeability test results to BRE365, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority The development shall not be 
first occupied until foul water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained. 
 
7 The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the 
required sewage disposal and surface water drainage details have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
completed in accordance with the submitted and approved details. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory 
means of drainage. 
 
8 All development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation 
measures proposed in the submitted Bat Survey and Method Statement 
(dated 27th March 2017) or any subsequent licenced method statement. 
The bat roost compensation shall be retained as set out in Section 5 of the 
Bat Survey and Method Statement unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local 
Planning Authority. 
REASON: To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature 
habitats. 
 
9 The development shall be carried out as specified in the approved 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Arboricultural Method Statement and 
Tree Protection Plan prepared by Greenman Environmental Management 
Ltd dated March 2017 and shall be supervised by an arboricultural 
consultant. 
REASON: To prevent trees on site from being damaged during 
construction works. 
 
10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garage(s) hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation. 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
11 The garden studio hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time 
other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the main 

Page 107



 
 
 

 
 
 

dwelling and it shall remain within the same planning unit as the main 
dwelling. 
REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position where the 
Local Planning Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of 
residential amenity, access, and planning policies pertaining to the area, 
would not permit a wholly separate dwelling. 
 
12 The dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions/extensions or external 
alterations to any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions/extensions or external 
alterations. 
 
14 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an 
Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy. 
 
 
 

Page 108

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityinfrastructurelevy


 
 
 

 
 
 

15 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
16 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
17 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
18 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
61d 17.01154.FUL - Abberd Lane, Abberd, Nr Calne, SN11 8TE 
 
The applicant’s agent Andrew Miles spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application for the erection of two 10 metre 
high chimneys. A presentation was delivered showing photographs of the 
existing site and proposed plans. It was explained that the site already had 
permission for waste transfer use but that the application being considered by 
the Committee was for the installation of chimneys only. The Officer stated that 
an enhanced informative was attached to the application, stating that any use of 
the chimneys could constitute a change of use and require further planning 
permission.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and Members asked about the 
enforceability of the enhanced informative and raised questions surrounding the 
applicants original application, which was withdrawn.  
 
Local member Alan Hill spoke against the application. He stated that the 
Planning Committee was not equipped to deal with the application, maintaining 
that it was a waste application on a waste site. He explained that the nearest 

Page 109



 
 
 

 
 
 

waste site is Hill’s Lower Compton site and that that site specifically excludes 
the burning of waste. He said that it was improper to look at granting permission 
for the chimneys, without knowing what they would be used for. He urged a 
stronger more assertive informative along with the need for an environmental 
assessment. Discussion also took place as to the appropriate committee to 
determine the application under the scheme of delegation and officers clarified 
that the North Area Committee could determine the application. 
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Toby Sturgis stated that the Committee were 
being asked to approve two decorative features, no use prescribed to them, and 
questioned what grounds there were to refuse. He proposed the Officer’s 
recommendations for approval, which was seconded by Cllr Peter Hutton. This 
was voted against by the Committee.  
 
Cllr Gavin Grant proposed that the application be deferred, pending further 
information as to the use of the chimneys, seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman. 
However, in the debate that followed, this motion was withdrawn and Cllr Gavin 
Grant proposed that the application be refused for insufficient information on 
grounds of CP55-air quality and CP57- amenity, noise and smoke. This was 
seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman and passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
REFUSED contrary to Officer recommendation for the following reason:- 
 
Insufficient information and detail has been submitted within the 
application as to the intended use to which the proposed chimneys are to 
be put and to assess any potential environmental impacts derived from 
their use.  In the absence of such information and detail, the proposal 
must be considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policies CP55 
and CP57(vii) of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
61e 17.04117.FUL - Upper Studley Farm, Swindon Road, Royal Wootton 
Bassett 
 
The applicant Steve Bucknell spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Planning Officer introduced the application for Crematorium with access 
road, car parking, Garden of Remembrance, landscaping, ecological 
enhancement, sustainable drainage system and associated works. A 
presentation was delivered showing the existing site and proposed plans. It was 
explained that the plans included tree cover and screening planting, along with 
ecological mitigation.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and it was confirmed that the 
application did not require any s.106 contribution. Attention also focussed on 
the Highways implications. It was explained that a left-turn only exit road could 
be conditioned, along with ancillary measures, if required.  

Page 110



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Local Member Cllr Mollie Groom, expressed her concerns for the Highways 
arrangements and said that she felt the site needed a roundabout.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above. 
  
In the debate that followed, after first proposing and then withdrawing a 
proposal for approval including a mandatory turn- left condition, Cllr Bob Jones 
proposed the Officer’s recommendation, with an additional condition, requiring a 
safety audit on the Highways impact, and to address any issues identified. This 
was seconded by Cllr Mollie Groom and passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission, as per recommendation and the 
conditions contained in the report as amended by the updated conditions 
contained in Late items. Subject to an additional condition to require the 
submission and assessment of a road safety audit, including a 
requirement for the applicant to address any issues identified by the 
Audit. The wording of the condition delegated to Officers. 
 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
03 rev F - Site Plan 
04 rev E - Site Plan 
05 rev B - Floor Plan Single Chapel 
06 rev A - Roof Plan Single Chapel 
07 rev B - Elevations Single Chapel 
08 rev B - Site Sections 
10 rev A - Floral Tribute Plans and Elevations 
Received 20 April 2017 
2827.01A - Proposed Site Access 
Received 22 June 2017 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include : 
* location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land; 

Page 111



 
 
 

 
 
 

* full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 
* finished levels and contours; 
* means of enclosure; 
* car park layouts; 
* other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
* all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
* minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, refuse and other storage 
units, signs, lighting, etc); 
* proposed and existing functional services above and below ground (e.g. 
drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines, etc, indicating lines, 
manholes, supports, etc); 
The approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out in full within or 
prior to the first planting season following the development's being first 
brought into use and maintained as such at all times thereafter. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
4 The protective fencing shall be erected in accordance with the approved 
details. The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire 
development phase and until all equipment, machinery and surplus 
materials have been removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be 
removed or breached during construction operations. No retained tree/s 
shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be 
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in 
accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - Recommendations" 
or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in the 
interest of good arboricultural practise. 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree 
shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and planted at 
such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the 
canopy of any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no 
concrete, oil, cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored 
within 10 metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained 
on the site or adjoining land. [In this condition "retained tree" means an 
existing tree which is to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars; and paragraphs above shall have 
effect until the expiration of five years from the first occupation or the 
completion of the development, whichever is the later]. 
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention 
of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity. 
 

Page 112



 
 
 

 
 
 

5 The development shall be carried out as specified in the approved 
Arboricultural Report prepared by Certhia Consulting Limited dated June 
2017 and shall be supervised by an arboricultural consultant. 
REASON: To prevent trees on site from being damaged during 
construction works. 
 
6 No development shall commence on site until full details of a ghost right 
hand turn lane has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority (in line with drawing 2827.01A 'Proposed Site 
Access'. As part of the package of full details to be submitted shall 
include full construction details, safety audit, visibility splays (2.4m x 
215m), deceleration / turning length provision, swept path analysis, 
provision for footways and pedestrian crossing facilities. No part of the 
development shall be first brought into use until the ghost right hand turn 
lane has been completed, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the 
approved details. It shall be maintained in this format at all times 
thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first brought into 
use until the parking area shown on the approved plans has been 
consolidated, surfaced and laid out in accordance with the approved 
details. This area shall be maintained and remain available for this use at 
all times thereafter. 
REASON: To ensure that adequate provision is made for parking within 
the site in the interests of highway safety. 
 
8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure, other 
than those shown on the approved plans, shall be erected or placed 
anywhere on the site without the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity. 
 
9. Prior to the commencement of development works on site, a lighting 
design strategy for biodiversity and site lighting plan shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. In combination the strategy 
and plan shall: 
a) Identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for 
protected species, particularly bats, and 
b) Specify where external lighting will be installed and include lighting 
contour plans and technical specifications, including a Lux plot; and 
c) Specify luminaires, heights and positions of fittings, direction and other 
features, e.g. cowls, louvres or baffles. 
All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the 
specifications and locations set out in the approved strategy and lighting 
plan, and these shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the 

Page 113



 
 
 

 
 
 

strategy. Under no circumstances should any other external lighting be 
installed without prior consent from the local planning authority. 
REASON: To minimise light spill onto sensitive areas for protected and 
priority species and to maintain dark foraging and commuting corridors 
for bats and other nocturnal/crepuscular species. 
 
10 The site shall be used as a crematorium and associated facilities and 
for no other purpose (including any other sui generis purpose in the 
Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as 
amended) (or in any provisions equivalent to that class in any statutory 
instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification). 
REASON: The proposed use is acceptable but the Local Planning 
Authority wish to consider any future proposal for a change of use having 
regard to the circumstances of the case. 
 
11 No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays.  
REASON: To ensure the retention of an environment free from intrusive 
levels of noise and activity during the course of construction, in the 
interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
12 No development shall commence until an investigation and 
remediation strategy to deal with the risks associated with contamination 
of the site has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. This strategy will include the following components: 
1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified: 
" all previous uses; 
" potential contaminants associated with those uses; 
" a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and 
receptors; and 
" potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site. 
2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a 
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, 
including those off site. 
3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment 
referred to in (2) and, based on these, an options appraisal and 
remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation measures 
required and how they are to be undertaken. 
4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in 
order to demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in 
(3) are complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for 
contingency action. Any changes to these components require the written 
consent of the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented 
as approved. 
REASON: To protect controlled waters from pollution. Past site uses as a 
farm may have caused contamination of soils, sub-soils and/or 
groundwater, which may be mobilised by development. 

Page 114



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
13 The mitigation measures detailed in the approved Flood Risk 
Assessment and Surface Water Drainage Strategy [SLR, March 2017] shall 
be carried out in full prior to the first bringing into use of the development 
or otherwise in accordance with the approved timetable detailed in the 
Strategy. 
REASON: In the interests of flood prevention. 
 
14. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
recommendations made in section 5 of the Ecological Assessment and 
Mitigation Strategy, dated April 2017, prepared by Biocensus and as 
modified by the European Protected Species Mitigation Licence for great 
crested newts to be obtained from Natural England. 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for protected and 
priority species and priority habitats. 
 
15. Prior to the commencement of any works on site, including site 
clearance and boundary treatment works, a Landscape and Ecology 
Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. The LEMP shall provide details of the proposed 
maintenance and management of the site; a grassland management plan 
and details of landscape planting including for the traditional orchard. The 
development site shall be managed and maintained in accordance with 
the measures set out in the approved plan in perpetuity unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 
REASON: To ensure the appropriate maintenance and management of 
habitats that provide a function for biodiversity. 
 
16 No development shall commence on site until a Construction Method 
Statement, which shall include the following: 
a) access and parking arrangements for vehicles of site operatives and 
visitors, which shall include a 'no right turn' arrangement at the main 
access onto the A3102; 
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
e) wheel washing facilities; 
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; 
g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works; 
h) measures for the protection of the natural environment; and 
i) hours of construction, including deliveries 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 

Page 115



 
 
 

 
 
 

matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to 
the natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers to 
highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 
17 Prior to the commencement of any works on site, including site 
clearance and boundary treatment works, an Ecological Mitigation and 
Enhancement Strategy shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
for approval. All ecological avoidance, mitigation and compensation 
measures as well as ecological enhancements, shall be clearly shown on 
a site plan. Development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved strategy. 
REASON: to ensure full details of all ecological avoidance, mitigation and 
compensation measures as well as ecological enhancements, are 
provided and implemented. 
 
18 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The proposed use and associated package treatment plant will require an 
Environmental Permit to be issued by the Environment Agency. The 
applicant is advised to check requirements at the EA website as soon as 
possible. 
 
19 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
20 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
21 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 

62 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

Page 116



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.30 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Wiltshire Council   
Northern Area Planning Committee 

12th July 2017 
Planning Appeals Received between 02/06/2017 and 30/06/2017 
 

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal 
Start Date 

Overturn 
at Cttee 

16/11581/FUL 
 

Land at Ryleys 
Farmhouse 
Grittleton, Chippenham 
Wiltshire, SN14 6AF 

GRITTLETON 
 

Conversion of store building to dwelling 
 

DEL 

 
Written 
Representations 
 

Refuse 22/06/2017 
 

No 

17/00252/FUL 
 

9 Hoggs Lane 
Purton, Swindon 
Wiltshire, SN5 4HQ 

PURTON 
 

First Floor Extension of Annex with Link 
Between House and Balcony Over 
Existing Conservatory 

DEL House Holder 
Appeal 

Refuse 12/06/2017 
 

No 

17/01978/PNCOU 
 

Dutch Barn 
East End Farm 
Little Somerford 
Chippenham, SN15 5JX 

LITTLE 
SOMERFORD 
 

Prior Approval For Change of Use of 
Agricultural Building to a Dwelling house 
(Use Class C3 ) and for Associated 
Operational Development. 

DEL 

 
Written 
Representations 

Refuse 22/06/2017 
 

No 

 
 
Planning Appeals Decided between 02/06/2017 and 30/06/2017 
 

Application 
No 

Site Location Parish Proposal DEL 
or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal 
Decision 

Decision 
Date 

Costs 
Awarded? 

16/06545/FUL 
 

Little Oaks Caravan 
Park 
Adj. to The Oaks 
Melksham Road 
Lacock, Wiltshire 
SN15 2LW 

LACOCK 
 

Demolition of Former Caravan 
Repair Workshop & Erect Single 
Dwelling & Workshop/Store 
Building for Personal Use 
(Amendments to 16/02198/FUL) 
 

DEL 
 

Written Reps 
 

Refuse Allowed with 
Conditions 

23/06/2017 
 

Not 
appropriate 
for either 
party to apply 
for costs 

16/08684/LBC 
 

37 St Mary Street 
Chippenham 
Wiltshire, SN15 3JW 

CHIPPENHAM 
 

Internal alterations to basement 
 

DEL 
 

Written Reps 
 

Refuse Allowed with 
Conditions 

02/06/2017 

 
Not 
appropriate 
for either 
party to apply 
for costs 

16/09938/PNC
OU 
 

Leighfield Farm 
The Leigh, Cricklade 
Wiltshire, SN6 6RQ 

LEIGH 
 

Prior approval for a Proposed 
Change of Use of Agricultural 
Buildings to  3 Dwellinghouses 
(Class C3), and for Associated 
Operational Development. 

DEL 
 

Written Reps 
 

Refuse Dismissed 02/06/2017 

 
Not 
appropriate 
for either 
party to apply 
for costs 

 

P
age 27

M
inute Item

 60

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 120



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 9 AUGUST 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Chuck Berry, 
Cllr Christine Crisp, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, 
Cllr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Brian Mathew and Cllr Philip Whalley 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
  

 
63 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Ashley O’Neil who was substituted by Cllr 
Phillip Whalley.  
 

64 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 July 2017. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

65 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

66 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

67 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 
 
 

Page 121

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

68 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

69 Planning Applications 
 
Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and 
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 7a) 17/00606/FUL – Land 
South of Royal Wootton Bassett, 7b) 16/06790/FUL – Land at Methuen Park, 
Chippenham and 7c)  17/03112/FUL Silver Street, Colerne as listed in the 
agenda pack. 
 

70 17.00606.FUL  - Link Road between A3102 and Marlborough Road, Royal 
Wootton Bassett 
 
Members of the public John Parker, Karen Dykstra and Alan Norman spoke 
against the application. The applicant’s agent Roger Smith spoke in favour of 
the application. Cllr Janet Georgiou from Royal Wootton Bassett Town Council 
spoke against the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the permanent 
retention of existing temporary road as an agricultural access. A presentation 
was delivered showing photographs of the existing site and the proposed plans. 
Attention was drawn to the amended plans and in particular the re-location of 
the access point, along with other conditions added. The Officer highlighted the 
Late Items which referred to 8 further objections, which had not been included 
in the agenda.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions. It was confirmed that although 
a draft report had been produced prior to the end of the consultation period, the 
report was still under review and all representations were considered by 
Officers, including the Late Items. A question was also asked as to whether the 
road would be approved if it was not already there and Officers confirmed that 
they could not determine applications on a speculative basis. It was confirmed 
that, as there had been no request for lighting, it could be conditioned that no 
street lighting could be installed on the road, without additional permissions. A 
question was also asked as to whether the site had been investigated for 
potential flood risk and it was confirmed that the existing drainage infrastructure 
had been recommended as suitable for permanent retention. 
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
Local Member Cllr Chris Hurst spoke against the application. He spoke of the 
clear passion of the residents and the substantial detrimental consequences of 
the road, present and future. He stated that residents had tried to come up with 
alternative proposals but had not been listened to. He referred to Core Policy 
57, referencing the impact on amenity, privacy, overshadowing and the pollution 
and vibration caused by the road, which he described as being overbearing and 
over-specified.  
 

Page 122



 
 
 

 
 
 

In the debate that followed, Cllr Hurst proposed that the application be refused 
under Core Policy 57.6 and 57.7, namely that the road fails to take account of 
the characteristics of the site, and will give rise to unacceptable harm to the 
residential amenity of nearby properties in relation to privacy, overshadowing 
and intrusion. This was seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman and approved by 
the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
REFUSED for the following reason: 
 
The proposed development, by reason of its siting, height and associated 
vehicle movements, fails to take account of the characteristics of the site 
and the local context to deliver an appropriate development which relates 
effectively to the immediate setting, and will give rise to unacceptable 
harm to the residential amenity of nearby properties in relation to privacy, 
overshadowing and intrusion. The proposals therefore conflict with Core 
Policy 57(vi) and (vii) of the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 

71 16.06790.FUL - Methuen Park, Chippenham 
 
Chris Beaver representing M&W Group spoke against the application. The joint 
applicants, Ben Humphries- Ashville Group and John Owen- Greensquare 
Group, spoke in favour of the application. The applicant’s agent Rosie Dinnen, 
spoke in favour of the application.  
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the proposed erection 
of 66 dwellings, formation of access road, open space, landscaping and 
associated works. A presentation was delivered displaying photographs of the 
existing site and proposed plans. Planning objections to the application were 
highlighted, namely the lack of public open space that was to be provided, as 
detailed in the report. Furthermore the Strategic Programmes Manager 
presented the economic arguments against the application, stating that the site 
was important for the economic development of Chippenham. Members were 
advised that this was the only readily available employment land in 
Chippenham, and that there was an evidential demand for such land in the 
area. It was explained that improvements were being made to the roads and 
access in the area and that this would enhance the value and commercial 
attraction of the area. The Officer highlighted a number of concerns raised by 
the business community in the area, including the impact on traffic and parking, 
along with the detrimental affect on commercial development in Chippenham. 
Attention was also drawn to the Late Items. The Officers recommendation was 
for refusal.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and it was queried why the 
site had not been utilised commercially, if there was such a demand for 
employment land in the area. Officer’s explained that they did not have details 
as to why commercial offerings had fallen through but stated that there was an 
evidential demand for employment land in Chippenham.  
 

Page 123



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public spoke as detailed above.  
 
The Local Member Cllr Phillip Whalley offered Cllr Peter Hutton the opportunity 
to speak on this item, as the site is due to transfer to the Chippenham electoral 
area under the recent boundary changes. Cllr Hutton expressed disappointment 
that this was the only available employment land in Chippenham and stated that 
the site had been vacant from before 2003. He said that this application was a 
good opportunity to see the site developed.  
 
In the debate that followed, Members expressed concerns that the site was 
being reserved for employment land, when there was no evidence to suggest 
that it was a viable commercial site. Reference was also made to the significant 
housing need in Chippenham, with a lack of affordable housing available. 
However, it was also voiced that a “residential hope” value may have 
contributed to the vacancy of the land. Cllr Christine Crisp proposed the officers 
recommendation for refusal. This was seconded by Cllr Toby Sturgis and 
passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
Application REFUSED for the following reasons: 
1) The proposal would lead to the loss of a major employment allocation 
of land, which is part of the strategic objective set out in the Wiltshire 
Core Strategy to deliver a thriving economy to provide a range of jobs in 
Wiltshire with dependence on retaining the availability of and enhancing 
existing employment sites. The loss of this site would also be contrary to 
the aims of the Wiltshire Core Strategy which seeks to protect Wiltshire’s 
most sustainable and valued employment areas by applying policies to 
favour employment uses on these sites. The proposal would therefore be 
contrary to the aims of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and to Policy CP35 of 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy and the advice within section 1 of the NPPF in 
particular. 
 
2) The application does not satisfactorily demonstrate through a robust 
and comprehensive marketing exercise that its retention is no longer 
warranted. This would be contrary to the employment led emphasis of the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy and the requirements of CP35 of that document 
together with advice in Section 1 of the NPPF. 
 
3) The proposal does not make provisions to secure contributions to 
affordable housing; education; public art; waste collection and re-cycling; 
the ongoing provision and maintenance of open space. The application is 
therefore contrary to Core Policies 3, 43, 45 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy 
and saved policy CF3 of North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011. 
 
INFORMATIVE: The applicant is asked to note that reason for refusal 3 
may be overcome via the entering into an agreement under s106 of The 
Act to deliver the necessary infrastructure to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms. 
 

Page 124



 
 
 

 
 
 

72 17/03112/FUL- Land adj Barton Piece, Silver Street, Colerne, Chippenham 
 
The Chairman drew Members attention to the Late Items, which detailed the 
applicant’s request for this item to be deferred, in order that revised plans may 
be prepared and submitted for consideration in response to objections received. 
The Chairman proposed that this item be deferred, which was seconded by Cllr 
Christine Crisp and approved by the Committee.  
 
Resolved: 
 
Application DEFERRED at request of applicant and agreement of 
Committee.  Amended plans to be submitted. 
 

73 17/04235/FUL - 3 Church Place,  Lydicard Millicent, Swindon 
 
Member of the public Bryan Larkin spoke against the application. Cllr Vernon 
Montgomery from Lydiard Millicent Parish Council spoke against the 
application. 
 
The Team Leader introduced the application for part-retrospective permission 
for detached annex to rear, front porch and storm water harvesting system to 
main property and erection of potting/bike shed to the front of the property. A 
presentation was delivered, including photographs of existing site and proposed 
plans. It was explained that permissions had already been granted for the site 
and that the amended proposed plans, had not changed in terms of depth, 
height and width. The Officer explained that the proposed plans, were not 
considered to present any significant harm to the character and appearance of 
the area, nor impact the neighbouring amenities. It was also confirmed that 
there was no significant overlooking and that the sight was well screened and 
so not visually prominent in the locality. The Officer’s recommendation was for 
approval, subject to conditions.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and it was confirmed that, 
there was no precedent in planning law, the site was not in a conservation area 
and so the potting shed at the front of the property was not comparable to other 
applications, which had been refused.  
 
Members of the public spoke as detailed as above.  
 
In the debate that followed, concerns were raised as to the accumulative 
applications for this development and its partially retrospective nature. Cllr Tony 
Trotman proposed the Officer’s recommendation, seconded by Cllr Peter 
Hutton. This was passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
To GRANT planning permission, subject to the following conditions; 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.  

Page 125



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Proposed south elevation Rev E 
The plan showing the existing and proposed rear elevation of the host 
dwelling 
The plan showing the proposed north elevation of the host dwelling and 
annex, roof plan and potting shed 
The plan showing the proposed roof plan of the host dwelling and annex 
and the proposed north elevation of the annex and host dwelling 
The location plan Rev E 
The plan showing the proposed potting/bike shed front and side elevation 
The plan showing the existing and proposed south elevation 
The plan showing the existing and proposed front elevation of the host 
dwelling 
Received by the Local Planning Authority on 26th May 2017 
The plan showing the proposed west elevation of the annex 
The plan showing the proposed floor plan of the annex 
The plan showing the proposed east elevation of the annex 
The plan showing the proposed south elevation of the annex 
The plan showing the proposed north elevation of the annex 
Received by the Local Planning Authority on 2nd June 2017. 
The plan showing the existing and proposed floor plan of the host 
dwelling 
Received by the Local Planning Authority on 27th June 2017. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning 
 
3) No construction or demolition work shall take place on Sundays or 
Public Holidays or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday 
and 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays. 
REASON: to protect neighbour amenity 
 
4) The accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time 
other than for purposes ancillary to the residential use of the main 
dwelling, known as 3 Church Place and it shall remain within the same 
planning unit as the main dwelling. 
REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position where the 
Local Planning Authority, having regard to the reasonable standards of 
residential amenity, access, and planning policies pertaining to the area, 
would not permit a wholly separate dwelling. 
 
5) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 

Page 126



 
 
 

 
 
 

such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
6) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
7) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
8) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The Council recommends that the applicant notes and implements the 
recommendations of the UK Constructors Group Good Neighbour Site 
Guide during the construction of the development hereby approved. 
 

74 17/05123/FUL - Wildings, Hazelbury Hill, Box, Corsham 
 
Cllr Sheila Parker from Box Parish Council spoke against the application.  
 
The Team Leader introduced the application which was for the formation of an 
additional car parking space. A presentation was shown, including photographs 
of the existing site and proposed plans. It was explained that the application 
was partially retrospective, in so far as the ground had been excavated. 
Members were advised that the parking space was immediately opposite the 
neighbour’s kitchen window. The Officer’s recommendation was for approval.  
 
Members were invited to ask technical questions and it was confirmed that a 
condition could be applied to ensure the use of the space for the parking of 
vehicles, as proposed. 
 
Cllr Parker from Box parish Councillor spoke as detailed above.  
 
The Local Member Cllr Brian Mathew spoke against the application. He 
described the area as an historic pathway, stating that the additional parking 
space would lead to a loss of amenity. He declared that the space should be 
restored to its original state.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Hutton proposed the Officer’s recommendation 
for approval with the additional condition that the space only be used for parking 
cars in connection with the dwelling, along with the informative to ensure that 

Page 127



 
 
 

 
 
 

the drain, immediately adjacent to the space, is not effected by the new surface. 
This was passed by the majority.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Proposed Plan, Dwg No: 0091/15/A, Dated: 24 May 17; 
Existing Plan, Dwg No: 0091/15/B, Dated: 23 Jun 17;  
plans as received by the LPA 26/05/17;  
and Site Location Plan;  
plan as received by the LPA 19/07/2017. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3) The gradient of the access way shall not at any point be steeper than 
1:15 for a distance of 10 metres from its junction with the public highway. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4) The land subject to this planning permission shall not be used for the 
parking of cars until full and complete details of the intended surfacing 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include confirmation and proof where 
required that the surfacing is permeable. The development should not be 
brought into use until the parking space has been consolidated and 
surfaced in accordance with the approved details 
REASON: So as to ensure that the development is carried out in a manner 
that is suitable to its location and that the surfacing materials to be used 
will assist with appropriate surface water drainage. 
 
5) Notwithstanding the approved drawings, no works shall commence 
until details of the following have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
Full details of the retaining structure /wall and fence/ barrier 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
6) The parking space hereby permitted shall be used only for the parking 
of cars in connection with the use of “Wildings” as a domestic 
dwellinghouse. 
REASON:  So as to ensure the space is kept free for the parking of cars 
for residential purposes and in the interests of the amenity of the locality. 

Page 128



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
7) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd /Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
8) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996.  
 
9) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
 
10) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
11) INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is asked to note that, in relation to condition 04, the location 
and proper functioning of the highway drain immediately adjacent to the 
parking space should not in any way be affected by the laying of the new 
parking space surface. 
 

75 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.00 pm) 

 
 
 

Page 129



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Edmund Blick of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718059, e-mail edmund.blick@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 130



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 6 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Cllr Peter Hutton (Vice Chairman), Cllr Christine Crisp, 
Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Mollie Groom, Cllr Chris Hurst, 
Cllr Toby Sturgis, Cllr Ashley O'Neill, Cllr Bill Douglas (Substitute) and Cllr Jacqui Lay 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
  

 
76 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Brian Mathew, substituted by Cllr 
Bill Douglas, and from Cllr Chuck Berry, substituted by Cllr Jacqui Lay. 
 

77 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

78 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Toby Sturgis and Cllr Chris Hurst declared later in the meeting for the 
purposes of transparency under item 7c) 17/05625/FUL they had previously 
used the services of the same architect Charles Manning, however were no 
longer in a contractual relationship.  
 
Cllr Hurst advised he would not participate in the debate or vote on this item.  
 

79 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised he would allow speakers for applications in respect of 
Land North of Bath Rd, Corsham, item 7a an additional minute each to allow 
statements to cover both applications on this site. 

Page 131

Agenda Item 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

80 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

81 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update. 
 

82 Planning Applications 
83 16/03721/REM and 16/04544/REM Land North of Bath Road, Corsham 

 
Tony Clark, David Taylor and Nigel Jackson spoke in objection to the 
applications. 
 
Mathew Cowley and Jenny Mitter spoke in favour of the applications. 
 
Nevil Farmer, Corsham Town Council, spoke in objection to the applications. 
 
The Chairman advised the planning officers would give a presentation covering 
both applications on this site, however two separate resolutions would be 
required. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the reserved matters applications 
relating to the residential development for 150 units and associated works, and 
also reserved matters related to the access, appearance, layout and scale of 
the proposed employment units on the site. Both applications were 
recommended for permission, subject to the conditions outlined in the reports. 
 
The officer showed site location plans and photographs, a historic mine shaft 
and Public Right of Way crossing the site were identified. Details of layout, 
affordable housing plans, boundary treatments, materials, elevations of the 
employment unit, office layout plan and landscaping were provided. Attention 
was drawn to the Late Observations which included legal advice in relation to 
licensing matters and officers advised the Committee was able to determine the 
applications with the information before it. The officer explained the 
landscaping, layout, appearance and scale of the applications were the issues 
under consideration in these reserved matters applications.  
 
The Committee was invited to ask technical questions, in response to which it 
was confirmed Outline planning permission for the two applications had been 
granted at Appeal. The Planning Inspector had given only 1 year for 
implementation following approval of the last of the approved matters and if the 
applications were approved at this meeting the 1 year time limit would start; if 
pre-commencement conditions were not discharged within one year, the 
permission would expire. 
 
Members of the pubic then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Ruth Hopkinson, highlighted the significant objections 
that had been raised by local residents and the Town Council. 

Page 132



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
In response to queries raised in the public forum, officers confirmed that matters 
in respect of ecology and the safeguarding of minerals were conditioned under 
the Outline permission. Likewise, access arrangements to the site had been 
agreed under the previous permission. It was understood the Council’s drainage 
engineers were satisfied with drainage provision on the site. Officers 
acknowledged it was unfortunate that a tree on the site commemorating the 
sacrifice of local people in World War I was to be removed. 
 
In the debate that followed on 16/03721/REM Cllr Hutton moved the officer’s 
recommendation, which was seconded by Cllr Sturgis. Members considered 
whether the design of the residential dwellings was in keeping with the Corsham 
Neighbourhood Plan and the weight of that Plan since it had not yet been 
adopted. It was acknowledged that design was a subjective element and what 
some members might find acceptable, others would not. It was argued the 
design did not cause significant harm to the historic environment and a similar 
development by Redrow at Sutton Benger had been of good quality. It was 
noted the Council had originally refused Outline planning permission on this 
site, however it had later been granted at appeal and a lot of the issues raised 
by residents had already been considered at the appeal stage.  
 
Some councillors expressed concern that a report from Atkins on drainage and 
flooding in the locality remained outstanding as they felt this could have helped 
inform the Committee debate. Members agreed that should permission be 
granted, this should include an additional condition requiring the planting of a 
substantial tree to replace the one removed by the developer, Cllrs Hutton and 
Sturgis accepted an amendment to their motion to this effect. 
 
In the debate concerning application 16/04544/REM, Cllr Hutton moved the 
officer’s recommendation, which was seconded by Cllr Sturgis. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission for application 16/03721/REM subject to 
the following conditions and an additional condition, the wording of which 
was DELEGATED to officers, to require the planting of a substantial tree 
to replace the one removed by the developer. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 
RHSW.5365.PL001 rev J - Planning Layout 
5064/20/01 rev B – Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Analysis 
5064/20/02 rev B – Refuse Vehicle Swept Path Analysis 
Received 20 July 2017 
RHSW.5365.SMP001 rev D - Surface Material Plan 
RHSW.5365.AHP001 rev C - Affordable Housing Plan 
RHSW.5365.EP001 rev D - Enclosures Plan 
RHSW.5365.MP001 rev G - Material Plan 
RHSW.5365.SH001 rev C – Storey Heights 
5064/SK01 rev C - Preliminary Levels 
1794 01 K - Landscape Masterplan 

Page 133



 
 
 

 
 
 

1794 02 E - Detailed Planting Plan (1 of 7) 
1794 03 D - Detailed Planting Plan (2 of 7) 
1794 04 C - Detailed Planting Plan (3 of 7) 
1794 05 C - Detailed Planting Plan (4 of 7) 
1794 06 C - Detailed Planting Plan (5 of 7) 
1794 07 F - Detailed Planting Plan (6 of 7) 
1794 08 C - Detailed Planting Plan (7 of 7) 
Received 27 June 2017 
5064/501 rev A - Attenuation Pond Details 
Received 1 February 2017 
F-SD-5365-01 - Stock Fencing Details 
Received 7 September 2016 
04644 TPP - Tree Protection Plan 
1794 09 A - Detailed LEAP Proposals 
Received 26 April 2016 
Housetype Booklet "Bath Road, Corsham" 
F-SDO902 - Knee Rail Fencing 
F-SDO906 rev A - Screen Fencing, 1.8m High, Standard Effect 
dwg: Natural Dry Stone Wall 
Received 18 April 2016 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
2. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and samples of 
the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is 
required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences in order that the development is undertaken in an acceptable 
manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
3. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 
carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first occupation 
of the building(s) or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner. 
All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar 
size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and 
the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
4. The screen walls and/or fences shown on the approved plans shall be erected 
prior to the first occupation of their respective dwellings hereby permitted and 
shall be retained and maintained as such at all times thereafter. 

Page 134



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: To prevent overlooking & loss of privacy to neighbouring property. 
 
5. No dwelling shall be first occupied until its turning area and parking spaces 
and access thereto have been completed in accordance with the details shown 
on the approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all 
times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), the garages 
hereby permitted shall not be converted to habitable accommodation. 
 

REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
7. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of 
compensatory tree planting, including details of specie(s), planted size, 
location and future maintenance regime, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The said planting 
shall have been carried out within the first planting season following the 
first occupation of the development in full accordance with the approved 
scheme, in accordance with which the tree(s) shall be maintained at all 
times thereafter. (The wording of this condition was subsequently agreed by 
officers under delegated authority). 
 
REASON: To mitigate the loss of tree T15. 
 
8. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building 
Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning 
Authority before commencement of work. 
 
9. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please be advised that nothing in this permission shall authorise the 
diversion, 
obstruction, or stopping up of any right of way that crosses the site. You 
are advised to 
contact the PROW officer. 
 
10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 

Page 135



 
 
 

 
 
 

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. 
Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer 
where they are 
to be found. 
 
 
To GRANT planning permission for application 16/04544/REM subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
1794 11 C – Detailed Planting Proposals Employment Land 
REDR160424-SW SL.01 rev D – B1 Office Units Site Layout 
Received 27 June 2017 
SLP.01 rev A - Site Location Plan 
EL.01 rev A - Engineering Layout 
A.e1 rev A - Block A Elevations 
A.e2 rev A - Block A Elevations 
A.p1 rev A - Block A Ground Floor Plan 
A.p2 rev A - Block A First Floor Plan 
B.e1 rev A - Block B Elevations 
B.e2 rev A - Block B Elevations 
B.p1 rev A - Block B Ground Floor Plan 
B.p2 rev A - Block B First Floor Plan 
Received 16 September 2016 
BS.01 - Bin & Cycle Store Plans & Elevations 
Received 2 September 2016 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
2. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 

Page 136



 
 
 

 
 
 

3. No walls shall be constructed on site, until a sample wall panel, not less 
than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, inspected and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The panel shall then 
be left in position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved sample. 
 
REASON: in the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
4. No paint or stain finish shall be applied to external timber (including 
external walls and window joinery), until details of the paint or stain to be 
applied have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the development being first brought into use. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
5. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner. All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
6. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on approved plan EL.01 rev A - 
Engineering Layout (received 16 September 2016). The areas shall be 
maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no buildings or structures, gates, walls, fences or other 
means of enclosure, other than those shown on the approved plans, shall 
be erected or placed anywhere on the site on the approved plans. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 

Page 137



 
 
 

 
 
 

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions, extensions or external 
alterations to any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted and no plant, machinery or other incidental structure shall be 
installed outside any such building on the site on the approved plans. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or external 
alterations, or the installation of any outdoor plant, machinery or other 
structure. 
 
9. No external lighting shall be installed on site until details of lighting, 
external cowls, louvers or other shields to be fitted to reduce light 
pollution have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be put in place before 
the floodlights are first brought into use and shall be retained and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: To protect species and to minimise light pollution in the 
interests of ecology and the amenities of the area. 
 
10. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
11. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of 
the site boundary, you are also advised that it may be expedient to seek 
your own advice with regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 
1996. 
 
13 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 

Page 138



 
 
 

 
 
 

Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. 
Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning Officer 
where they are 
to be found. 
 
 
 

84 17/03035/REM Land at Former Blounts Court Nursery, Studley, SN11 9NQ 
 
Ioan Rees, Richard Fitter, Richard Aylen spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Emma Geater spoke in support of the application.  
 
Keith Robbins, Calne Without Parish Council, raised a number of concerns 
about the development. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application which was a reserved 
maters application in respect of scale, layout, external appearance and 
landscaping for the erection of 53 dwellings, public open space and associated 
infrastructure. The application was recommended for permission subject to 
planning conditions, as amended by late observations. It was highlighted that 
outline planning permission had already been granted for up to 53 units on the 
site. Site location maps and photographs were shown, including photographs of 
neighbouring development and style of housing. The officer considered the 
proposal offered very good residential amenity and separation from 
neighbouring properties. It was acknowledged the proposed design of housing 
was different in appearance to dwellings in Studley, but not compared to closer 
developments. 
 
The Committee was invited to ask technical questions, in response to which it 
was confirmed that driveways of the proposed dwellings would not exit directly 
onto the A4. Attention was drawn to the Late Observations which proposed an 
amendment to condition 2. 
 
Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Christine Crisp spoke about the history of the site and 
the benefits of a pedestrian crossing that had been approved as part of the 
outline permission.  
 
In the debate that followed, Cllr Hutton moved the officer’s recommendation, 
which was seconded by Cllr Stugis. It was commented that outline consent had 
already been granted and the proposal before the Committee was an 
acceptable scheme for this site, it was noted that design was a subjective 
matter and whilst some members did not consider the application to be 
appropriate, others considered it to feature good landscaping and frontage. 
Some members of the Committee considered the application was not suitable 
as a gateway to Studley and recommended further consideration should be 
given by the developers to the comments of local residents and the parish 

Page 139



 
 
 

 
 
 

council to propose a more suitable design. The motion was put to the vote and 
failed. 
 
Cllr Grant, seconded by Cllr Hurst, moved that determination be deferred for 
two cycles to allow for negotiations with the applicant to address design and 
layout elements of the scheme. Members of the Committee commented the 
application was contrary to Core Policy 53. Officers cautioned the Committee 
against deferring the item as the developer was under no obligation to amend 
the plans and the Committee needed to specify the design elements it was not 
satisfied with. Officers therefore recommended the application either be refused 
or approved, and highlighted Studley was not a separate settlement to Derry in 
the context of the Core Strategy and that any refusal of the application on this 
basis could not be defended at Appeal.  
 
Members commented there were constraints on the developer as to the 
changes that could be made, however the Committee felt the development was 
not inkeeping with the character of the area. The Legal Officer advised the 
Committee must be clear about the specific elements of the scheme it would 
like to see changed as a result of deferral and negotiations with the developers, 
since the professional opinion of officers was that the scheme was acceptable 
and they would not defend a refusal of the application in the event of an Appeal 
process. Upon discussion, the Committee agreed negotiations with the 
developer should consider: surfacing materials, linear kerbing and removal of 
kerb-stones, and layout, particularly in respect of the A4 frontage. Further 
comments included that a less linear layout and variation in materials for 
driveways would be welcomed. On going to the vote, the resolution was agreed. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the application be DEFERRED for two cycles to allow Officers to 
negotiate amendments to the submitted scheme in the following respects: 
(i) surfacing materials; (ii) linear kerbing and removal of kerb-stones; and 
(iii) layout, particularly in respect of the A4 frontage. To DELEGATE 
authority to officers to undertake the aforementioned negotiations.  
 

85 17/05625/FUL Land between 18 & 19 Avils Lane, Lower Stanton St Quintin, 
SN14 6BY 
 
Gil Schwenk, Paul Craven and Murray Walker spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 

Mr Vitale and Charles Manning spoke in favour of the application. 
 
Cllr John Seale, Stanton St Quinton Parish Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for a new dwelling and 
garage, noting the proposed change of use of a small area of the rear paddock 
to residential curtilage had been removed from the scheme. The application 
was recommended for permission, subject to the planning conditions outlined in 

Page 140



 
 
 

 
 
 

the report. A site location plan, photographs and details of the proposed plans 
was provided. The officer drew attention to the extant outline permission which 
already existed on the site. 
 
The Committee was invited to ask technical questions, in response to which it 
was confirmed a condition was in place to secure a scheme of drainage on site. 
Additionally, officers advised permitted development rights could be removed 
from the garage should the Committee consider it would affect amenity. 
 
Members of the public then spoke as detailed above. 
 
The local member, Cllr Howard Greenman, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
In response to statements from the public and the local member the Senior 
Planning Officer advised there was a proposed condition on the application to 
prevent the use of the garage for residential accommodation. It was also 
highlighted the plans presented at outline stage for point of access were only 
indicative. 
 
Cllrs Hurst and Sturgis declared interests in this item as detailed above. 
 
In the debate that followed members agreed that slab levels should be as low 
as possible since they would be higher than the adjacent plot. Cllr Hutton, 
seconded by Cllr Sturgis, moved the officer’s recommendation with an 
amendment to a condition on drainage to ensure that slab levels and drainage 
be kept as low as possible. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To GRANT planning permission subject to the following conditions, 
including an amendment to drainage conditions to require low drainage 
and slab levels, the wording of which was DELEGATED to officers: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
892/CAM/2017/1 rev A - Elevations & Floor Plans 
Received 31 July 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

Page 141



 
 
 

 
 
 

3. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and 
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 
4. No development shall commence on site until full details of boundary 
planting and/or fences have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary treatments shall be 
carried out in full prior to the end of the first planting season following 
first occupation of the development, in accordance approved details. The 
approved boundary treatments shall be retained and maintained as such 
at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and the character and appearance of 
the area. 
 
5. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
6. The access hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until 
visibility splays have been provided between the edge of the carriageway 
and a line extending from a point 2.4 metres back from the edge of the 
carriageway, measured along the centre line of the access, to the points 
on the edge of the carriageway 43 metres in both directions from the 
centre of the access in accordance with the approved plans. Such splays 
shall thereafter be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision 
above a height of 1 metre above the level of the adjacent carriageway. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), there shall be no additions to, or extensions or 
enlargements of any building forming part of the development hereby 
permitted. 
 

Page 142



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), no garages, sheds, greenhouses and other ancillary 
domestic outbuildings shall be erected anywhere on the site on the 
approved plans. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 
 
9. Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied the windows 
in the southeast elevation shall be glazed with obscure glass only [to an 
obscurity level of no less than level 3] and the windows shall be 
maintained with obscure glazing in perpetuity. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting 
or amending that Order with or without modification), no additional 
windows shall be inserted into the southeast elevation of the development 
hereby permitted. 
 
REASON: In the interests of residential amenity and privacy. 
 
10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garage(s) hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation.  
 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
11. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface and foul water from the site  (including surface water 
from the access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Such details shall include all Finished Floor Levels in relation 
to the ground.  The development shall not be first occupied until the 
drainage system and Finished Floor Levels have been constructed in 
accordance with the agreed details. (The wording of this condition was 
subsequently agreed by officers under delegated authority).  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained whilst securing a suitable form of development for the locality 

Page 143



 
 
 

 
 
 

that does not necessitate an excessively elevated Finished Floor Level 
above ground level 
 
12. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
13. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
14. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 
15. INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material 
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning 
Officer where they are to be found. 
  
  

86 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.40 pm) 

 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214 , e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 144



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 5 OCTOBER 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM - THE CORN EXCHANGE, MARKET 
PLACE, DEVIZES, SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Mark Connolly (Chairman), Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Stewart Dobson, 
Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr Nick Fogg MBE, Cllr Richard Gamble and Cllr Anna Cuthbert 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
40. Apologies 

 
Apologies were receved from Councillors James Sheppard and Paul Oatway 
QPM. 
 
Councillor Sheppard was substituted by Councillor Anna Cuthbert. 
 

41. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2017 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a true and correct record. 
 

42. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 

43. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 

44. Public Participation 
 
The rules on public participation were noted. 
 

Page 145

Agenda Item 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

45. The Wiltshire Council (Parish of Urchfont) Path No.51 Definitive Map and 
Statement Modification Order 2015 
 
Public Participation 
Carol Talbot, Headteacher, Urchfont Primary School, spoke in objection to the 
Order 
Roy Hickey spoke in objection to the Order. 
Martin Kemp representing the Diocese of Salisbury, spoke in objection to the 
Order. 
Malcolm Smith spoke in support of the Order. 
Trevor Hill spoke in support of the Order. 
Sue Giddings spoke in support of the Order. 
Cllr Bill Donald, Urchfont Parish council, spoke in support of the Order. 
 
A report was presented by Richard Broadhead, Rights of Way and Countryside 
Manager, outlining the Wiltshire Council (Parish of Urchfont) Path No.51 
Definitive Map and Statement Modification Order 2015, and the 
recommendation to forward the Order to the Secretary of State for Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs for confirmation. As objections had been received to the 
Order, the council was required to send the order to the Secretary of State for 
determination, and it could recommend the order be confirmed as made, not 
confirmed, or be confirmed with modification, after considering all evidence that 
had been submitted within the statutory consultation period. 
 
The history of the order application was detailed, outlining the application from 
Urchfont Parish Council, the route claimed which included a section through the 
grounds of Urchfont Primary School and the number and content of objections 
and supporting statements and evidence. Attention was drawn to two 
objections, one of which had not been included with the list of evidence but 
which had been submitted within the proper timescales, and which would be 
included with the evidence sent to the Secretary of State. The second piece of 
evidence had not been submitted within appropriate timescales and advice was 
being sought. 
 
The Committee were also reminded of the legal tests for confirmation of a public 
right of way, in particular the need to demonstrate, on a balance of probabilities, 
that the claimed route had been used without force, without secrecy and without 
permission and without interruption over a period of 20 years. It was noted that 
the claimed route passed through the grounds of the primary school and many 
safeguarding concerns had been raised by objectors, however it was 
established the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 did not permit safeguarding 
considerations to be taken into account when determining whether a claimed 
public right of way met the required legal tests, though discussions were 
ongoing on possible mitigating measures should the Order be confirmed. 
 
The Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions of the 
officer. Details were sought on evidence submitted regarding the route being 
utilised prior to construction of the primary school in 1974. 
 

Page 146



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee with 
their views, as detailed above. 
 
The local Division Member, Councillor Phillip Whitehead, then spoke regarding 
the Order, detailing that he had conversations with both sides involved but had 
had no participation in submitting or deciding the Order, and asked the 
Committee to consider the evidence submitted carefully when making its 
decision. 
 
The Committee then debated the Order and the options available to it. Issues 
raised included noting that safeguarding considerations could not be taken into 
account when assessing the evidence, the strength of the evidence submitted 
by objectors and supporters, in particular whether sufficient signage had been in 
place to clarify the route was not intended as a public right of way and whether 
the area had been sufficiently unavailable to the public to make that clear, and 
the variation in some submissions as to the exact route claimed. In response to 
queries it was confirmed that no new evidence, such as any alternate routes 
that might be utilised instead if further work were undertaken, could be 
submitted at this stage of the process. 
 
A motion to forward the Order to the Secretary of State with the 
recommendation it be confirmed as made was moved by Councillor Richard 
Gamble, seconded by Councillor Peter Evans, and at the conclusion of debate it 
was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To forward the Order to the Secretary of State for the Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs for confirmation as made. 
 
 
 

46. Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.00 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 148



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 29 JUNE 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr Sven Hocking, Cllr George Jeans and Cllr Robert Yuill (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Clewer 
  

 
183 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 

 Cllr John Smale, who was substituted by Cllr Robert Yuill 

 Cllr Brian Dalton 

 Cllr Ian McLennan 
184 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 30 May 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 

185 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

186 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 
He also made the following announcements: 
 
Item 7, Commons Act 2006, Section 22, Schedule 2, Application to De-Register 
Land as Common Land at Herrington House – had been withdrawn by the 
applicant. 
 

Page 149

Agenda Item 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

Item 8b – 79 Southampton Road, Clarendon, Salisbury. – After reading the 
application and report associated. The discussion with officers not been as clear 
as could have been. Intend to defer this application, for a site visit, and to take 
place once the missing information has been provided. 
 
Deferred pending a site visit. All voted in favour. 
 
Cllr Devine noted that this has been ongoing for some time. Can Officers 
provide a revised report detailing all of the required information? 

187 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

188 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions for the period 
19/05/2017 to 16/06/2017, as detailed in the agenda. 
 
MH – Greyhound at Wilton, doors and windows put in, are they all going back to 
what we requested?  
 
The appeal was related to our decision; we did not overturn the officers 
decision. 
 
 
Resolved 
That the Appeals Update for 19/05/17 – 16/06/17 be noted 

189 Commons Act 2006 Section 22, Schedule 2, Application to De-Register 
Land as Common Land at Herrington House, Whiteparish 
 
This item was withdrawn by the applicant and was therefore not considered at 
this meeting. 
 

190 Planning Applications 
 

191 17/00280/VAR: Stonehenge Visitor Centre, A344 Airmans Corner, 
Winterbourne Stoke, Wiltshire, SP4 7DE 
 
Public Speakers 
David Hassett spoke in objection to the application 
Ian West spoke in objection to the application 
Jim Pitt spoke in objection to the application 
Jennifer Davies of English Heritage, spoke in support of the application 
Chris Bally of English Heritage spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Chris Harris of Shrewton Parish Council spoke in objection to the 
application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Lucy Minting introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for a variation of the pedestrian and cycle 
route scheme agreed under Condition 27 of S/2009/1527 for the proposed 

Page 150



 
 
 

 
 
 

permissive pedestrian and cycle path on the grassed over section of the former 
A344 to now be open to the public by 1st October 2017, to allow the grass 
surface to be sufficiently established, be approved subject to conditions. 
 
Attention was drawn to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting, 
detailing third party representation received from Cycling Opportunities Group 
for Salisbury (COGS). 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that an expert from English Heritage had advised 
that the grass was not ready to be walked on. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Fred Westmoreland then spoke in support of 
the application, noting that he could see no justifiable reason to refuse this as 
the extension was only three months away. 
 
He acknowledged the frustrations of the local residents over the way English 
Heritage had delivered works at the site over the years.  
 
Cllr Westmoreland moved the motion of Approval in line with Officers 
recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included that over time a grass track 
on chalk, would over time wear away and would need to be replaced. 
 
The Committee noted the reassurance of the applicant that they would not 
apply for any further extension in the future. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission be APPROVED in line with Officers 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 
 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
Alternative path route and waymarker details received 6th June 2017 
Drawing no                                 As received on the 5th October 2009 
AB-A-G200-E-WE rev C 
AB-A-G200-E-N rev C 
AB-A-G200-P-RP rev C 
AB-A-G200-P-00 rev G 
VC-A-G200-S-FF rev C 
VC-A-G200-S-EE rev C 
VC-A-G200-S-CCDD rev D 
VC-A-G200-S-BB rev C 
VC-A-G200-S-AA rev D 
VC-A-G200-E-S rev C 

Page 151



 
 
 

 
 
 

VC-A-G200-E-Ea 
VC-A-G200-E-E rev C 
VC-A-G200-P-RP rev C 
VC-A-G200-P-00 rev G 
MP-A-G100-P-03 rev I 
MP-A-G100-P-02 rev G 
MP-A-G100-P-01 rev F 
MP-A-G000-P-XP-03 rev B 
MP-A-G000-P-XP-02 rev B 
MP-A-G000-P-XP-01 rev B 
AC-G200-PA-01 rev B 
VC-A-G200-E-W rev C 
VC-A-G200-E-N rev D 
10110301 - SEIW-21 rev A 
HB-A-G200-P-00 rev E 
MP-A-G100-P-03 rev K 
11110201-PA-001 
10110301-SEIW_17 
10110301-SEIW_18 
10110301-SEIW_20 
10110301-SEIW_22 rev A 
10110301-SEIW_19 
HB-A-G200-P-RP rev D 
HB-A-G200-S-AABB rev C 
HB-A-G200-S-CCDD rev C 
HB-A-G200-S-EEFF rev C 
SE14283-SK-C-01 rev P2 
SE14283-SK-C-02 rev P3 
10110301-SEIW_16 
10110301-SEIW_23 
8877 (A) VC 001 
8877 (L) VC 001 
8877 (E) VC 001 
8877 (E) VC 003 
8877 (E) VC 002 
TH/STON/SK09 rev A 
HB-A-G200-XA-00 
HB-A-G200-XS-AABB rev B 
HB-A-G200-XP-00 rev B 
AB-A-G200-S rev C 
AB-A-G200-E-S rev C 
MP-A-G100-P-02 rev I 
SE14283-SK-C-03 rev P6 
SE14283-SK-C-04 rev P4 
Environmental Statement and appendices received 5th October 2009 
Transport assessment and outline travel plan received 5th October 
2009 
Ecological management strategy received 5th May 2010 
Lighting strategy document received 5th May 2010 
including plan no's - 

Page 152



 
 
 

 
 
 

TH/STON/LIG/500 
10110301-DT05 rev D 
10110301-GA002 rev D 
AC-N-G1 
HUB-N-G1 
VC-A-G500-D-01 rev A 
VC-A-G500-D-02 rev A 
Tabular response of clarification of ecological matters received on the 
22nd December 2009. 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.  
 
(2) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
schedule of materials and finishes to be used for the external walls and roofs 
and all other built structures agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 
13/06/2012. 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 
 
(3) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
boundary treatments and timetable for provision, agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority on 13/06/2012. 
REASON:  To enable the local planning authority to secure the satisfactory 
treatment of the boundaries in the interests of the visual amenity of the World 
Heritage Site. 
 
(4) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
landscaping scheme including the timetable for implementation, agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012. 
If any plant dies, becomes diseased, seriously damaged or fails to thrive within a 
period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, 
it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the same 
place, unless the local planning authority agrees to a variation beforehand in 
writing. 
Retention of existing trees and shrubs 
No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved 
plans shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in 
any way or removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars, without the written approval of the local planning authority. 
All tree works approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 
Recommendations for Tree Work (B.S.3998: 1989). If any tree, shrub or hedge 
shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely damaged or 
diseased within 5 years of the completion of the development, another tree, 
shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the approximate same place, and that tree, 
shrub, or hedge shall be of such a size specification, and species, and should be 
planted at such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Authority. If 
within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or 
defective another tree of the species and size as that originally planted shall be 
planted at approximately the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority 
gives its written consent to any variation. 

Page 153



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON:  To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 so as to safeguard the amenity of the existing trees 
and to ensure a satisfactory appearance of the development. 
 
(5) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Arboricultural Method Statement, agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority on 13/06/2012, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
REASON:  To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, so as to ensure that the amenity value of the most 
important trees, shrubs and hedges growing within or adjacent to the site is 
adequately protected during the period of site clearance and construction. 
 
(6) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
of the Visitor Transit System agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 
13/06/2012 and shall be maintained and operated as approved. 
REASON:  To ensure that the proposed layout can properly accommodate the 
operational requirements of the VTS trains and to ensure visitors who are 
mobility impaired can continue to access the Stonehenge monument. 
Informative: The VTS will be running on a public highway. It must therefore 
comply with all necessary legislation related to such vehicles. 
 
(7) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
showing how vehicles accessing the A344 can turn around and return 
westbound in forward gear, (including all points where access is restricted by 
proposed gating), agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012. 
The development shall be operated in accordance with the approved 
arrangements and details. 
REASON:  In the interests of highway safety and to avoid the inconvenience 
otherwise caused to larger vehicles that might need to gain access for highway 
maintenance or other purposes. 
 
(8) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme demonstrating how any gating or bollarding measures on the A344 are 
to be operated, their legal status, and what provisions are to be made for 
vehicles reasonably requiring access to the public highway and, beyond, to the 
stopped up section of A344 between Byway 12 and Stonehenge Bottom, agreed 
in writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012.  Gating arrangements 
shall only be provided and operated in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON:  To demonstrate that a managed scheme will allow for the 
requirements of all proper vehicular users of the highway at all times of the day 
and night throughout the year. 
 
(9) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme demonstrating how any gating or bollarding measures on the A344 are 
to be operated, their legal status, and what provisions are to be made for 
vehicles reasonably requiring access to the public highway and, beyond, to the 
stopped up section of A344 between Byway 12 and Stonehenge Bottom, agreed 
in writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012.  Gating arrangements 
shall only be provided and operated in accordance with the approved scheme. 
REASON: To demonstrate that a managed scheme will allow for the 
requirements of all proper vehicular users of the highway at all times of the day 
and night throughout the year. 
 

Page 154



 
 
 

 
 
 

(10) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
visitor management strategy, agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 
13/06/2012.  The development shall not be operated other than in accordance 
with the approved visitor management strategy in perpetuity.   
REASON: In order to protect the Salisbury Plain SAC/SPA and the wider 
landscape and nature conservation interests. 
 
(11) The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
scheme and programme for cycle parking and storage provision at the western 
end of the retained A344 and for cycle parking at the eastern end, agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012. The facilities shall be 
provided in accordance with the approved scheme and programme and 
maintained thereafter. 
REASON:  In order to facilitate the objectives of the travel planning requirements 
for the site insofar as they relate to encouraging pedestrian and cycle transport, 
and to discourage random parking of cycles within the vicinities of the Stones 
and the proposed Visitor Centre. 
 
(12) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
construction management plan, agreed in writing by the local planning authority 
on 25/06/2012. 
REASON:  To mitigate the impact of construction traffic during the construction 
period and in the interests of highway safety on the local and strategic road 
network. 
 
(13) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
landscape management plan (including a statement for the long-term effective 
maintenance of the agreed landscape scheme and full details of all management 
and establishment operations over a ten-year period including details of the 
relevant management, and supervisory responsibilities), agreed in writing by the 
local planning authority on 13/06/2012 as amended by the revised landscape 
management plan dated 25/07/2016 and agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority dated 21/12/2016 for the permissive path to be opened by 1st October 
2017. 
The approved landscape management plan includes the provision for a review to 
be undertaken during the course of the plan with a final review being undertaken 
before the end of the ten-year period. A revised landscape management plan 
shall be submitted for the agreement of the Local Planning Authority before the 
ten years has expired. The revised details shall make similar provisions for the 
long-term maintenance and management of the landscape scheme. The revised 
scheme shall also make provision for future revision and updating. The 
provisions of the landscape management plan and subsequent revisions shall be 
adhered to and any variation shall have been agreed beforehand in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. No trees, shrubs, hedges or other plants shall be 
removed for the duration of the landscape management scheme or its revisions, 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  Management 
of the landscape scheme in accordance with the landscape management plan or 
their agreed revisions shall not cease unless agreed in writing by the local 
Planning Authority. 
REASON: To comply with the duties indicated in Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, so as to ensure that the amenity to be provided by 
the new landscaping is achieved and safeguarded, and to ensure satisfactory 
appearance to the development. 
 

Page 155



 
 
 

 
 
 

(14) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved water 
supply and water efficiency scheme agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority on 13/06/2012. The approved scheme shall be maintained in perpetuity. 
REASON:  The site is located on a major aquifer within the catchment of the 
River Avon SAC/SSSI and the South Wiltshire core strategy proposed 
submission document (July 2009; policy 19) includes the requirement for non-
residential development to include water efficiency measures. 
 
(15) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
scheme for the disposal of foul drainage, agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority on 13/06/2012.  The approved scheme shall be maintained in perpetuity. 
REASON:  The site is located on a major aquifer within the catchment of the 
River Avon SAC/SSSI. Appropriate drainage arrangements will ensure 
groundwater is protected. 
(16) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
construction environmental management plan and timetable, agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority on 25/06/2012. 
REASON:  The site is located on a major aquifer with the catchment of the River 
Avon SAC/SSSI. Appropriate pollution prevention arrangements during 
construction will ensure groundwater and surface water are protected. 
 
(17) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
lighting scheme (including street lighting, lighting for the car and coach parks, 
lighting for footpaths, lighting at the drop off points, including intensity of the 
lighting and design for the light column and arrangements for testing of the 
works on their first operation), agreed in writing by the local planning authority 
on 13/06/2012.  All the works and operation of the development shall 
subsequently accord with the approved details. 
REASON:  To ensure that the lighting scheme respects the overall design 
qualities required from the development and to minimise impact of the lighting 
scheme upon both the World Heritage Site and wider landscape and nature 
conservation interests and the Salisbury Plain SAC/SPA. 
 
(18)  The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
written programme of archaeological investigation, agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority on 13/06/2012. 
REASON:  To ensure that artefacts of archaeological importance are properly 
recorded and evaluated. 
 
(19) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved waste 
audit, agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012  
REASON:  In the interests of achieving a sustainable development. 
 
(20) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
scheme of internal pedestrian footpaths within the visitor centre site, agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority on 13/06/2012. 
REASON:  To facilitate pedestrian movement on identified desire lines. 
 
(21) The retail unit within the visitor centre shall not sell goods outside of the 
agreed range of goods, agreed in writing by the local planning authority on 
13/06/2012, other than as a minor and ancillary part of the stores operation 
without the prior written approval of the local planning authority. 

Page 156



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON:  To enable the local planning authority to exercise adequate control 
over the kind of good which are sold from the premises, in the interests of 
maintaining the vitality and viability of Amesbury Town Centre. 
 
(22) The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved 
details of the pedestrian and cycle route along the whole of the A344, including 
the approved scheme for reviewing such access agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority on 25/06/2012 as amended by this application for the 
permissive path on the grassed over section of the A344 to be opened to the 
public by 1st October 2017.  
Within 1 month of the date of this decision, waymarker signs (7.5cm diameter 
yellow discs with black directional arrows and the words “Temporary Permissive 
Path for Pedestrians and Cyclists” also in black) shall be attached to the 
adjacent fence posts in the positions shown on the route plan of the temporary 
path (including an additional waymarker at the junction of the A344 and Byway 
12), received by the local planning authority on the 06/06/2017.  These shall be 
removed within 1 month of the opening of the permissive path. 
REASON:  To accommodate and facilitate the inevitable future local pedestrian 
and cyclist demand travelling the route between the Stones and west Amesbury. 
 
INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT: 
This permission shall be read in conjunction with an Agreement made under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1990 and dated 23rd June 
2010. 
 

 
 
 
191a 17/01402/FUL: 79 Southampton Road, Clarendon, Salisbury, 
Wiltshire, SP5 3DG 
 
The Chairman noted that the report was missing sections of information which 
were required for consideration. He moved the motion that the application be 
deferred pending the acquisition of that information from the applicant, and 
further to receiving the information a site visit was also requested. 
 
Resolved: 
That application 17/01402/FUL – 79 Southampton Road, Clarendon, 
Salisbury, SP5 3DG be DEFERRED for a site visit and to allow additional 
information and clarification in respect of the proposed development to be 
sought. 
 
 
 
191b 17/03126/FUL: Caddens, Lower Road, Homington, Wiltshire, SP5 
4NG 
 
Public Participation  
Dr J Eastern spoke in objection to the application 
Darryl Rogers (Agent) spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Stephen Gledhill, Coombe Bissett & Homington PC 
 

Page 157



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Planning Officer, Joe Richardson, introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for extensions, alterations and construction 
of a replacement garage at Caddens, Lower Road, Homington, be approved 
with conditions. 
 
It was noted that secondary access to the site was maintained, and that it was 
felt that the proposed works would improve the properties appearance within 
the street-scene. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer, details were sought on the access to the property, where it was 
conformed that this would be increased from one to two points. There had been 
no objections from Highways, as they believed the visibility was sufficient. The 
proposals included parking for up to 4 vehicles. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Clewer then spoke in objection to the 
application. He noted that Homington was a small pretty village with little 
parking. The applicant had worked hard to try and overcome some of the 
objections, however he felt that the proposed extension was too big for the plot. 
The pictures shown did not show the development as it would be and the 
proposed wall did not fit in with the street scene. 
 
Cllr Devine moved the motion of Objection against Officers recommendation, on 
the grounds of over development and that the property was in a conservation 
area. This was seconded by Cllr Britton 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included the scale of the extension 
was too large for the site, and the position of the garage to the front of the 
property was not appropriate and would be more acceptable if it had been 
positioned to the rear, where there was plenty of space, and would be more in-
keeping with the rural character with the village.  
 
The proposed development would see half of the entire site developed, 
whereas before it was only approximately one fifth.  
 
Resolved 
That planning permission be REFUSED, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The application site is located in the village of Homington within the 
Homington Conservation Area and Cranborne Chase and West 
Wiltshire Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The settlement is 
characterised by traditional dwellings interspersed by modest infill 
development. The proposed works would produce a substantially 
larger property, with a large detached garage located close to the 
narrow main road. Combined with the planned boundary works, the 
resultant development would be unsympathetic to the modest 
traditional character of the settlement, and set an undesirable 

Page 158



 
 
 

 
 
 

precedent for similar development within the surrounding 
Conservation Area and wider Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
Therefore the proposal is considered to be contrary to the terms of 
Core Policies 51, 57 and 58 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy, the NPPF 
and Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990. 

 
 
 

192 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 
The following site visits were requested: 
 

 17/01402/FUL – 79 Southampton Road, Clarendon, Salisbury, Wiltshire, 
SP5 3DG 
 

 
Cllr Dean noted that since the refusal of application 16/09793/FUL -  90 
Fisherton Street, Salisbury, Wiltshire, SP2 7QY (Baroushka) at the last meeting, 
no action had yet been taken to implement the decision. The Chairman advised 
that the matter be taken to the enforcement Officers as this was not a matter for 
the Planning Committee 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.15 pm – 4.15pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE SOUTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 24 AUGUST 2017 AT ALAMEIN SUITE - CITY HALL, MALTHOUSE LANE, 
SALISBURY, SP2 7TU. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Fred Westmoreland (Chairman), Cllr Richard Britton (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Matthew Dean, Cllr Christopher Devine, Cllr Jose Green, Cllr Mike Hewitt, 
Cllr George Jeans, Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr John Smale and Cllr Trevor Carbin 
(Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Atiqul Hoque 
 
  

 
193 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 

 Cllr Bran Dalton, who was substituted by Cllr Trevor Carbin 
 

194 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on 29 June 2017, were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes. 
 

195 Declarations of Interest 
 
In relation to application 17/03957/FUL - Cllr Richard Britton noted for 
openness, that he had a historic connection to the current building, as he had 
been the Assistant General Manager of UK Provident when the building had 
been built over 30 years ago. As this did not constitute an Interest, he took part 
in the discussion and vote on the application. 
 

196 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman explained the meeting procedure to the members of the public. 
 

Page 161

Agenda Item 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

197 Public Participation 
 
The committee noted the rules on public participation. 

198 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Committee received details of the appeal decisions for the period 16/06/17 
to 11/08/17 as detailed in the agenda. 
 
Resolved 
That the appeals update for 16/06/17 – 11/08/17 be noted. 
 
Questions 
Cllr Green asked for clarity on what steps would now be taken following the 
outcome of the retrospective application 16/03437/FUL in Fonthill Gifford.  

Answer: The Enforcement Officer would write to the offender advising of the 
need to comply with the original planning consent and give them a period of 
time to do so within. If they did not comply with it enforcement action would then 
be taken. 

 
199 Planning Applications 
200 17/01402/FUL: 79 Southampton Road, Clarendon 

 
Public Speakers 
Louise Cooper spoke in support of the application 
Joanna Rees-Bains spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmons introduced the report, which 
recommended that the application for the replacement of existing structures be 
approved subject to conditions as listed in the report. 
 
Attention was drawn to the confidential correspondence circulated to Members 
prior to the meeting and the site visit that had taken place earlier that day.  
 
The site was recognised as a Gypsy and Traveller (G&T) site of 2.6 hectares 
which was extensively screened by mature trees. Material considerations to be 
considered were supported by the confidential medical documents.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that the Enforcement Team had confirmed there 
were no outstanding on this site. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Chris Devine then spoke in support of the 
application, noting that he had originally called in the application, prior to the last 
Committee meeting, where it had been for consideration as the Officers 
recommendation then had been for refusal. Further information was needed 
which is why it was deferred. The application had now come back with an 

Page 162



 
 
 

 
 
 

Officer’s recommendation of approval. He added that all the surrounding 
neighbours were in support of the application.  
 
Cllr Devine then moved Officer’s recommendation of Approval subject to the 
conditions as detailed in the report. This was seconded by Cllr McLennan. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, that this site was well kept 
and maintained by the applicants. 
 
A detailed explanation of medical concerns had been provided, along with two 
letters of support from doctors which addressed the relevant medical issues, 
including specific references to the intended occupier of the bungalow. 
 
The site had been occupied for over 60 years. One of the conditions applied to 
the recommendation included the restriction of occupancy of the bungalow to 
those with G&T origin. This would restrict who could live in the bungalow in the 
future. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Approval, subject to conditions. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission be approved in line with Officer’s 
recommendation, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 

accordance with the following approved plans: 

 
Drawing number DJB/SW/01 (undated), as deposited with the local 
planning authority on 21.04.17, and 
Drawing number 70383297-69608 (dated Jan 2017), as deposited 
with the local planning authority on 14.03.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Proposed bungalow’ (floorplans and elevations) 
(undated), as deposited with the local planning authority on 
21.04.17. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) (England)Order 2015  (or any 

Order revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or 

without modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A-E 

Page 163



 
 
 

 
 
 

(inclusive) shall take place on the dwellinghouse hereby permitted 

or within the curtilage. 

 
REASON:  In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable 
the Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether 
planning permission should be granted for additions, extensions or 
enlargements. 

 
4. The development for which planning consent is hereby granted 

shall not be permanently occupied by persons other than gypsies 

and travellers as defined in Annex 1 of Planning policy for traveller 

sites (DCLG, 2012).  

 
REASON: Planning permission has only been granted on the basis 
of the intended occupiers’ specific and demonstrated personal 
medical and family circumstances. It is considered thereby that the 
normal planning policy requirements (which would otherwise lead 
to a refusal of the proposed development) should not apply in this 
case. Should the approved development (at a future time) be no 
longer needed for the intended occupier(s), the accommodation 
should remain available to provide accommodation to meet the 
need for accommodation for gypsies and travellers to avoid a net 
loss of such accommodation in the local area. 
 

201 17/03957/FUL: UK House Complex including 79 and 89 Endless Street, 
Salisbury 
 
Public Speakers 
Mr Venner spoke in objection of the application 
Mr Mike Lennard spoke to raise some points 
Mrs Barbara Barbour spoke in support of the application 
Mr Gian Bendinelli spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Jeremy Nettle of Salisbury City Council spoke in support of the application 
 
The Head of Development Management, Mike Wilmott introduced the report, 
which recommended that the application for the retention & conversion of Belle 
Vue House to dwelling with self-contained flat. Demolition of all other buildings 
and erection of: 3 houses & 2 apartments with associated car parking; 24 
retirement apartments with communal facilities & car parking; assisted 
living/extra care accommodation for older people with communal facilities & car 
parking. Vehicular access to all parts of proposed development via Endless St 
be approved subject to conditions as detailed in the report. 
 
Attention was drawn to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting.  
 
The development would see the existing structure built 30 years ago, returned 
to a residential use of the listed building Bellevue house.  
 

Page 164



 
 
 

 
 
 

The development would be 3.5m lower overall than the previous building, and 
included 56 off street parking spaces. 
 
The Clubhouse would be demolished. There had been no objections from 
Highways, as a substantial amount of parking would be provided.  
 
Approval of the development would be subject to the prior completion of a 106 
agreement. All accommodation provided within the development would have a 
restricted age criteria. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that SCC request for a second temporary 
pedestrian crossing during construction would be addressed by Rights of Way 
during the construction works at the time. 
 
In relation to the existing clubhouse, condition 3 allows for further consideration 
of a revised more suitable contemporary design to be submitted to the local 
planning authority for approval in writing. 
 
The 56 parking spaces would be in addition to those allocated for Belle Vue 
house, which would accommodate the staff parking. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
Salisbury City Councillor, Cllr Nettle spoke in support of the development. Some 
of the key points he raised included concern surrounding access on the path 
during development stages. They had suggested a second crossing further 
down towards the post office during the works. 
There had been no reference to any light pollution from the bus depot, that 
some of the houses may be affected by. Construction works should be limited 
between the hours of 8.00am – 6.00pm. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Atiqul Hoque then spoke in objection to the 
application, in view of its scale and significance within the context of Salisbury. 
He added that McCarthy and Stone had agreed in principle to financially 
contribute towards a local community needs project. Local residents had put 
forward their wish that a series of murals be incorporated within the St Edmund 
and Milford Ward. Andrew Guest was aware of this request, which would 
require approximately a £11k contribution towards the funds the community had 
arranged.  
 
Cllr Hewitt then moved the motion of approval, in line with Officer’s 
recommendation. This was seconded by Cllr Smale. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included, that there was a need for 
this type of accommodation scheme in the city, however the design of the front 
of the properties along Castle Street was felt to be dull, with an excessive use of 
red brick, with no architectural significance to the city. Several Members felt that 

Page 165



 
 
 

 
 
 

the aesthetics could be improved, however the application could not be refused 
on design grounds alone.  
 
It was noted that there were no access points to the properties from Castle 
Street, as access would be via Endless Street, which was thought to prevent 
additional congestion which could have been due to vehicles dropping off on an 
already congested street.  
 
There has been a huge amount of dialogue between Salisbury City Council, the 
Civic Society and the developers. 
 
On a drawing of the scale presented on the slides at the meeting, it was difficult 
to show the level of detail that has been included in the plans. There was 
articulation on the individual drawings which showed more detail.  
 
The Committee voted on the motion of approval. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for 17/03957/FUL be Approved subject to the 
applicant first completing a ‘S106’ planning obligation – to require 
financial contributions to be made towards off-site affordable housing 
provision and refuse collection containers, and that the Associate 
Director, Economic Development & Planning be authorised to grant 
planning permission using delegated powers subject to the following 
conditions –  
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 

of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved a phasing 
plan for the delivery of the entire development shall be submitted to the 
local planning authority for approval in writing.  The phasing plan shall 
divide the site into areas and for each area the planned timing, or phasing, 
of (where relevant) demolition, conversion and new build works shall be 
specified. In particular the phasing plan shall specify that the works for the 
change of use of Belle Vue House will be commenced prior to first 
occupation of any of the residential units (nos. 2 to 5) forming part of this 
area of the development. The development shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved phasing plan. 
REASON: To ensure the timely delivery of all elements of the development, 
and in particular the change of use of Belle Vue House which is a listed 
building, this in the interests of its safeguarding the conservation area and 
Belle Vue House which are designated heritage assets. 

3 Notwithstanding the drawings submitted with the application for dwelling 
no. 1, further drawings for its siting and detailed design (including 
elevations which should be no less than 1:50 and details for windows, 

Page 166



 
 
 

 
 
 

doors and eaves (to include sections) at a scale of no less than 1:10) shall 
be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing.  
Dwelling no. 1 shall then be erected in accordance with the approved 
further drawings.  
REASON:  The principle of a low, contemporary-style dwelling to be sited 
in the area indicated for dwelling no. 1 is accepted.  However, the detailed 
drawings presented thus far for this dwelling are unacceptable in terms of 
the impact on the conservation area and the setting of the listed building, 
Belle Vue House.  This condition, therefore, effectively 'reserves' the 
design of dwelling no. 1 for later approval to allow a more sympathetic 
siting and design to be presented.   

4 Prior to commencement of the garage/car port building indicated on the 
site plan to serve Belle Vue House, details of its design/external 
appearance shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval 
in writing.  Thereafter the garage/car port building shall be erected in 
accordance with the approved details. 
REASON:  The application contains insufficient detail to enable this matter 
to be agreed at this time, and in the interests of ensuring a satisfactory 
design adjacent to Belle Vue House. 

5 With due regard to the Preliminary Site Investigation and Contamination 
Appraisal Report by ACS Testing Ltd dated 14 March 2017, no development 
hereby approved (other than demolition and related site clearance works) 
shall be commenced until a more detailed site investigation and risk 
assessment is carried out in accordance with DEFRA and Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
CLR11" and other authoritative guidance, and a further report detailing the 
more detailed site investigation and risk assessment shall then be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.    
If the report submitted pursuant to the above indicates that remedial works 
are required, full details of these works shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing and thereafter implemented as 
approved prior to the commencement of the development (other than 
demolition and related clearance works) or in accordance with a timetable 
that has also been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority as part 
of the approved remediation scheme.  On completion of any required 
remedial works the applicant shall provide written confirmation to the 
Local Planning Authority that the works have been completed in 
accordance with the agreed remediation strategy.  
REASON:  To ensure that land contamination can be dealt with adequately 
prior to the new development taking place. 

6 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall include the 
following:   

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;  
d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 

displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;  
e) wheel washing facilities;  
f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction; and 

Page 167



 
 
 

 
 
 

h) hours of construction, including deliveries;  
 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 
throughout the construction period. The development shall not be carried 
out otherwise than in accordance with the approved construction method 
statement. 
Regarding demolition, these works shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the Method Statement for the Demolition and Strip Out 
Works by Wessex Demolition & Salvage Ltd dated 11 April 2017. 
REASON:   A CEMP is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise detrimental effects to the 
neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the area in general, and dangers 
to highway safety, during the construction phase. 

7 Notwithstanding the details set out in the application particulars, no 
building works shall commence in any particular phase of the development 
above ground floor slab level until the exact details of the materials to be 
used for the external walls and roofs in that phase have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON:  The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

8 No walls shall be constructed in any particular phase of the development 
hereby approved until a sample wall panels, not less than 1 metre square, 
for that phase have been constructed on site, inspected and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The panels shall then be left in 
position for comparison whilst the development is carried out.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sample. 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

9 No building works shall commence on site in a particular phase of the 
development above ground floor slab level until large scale details of all 
eaves, verges, windows, (including elevations and sections of the 
windows, head, sill and window reveal details), external doors, porch 
columns/capitals/pediments, dormers, projecting bays, parapet capping, 
chimneys and rainwater goods for that phase have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON:  The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development is 
undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 

10 No railings, fences, gates, walls, bollards and other means of enclosure 
within a particular phase of the development hereby approved shall be 
erected until details of their design, external appearance and decorative 

Page 168



 
 
 

 
 
 

finish have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details prior to the development being first occupied.   
REASON:  In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 

11 All soft landscaping for a particular phase comprised in the approved 
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
season following the first occupation of the building(s) in that phase or the 
completion of the development in that phase whichever is the sooner;  All 
shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and 
shall be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants 
which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details for the particular phase prior to 
the occupation of any part of the development within the phase or in 
accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development 
and the protection of existing important landscape features. 

12 Each of the retirement apartments hereby approved shall be occupied only 
by persons over 60 years of age; or in the case of a couple, only by 
persons to include one that is over 60 years of age and the other that is 
over 55 years of age. 
The assisted living accommodation hereby approved shall be occupied 
only by persons over 55 years of age who require care. 
REASON:  The retirement accommodation and assisted living 
accommodation and their associated infrastructure, including parking, 
have been designed for occupation by persons who are in need of such 
accommodation only and so they are unsuitable for other forms of 
occupation. 

13 No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site, and 
no equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to site for the 
purpose of development, until the tree protection measures set out on 
drawing no. 9160/02 Rev B dated 28/6/17 have been erected and/or put into 
place in accordance with British Standard 5837: 2012: "Trees in Relation to 
Design, Demolition and Construction -Recommendations"; and, the 
measures  shall remain in place for the entire development phase and until 
all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from 
the site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached during 
construction operations. 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any 
retained tree/s be topped or lopped other than in accordance with the 
approved plans and particulars. Any topping or lopping approval shall be 
carried out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 "Tree Work - 
Recommendations" or arboricultural techniques where it can be 
demonstrated to be in the interest of good arboricultural practice. 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree 
shall be planted at the same place, at a size and species and planted at 

Page 169



 
 
 

 
 
 

such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of 
any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, 
cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 
metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site 
or adjoining land. 
[In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be 
retained in accordance with the approved plans and particulars; and 
paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of five years]  

14 No part of the development hereby approved shall be first occupied until 
details of the stopping up of all existing accesses to be stopped up, both 
pedestrian and vehicular, have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall include measures for the 
removal of any dropped kerbs and the re-levelling of the pavements.  The 
stopping up shall take place in accordance with the approved details within 
three month of the first occupation of any part of the development.  
Thereafter the sole means of vehicular and pedestrian access to the 
development shall be as shown on the plans hereby approved. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission, and in the 
interests of highway safety. 

15 No part of any phase of the development hereby permitted shall be first 
occupied until the access, turning area and parking spaces for that phase 
have been completed in accordance with the details shown on the 
approved plans. The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all 
times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 

16 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-
enacting or amending that Order with or without modification), the garage 
and car ports for dwelling units 2, 3, 4 and 5 hereby permitted shall not be 
converted to habitable accommodation. 
REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 

17 No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans showing the type 
of light appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination levels and 
light spillage in accordance with Environmental Zone 3 (or lower) 
standards set out by the Institute of Lighting Engineers in their publication 
"Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)", have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved lighting shall be installed and shall be maintained in 
accordance with the approved details and no additional external lighting 
shall be installed.  
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 

18 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the acoustic 
specification for glazing set out in the Noise Impact Assessment by Peter 
Brett Associated dated March 2016. 
REASON:  To ensure a satisfactory living environment for the occupiers of 
the development. 

Page 170



 
 
 

 
 
 

19 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the recommendations set out in the Bat Activity Survey by 
Abbas Ecology dated August 2016. 
REASON:  To safeguard wildlife interests. 

20 Foul and surface water from the site shall be drained in accordance with 
the 'Conclusions and Recommendations' set out in the Drainage Strategy 
by Such Salinger Peters Consulting Engineers dated August 2017. 
REASON:  To ensure satisfactory drainage in accordance with the agreed 
scheme and in the interests of protecting the wider environment. 

21 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 
the following approved plans:  
SO_2335_03_AC_003 E dated 14/06/17 (Location Plan) 
SO_2335_03_AC_010 U dared 14/06/17 (Site Plan) 
SO_2335_03_AC_110 K dated 14/06/17 (Site Plan) 
SO_2335_03_LA_001 J dated 14/06/17 (Landscape Plan) 
SO_2335_03_DE_002 / 64004-02 A dated 03/08/17 (Drainage) 
 
SO_2335_03_AC_011 X dated 14/06/17 (Ground) 
SO_2335_03_AC_012 T dated 14/06/17 (First) 
SO_2335_03_AC_013 S dated 14/06/17 (Second) 
SO_2335_03_AC_014 R dated 14/06/17 (Third) 
SO_2335_03_AC_015 S dated 14/06/17 (Roof) 
SO_2335_03_AC_040 N dated 14/06/17 (Elevations) 
SO_2335_03_AC_040_DK02 C dated 14/06/17 (Elevations) 
SO_2335_03_AC_041 N dated 14/06/17 (Elevations) 
SO_2335_03_AC_042 N dated 14/06/17 (Elevations) 
SO_2335_03_AC_043 dated 14/06/17 (Sections) 
 
SO_2335_03_AC_123 D dated 14/06/17 (Dwelling 2) 
SO_2335_03_AC_124 D dated 14/06/17 (Dwellings 3 & 4) 
SO_2335_03_AC_125 D dated 14/06/17 (Dwelling 5) 
 
SO_2335_03_AC_142 F dated 14/06/17 (Street Scenes) 
SO_2335_03_AC_143 E dated 14/06/17 (Street Scenes) 
 
SO_2335_03_AC_120 F dated 18/04/17 (BV House) 
SO_2335_03_AC_121 C dated 18/04/17 (BV House) 
 
9160/01 dated 03/16 (Tree Constraints) 
9160/02 B dated 28/06/17 (Tree Protection) 
 
'Design Intent' drawings - 
SO_2335_03_AC_201 to 211 (Rev Bs) dated 12/06/17 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

22 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
 The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 

Page 171



 
 
 

 
 
 

Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If an 
Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to the 
Council's Website 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communityi
nfrastructurelevy.  

23 INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:  
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out of 
any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will be 
necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before such 
works commence. 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you are 
also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with regard 
to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

202 17/01880/FUL: Land adjacent 1 Longhedge Cottages, Longhedge 
 
Public Participation 
Robin Reay (agent) spoke in support of the application 
 
The Senior Planning Officer, Warren Simmons introduced the application for 
Construction of 10 semi-detached houses with associated parking, which was 
recommended for approval. 
 
This was a Full application following on from a previous Outline application for 4 
detached dwellings with detached garages, which had been approved last year. 
The application was now for five pairs of semidetached dwellings. 
 
One of the conditions listed in the report was to extend the footway, linking up to 
longhedge.   
 
Attention was drawn to the late correspondence circulated at the meeting, 
relating to drainage and archaeology. It was noted that the conditions as listed 
in the report would need to be amended to support that new data, should the 
application be approved. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the Officer. It was clarified that the houses would be approximately 9-10m 
from the rear elevation of the house and the gardens at the rear would have a 
varying width of around 8m. 

Page 172



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The grassed area shown on the bottom of the plan, next to plot 10, was not a 
communal area, the Officer thought it to be associated with plot 10. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their view to the 
Committee as detailed above. 
 
The Unitary Division Member, Cllr Ian McLennan then spoke in objection to the 
application, due to due to concerns in respect of the scale of development, 
visual impact upon the surrounding area relationship to adjoining properties, 
design (bulk, height, general appearance), environmental/highway impact and 
car parking. He also noted that the bin lorry seemed to be an issue with 
Highways as to whether it could access and turn on site. 
 
Cllr McLennan then moved for Refusal, against Officer’s recommendation. This 
was seconded by Cllr Devine. 
 
A debate followed where key issues raised included the scale of the 
development for the size of the plot. It was suggested that the proposal for 10 
dwellings was cramped in comparison to the outline application. It was also 
noted that compared to the scale of development of the dwellings on the 
Longhedge site, the proposed dwellings on this development were similar. 
 
The report detailed that there were no issues from Highways and that loss of 
amenity was not supported. 
  
There had been much debate on the outline application, relating to the 
possibility of a cycle link going south from the site. Subsequently through 
discussions with Highways, it had been established that the land concerned 
was in the ownership of Wiltshire Council, and was therefore not in the 
applicants control. Any further links on that land would be for the Council to 
consider in the future, and did not form part of this application. 
 
The Committee voted on the motion of Refusal, against Officer’s 
recommendation. The motion was not carried. 
 
The Chairman then moved the motion of Approval, in line with Officer’s 
recommendation, this was seconded by Cllr Hewitt. 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission for 17/01880/FUL be approved, subject to all 
parties entering into a S106 legal agreement which secures the following: 
 
A financial contribution towards Primary education places of £50,937.00 
 
To then delegate to the Head of Development Management to APPROVE 
subject to the relevant conditions in line with Officer’s recommendation, 
with the following conditions: 
 

Page 173



 
 
 

 
 
 

01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Drawing number M293-200 Revision P5 dated Feb’17, as deposited with 
the local planning authority on 22.06.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Proposed site plan, revision F’ dated Feb’17, as 
deposited with the local planning authority on 26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Plots 1 & 2 proposed floor plans and elevations, 
revision B’ dated Feb’17, as deposited with the local planning authority on 
26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Plots 3 & 4 proposed floor plans and elevations, 
revision B’ dated Feb’17, as deposited with the local planning authority on 
26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Plots 5 & 6 proposed floor plans and elevations, 
revision B’ dated Feb’17, as deposited with the local planning authority on 
26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Plots 7 & 8 proposed floor plans and elevations, 
revision B’ dated Feb’17, as deposited with the local planning authority on 
26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Plots 9 & 10 proposed floor plans and elevations, 
revision B’ dated Feb’17, as deposited with the local planning authority on 
26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Proposed site sections, revision C’ dated Feb’17, as 
deposited with the local planning authority on 26.05.17, and 
Drawing reference ‘Site location plan, revision C’ dated Feb’17, as 
deposited with the local planning authority on 26.05.17. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning 
 
03. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the turning areas and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
04. No part of the development shall be first brought into use until the 
visibility splays shown on the approved plans have been provided with no 
obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 0.9m above the nearside 
carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times thereafter. 
 

Page 174



 
 
 

 
 
 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety 
 
05. No development shall commence on site until details of the access 
including improved junction radii, kerbs, surfacing (not loose stone or 
gravel), drainage and an extension to the existing footway have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No 
part of the development shall be occupied until the access improvements 
detailed above have been provided in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is served by an adequate means 
of access. 
 
06. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of acoustic 
insulation for the purposes of preventing the ingress of road traffic noise 
and noise from the proposed business park has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall 
include details of acoustic glazing and ventilation systems. Any works 
which form part of the approved scheme shall be completed prior to the 
premises being occupied and shall be maintained in accordance with the 
approved details at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of future occupiers of the 
proposed dwellings. 
 
07. No construction work shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays 
or outside the hours of 07:30 to 18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:00 to 13:00 
on Saturdays. 
 
REASON: In order to limit the impact of works on residential amenity 
 
08. No burning of waste shall take place on the site during the 
construction phase of the development. 
 
REASON: In order to limit the impact of works on residential amenity 
 
09. The programme of archaeological watching brief detailed in the 
submitted Written Scheme of Investigation (Thames Valley Archaeological 
Services, 17e17wb, January 2016) will be undertaken in line with that 
document. The approved programme(s) of archaeological work will 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and all post-
excavation and reporting completed within six months of the 
archaeological field work being completed. 
 
REASON: To safeguard the identification and recording of features of 
archaeological 
interest. 
 
10.Before development commences, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

Page 175



 
 
 

 
 
 

by the Local Planning Authority which secures protection of habitats and 
species during the construction period, including pollution prevention 
measures. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
agreed CEMP. 
 
REASON: In order to prevent pollution of the water environment and to 
protect habitats and species during the construction period so as to limit 
the impacts of the development. 
 
11. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site (including surface water from the 
access/driveway), incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall not be first brought into use/occupied until surface 
water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 
12. The development authorised by this permission shall not begin until 
the local planning authority has approved in writing a full scheme of 
works for the creation of an appropriately kerbed, surfaced and finished 
new section of footway to link the entrance of the application site to the 
existing surfaced footway along the A345. The occupation of any part of 
the development shall not begin until those works have been completed in 
accordance with the local planning authority's approval and have been 
certified in writing as complete by or on behalf of the local planning 
authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the construction of a new section of footway linking 
the application site to the existing footway along the A345, in the interests 
of Highway/pedestrian safety and sustainability. 
 
13. No development shall commence on site until details of the external 
materials to be used for the walls and roofs of the development have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
14. No occupation of the development shall take place until the foul 
drainage serving the dwellings has been successfully connected to the 
mains foul sewer. 
 
REASON: To prevent pollution of controlled waters. The site is within a 
source protection zone 1 and very close to a public drinking water 
borehole.  This condition is necessary to ensure that no pollution of the 
local groundwater, and thus the borehole, occurs. 
 

Page 176



 
 
 

 
 
 

203 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 5.00 pm ) 
 
 
 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Lisa Moore of Democratic Services, 
direct line (01722) 434560, e-mail lisa.moore@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 178



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 28 JUNE 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, 
Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Stewart Palmen and 
Cllr Pip Ridout 
 
Also in attendance: 
 
Cllr Gordon King and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
  

 
39 Apologies 

 
There were no apologies for absence. Cllr Gordon King was in attendance to 
speak to agenda item 7a on behalf of the local unitary member Cllr David 
Jenkins. 
 

40 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2017 were presented and Cllr 
Christopher Newbury, seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis, moved that they be 
approved as a correct record. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the 
Western Area Planning Committee held on 31 May 2017. 
 

41 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

42 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman had no announcements to make. 
 
 
 

Page 179

Agenda Item 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

43 Public Participation 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present and explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 

44 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between 19/05/2017 and 
16/06/2017 was received.  
 
Kenny Green, as Development Management Team Leader, reported that 5 new 
appeals had been lodged during this period and that the first and fifth appeals 
(as listed), were of relevance to applications on the agenda. 
 
In both instances, the Council had completed the necessary statements 
defending the refusal reasons. In addition, members were reminded of the 
appeal decision (circulated to members) which had been issued on 22 June 
relative to land at Forest Farm in which the planning inspector dismissed and 
confirmed that across the North and West Housing Market Area, the Council 
could demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply. Members were advised that 
this would be of relevance and material to the consideration of some of the 
planning items on the agenda. 
 
Members were also informed that of the listed determined appeals for the 
period stated, all had been upheld with one exception of a conservatory 
extension. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 19/05/2017 to 16/06/2017. 
 

45 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 
45a 16/12397/FUL - 2-3 Ham Cottages, The Ham, Westbury 
 
Public Participation 

 
Mr Alex Trott, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Roger Smith, agent, spoke in support of the application 
Mrs Jennifer Noyes, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Ian Cunningham, Westbury Town Council, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
James Taylor, as senior planning officer, presented the report which comprised 
the erection of three detached houses with garages and associated works. It 
was recommended that the application be approved subject to conditions. 

Page 180



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the visual impact upon the surrounding area; the relationship to 
adjoining properties; the height, bulk and appearance of the dwelling; the impact 
on the highway; and drainage considerations. The officer explained the housing 
density would range from 19-26 dwellings per hectare which was in keeping 
with the area and that drainage concerns had been adequately addressed 
through a surface water drainage scheme. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed that the building line 
adhered to had been dictated by the settlement boundary. 
 
Members of the public and the town council had an opportunity to present their 
views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Gordon King spoke in objection to the application, on behalf of the local 
unitary division member for Westbury North, Cllr David Jenkins, and made the 
following points: that the site access was not safe or suitable and that the 
highway promoted motor vehicular access at the expense of bicycles and 
walkers; that the traffic calming measures in place combined with proposed 
layout of the dwellings would exacerbate the exiting highway issues; that the 
design of the dwellings was not in keeping with the traditional buildings in the 
area. 
 
In response to the points raised during public participation, it was clarified: that 
the design of the dwelling would make more efficient use of the land; that the 
railway line was well used but that there had been no objection raised by 
Network Rail or the Council’s public protection team and that elsewhere in the 
town, existing dwellings neighboured the railway line without any 
known/reported substantive conflicts; that the lack of a footpath connection for 
the site was regrettable but that an existing grass verge had been identified as a 
well used alternative; and that the positioning of the windows in relation to 
neighbouring dwellings were at an oblique angle and would not result in 
harming existing or future amenities. 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury, seconded by Cllr Pip Ridout, moved that permission 
be granted with the conditions set out in the officer’s report with an amendment 
to condition 3 to include a requirement for “details of new planting to help 
screen the development from the public highway”. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that the highway had a 
lot of through-traffic due to its location between Westbury and Warminster; that 
there had been no objections raised by highways officers; that the town council, 
as a part recipient to CIL receipts, could dedicated funds to delivering local 
infrastructure improvements; that condition 3 recommended by the officer’s 
report could be amended to include additional screening of the development 
from the highway; that it was lamentable that the area had been cleared before 
an ecological survey had been done; and that any illegal or hazardous parking 

Page 181



 
 
 

 
 
 

on the public highway was a matter for the police and highways enforcement 
officers. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, it was: 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives. 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 2646-16 Site Location Plan by Ashley 
Design and dated March 2017; 2646-10C Proposed Plans and elevations 
Plot 1 by Ashley Design and dated November 2016; 2646-11A Proposed 
Plans and elevations Plot 2 by Ashley Design and dated November 2016; 
2646-12C Proposed Plans and elevations Plot 3 by Ashley Design and 
dated November 2016; 2646-13G Site Plan by Ashley Design and dated 
December 2016; 2646-14A Plot 2 Garage by Ashley Design and dated 
December 2016; and 17602-200-001 Topographical survey by Brunel 
Surveys Limited and dated Nov 2016. 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
 

* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities; 
* details of new planting to help screen the development from the public 
highway; 
* finished levels and contours; 
* means of enclosure; 
* car park layouts; 
* other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
* all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
* minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, refuse and 
other storage units, signs, lighting etc.); and 
* proposed and existing functional services above and below ground (e.g. 
drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, 
manholes, supports etc.). 
 

Page 182



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
4 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
5 No development above slab level shall commence on site until the exact 
details and samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and 
roofs have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with 
the approved details. 
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area 
 
6 Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence 
on site until a final scheme for the discharge of surface water from the site 
(including surface water from the access/driveway), incorporating 
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first 
occupied until surface water drainage has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained. 
 

Page 183



 
 
 

 
 
 

7 Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall commence 
on site until details of the works for the disposal of sewerage including 
the point of connection to the existing public sewer have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling 
shall be first occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully 
implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the proposal is 
provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the 
risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the environment. 
 
8 No part of the development shall be first occupied until the visibility 
splays shown on the approved plans have been provided with no 
obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 900mm above the nearside 
carriageway level. The visibility splays shall be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9 The development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the 
first five metres of the access, measured from the edge of the 
carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or 
gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
10 No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied 
until the access, turning area and parking spaces have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
11 The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved. 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT: 
 
1. Works that could affect nesting birds should not take place between 
March and August inclusive. All British birds (while nesting, building 
nests and sitting on eggs), their nests and eggs (with certain limited 

Page 184



 
 
 

 
 
 

exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000. If birds are nesting in the existing dwelling which is to be 
subject to works as part of the proposed development, work should be 
undertaken outside the breeding season for birds to ensure their 
protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between September and 
February inclusive. Further advice on the above can be sought from the 
Council Ecologists. 
 
2. The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to disturb or harm 
any protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
place. Please note that planning permission does not override the 
statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that a 
suspected protected species is encountered during the works, the 
applicant is advised to stop work and seek the advice of a suitably 
qualified and experienced ecologist. Please visit the following websites 
for more information: 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddeve
lopment.htm 
 
3. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development. Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. Should you 
require further information or to download the CIL forms please refer to 
the following website: 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185



 
 
 

 
 
 

45b 17/01394/FUL - Cuckoos Rest, 28 Fairwood Road, Dilton Marsh 
 
Public Participation 

 
Ms Julia Underwood, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Ms Rachel Yeomans, planning consultant, spoke in support of the application 
Mr Crispin Thomas, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
Mr Martin Smith, agent, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Francis Morland, on behalf of Dilton Marsh Parish Council, spoke in 
objection to the application 
 
Matthew Perks, as senior planning officer, presented the report which 
comprised: a revised routing pitch layout with additional 5 pitches giving 20 in 
total; the re-siting and design of 4 previously approved timber lodges; the 
revised siting and design of a permanent manager’s house and relocation of the 
temporary manager’s house; a new timber café/office building and toilet block; 
and a path/jogging track. The officer reported that previous permission had 
been granted for a different on-site arrangement. It was recommended that the 
application be approved subject to conditions to cover the management of the 
caravan park, and its landscaping, flood management, and emergency 
procedure arrangements. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; drainage matters; impacts on neighbour 
amenity; the visual impact on its surroundings; ecology matters; and 
parking/highways impacts.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer.  
 
In response to questions it was confirmed that: the previous permission had 
been for 15 units in a different configuration; that the previous consent did not 
remove permitted development rights (with regard to the caravan pitches); and 
that if the application was approved a condition could be imposed to bind the 
development to the proposed and regularised layout as well as removing 
permitted development rights. 
 
Members of the public and the parish council had the opportunity to present 
their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham, as the local division member for Ethandune, spoke in 
reference to the application. 
 
In response to the issues raised during the public participation, the following 
points were clarified: that the implementation of an ecological management plan 
would reduce the harm to local wildlife including water voles; and that the 
potential harm to neighbour amenity including noise pollution was not 
considered significant. 
 

Page 186



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr Jonathon Seed, seconded by Cllr Pip Ridout, moved that the application be 
approved with the conditions given in the officer’s report subject to an additional 
condition being imposed removing permitted development rights, the inclusion 
of a bespoke condition binding the works already undertaken and as proposed 
to this permission to avoid the implementation of the previous consent; and an 
amendment to Condition 17 to increase the separation of development from 
lakes numbered 2 and 3 from 3m to 5m, where feasible.  
 
Note: condition 17 as cited became condition 19 in the decision notice. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that the distance 
between the running track and the edge of the lake should be maximised where 
possible to reduce harm to the site’s ecology; that the retrospective nature of 
the work may reduce the impact of the conditioned ecologic management plan; 
and that adequate screening and landscaping would be important. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate it was  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions and 
informatives. 
 
1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
 
Site Survey Drawing No. 2626-01 received on 13 February 2017 
Proposed Plan Drawing No. 2626-05 K received on 13 February 2017 
Site Plan as approved Drawing No. 2626-03 A received on 13 February 
2017 
Café – Office Building Drawing No. 2626-09 received on 13 February 2017 
Proposed Manager’s House Drawing No. 2626-13 A received on 27 
February 2017 
Proposed Shower Block Drawing No. 2626-12 received on 13 February 
2017 
Timber lodges Drawing No. 2626-13 A received on 27 February 2017 
Site Access Plan Drawing No. 2626-14 received on 15 May 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
2. Pursuant to the approved plans as set out within condition 1, and 
notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 5, Class A of the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 
2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with 
or without modification), the site shall be limited to 20 touring caravan 
pitches only. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 

Page 187



 
 
 

 
 
 

permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements 
to the existing camping/caravanning site facilities. 
 
3. Pursuant to the approved plans as set out within condition 1, and in full 
recognition of the retrospective nature of this application, and for the 
avoidance of any doubt, through the implementation of the development 
hereby approved, the works consented under application w/13/00340/FUL 
will be superseded and no longer available for enactment, even in part. 
REASON: To define the terms of the development hereby approved and to 
establish that whilst the applicant and site would benefit from two 
planning consents, only once can be practicably implemented. The above 
condition is imposed to ensure that the site is developed in complete 
compliance with the plans listed within condition 1. 
 
4. The construction of the manager's dwelling hereby permitted shall be 
begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
5. The occupation of the site manager's dwelling hereby permitted shall be 
limited to a person solely working, or last working, in association with the 
fishing lakes and recreational business currently known as "Cuckoos 
Rest Fishing Lakes", or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any 
resident dependants.  
 
REASON: The site is in an area where residential development for 
purposes other than the essential needs of agriculture, forestry or 
established rural enterprise is not normally permitted and this permission 
is only granted on the basis of an essential need for a new 
dwelling/residential accommodation in this location having been 
demonstrated. 
 
6. The site manager's dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of 
energy performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes.  The dwelling shall not be occupied until evidence 
has been issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved 
 
7. Notwithstanding the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987 the use and stationing of caravans on pitches hereby permitted and 
the log cabin structures shall be for holiday/recreational accommodation 
only and for no other purpose. 

Page 188



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
 
8. No person shall occupy a caravan sited on pitches or log cabin 
structures hereby permitted for a continuous period of more than 28 days 
in any calendar year and it shall not be re-occupied by the same person/s 
within 21 days following the end of that period. 
 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
9. Within 14 days of the first occupation of the dwelling hereby approved 
the 'mobile' dwelling used as temporary residential accommodation for the 
site manager shall be removed from the site and the site shall be restored 
in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The works shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In order to protect the appearance of the area. 
 
10. Should no works commence to construct the permanent dwelling 
within three years of the date of permission; an application will be 
required to renew the temporary residential mobile home alongside a 
contemporaneous planning justification for its continued retention and 
occupation.  Otherwise, the mobile home shall be removed from the site 
and the site shall be restored in accordance with details to be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The works shall 
be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In order to protect the appearance of the area. 
 
11. The owners/operators of the site shall maintain an up to date register 
of the names of all owners and occupiers of the log cabin structures and 
individual caravans on pitches on the site, and of their main home 
addresses, and shall make this information available at all reasonable 
times to the Local Planning Authority.  
 
REASON: This site is in a position where the Local Planning Authority, 
having regard to the reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, 
and planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit permanent 
residential accommodation. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town 

Page 189



 
 
 

 
 
 

and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) 
(No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or 
amending those Orders with or without modification), no development 
within Part 1, Classes A to E shall take place on the dwelling house 
hereby permitted or within its curtilage. 
REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the 
Local Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
13. The access shall be laid out in accordance with Drawing Number 2626-
14; at the point of the access, a 2.4m strip across the entire site frontage 
taken from the nearside edge of carriageway shall be clear of obstruction 
at and above a height of 900mm and shall be maintained as such. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
14. The cafe facility shall be restricted for the use of the patrons and 
occupants of the site only. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
15. Within 60 days of the date of the decision to approve permission, 
plans showing details of all external lighting to include the type of light 
appliance, the height and position of fitting, illumination levels and light 
spillage shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for its written 
approval. The lighting approved shall be installed and shall be maintained 
in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to minimise 
unnecessary light spillage above and outside the development site. 
 
16. Within 60 days of the date of the decision to approve permission, a 
Flood Risk Management Plan including a flood warning/evacuation plan 
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for its written approval.  
 
REASON: In the interests of public safety and the minimisation of flood 
risk. 
 
17. Within 60 days of the date of this decision a programme of habitat 
enhancement/protection measures, including time frames, shall be 
submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority in accordance 
with Section 6 (Mitigation and Enhancement) of the submitted document 
"Cuckoos Rest Fishing Lakes & Caravan Park, Dilton Marsh, Wiltshire : 
Ecological Appraisal" (29th November 2016, Malford Environmental 
Consulting). The programme shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 
REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and habitat protection. 
 

Page 190



 
 
 

 
 
 

18. Within 60 days of the date of this permission a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping which shall be in accordance with the recommendations 
of the applicant’s supporting LVIA shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall 
include:- 
- location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and hedgerows 
on the land; 
- full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply and 
planting sizes and planting densities;  
- finished levels and contours;  
- means of enclosure;  
 car park layouts and other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation 
areas;  
- all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
- a schedule for the removal of all temporary structures and remaining 
construction related materials on site upon completion of development. 
The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details and within a time frame to be included in the submitted 
detail. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure to ensure the proposed 
planting is appropriate in terms of species composition and arrangement 
and will be of biodiversity and landscape value. 
 
19. Notwithstanding the submitted plans and any unauthorised works 
already undertaken, the jogging track and any associated shallow 
excavations must be a minimum of at least 5m from the toe of the banks 
of lakes 2 and 3. Revised layout plans clearly showing buffer zones for 
water vole along the soft edge waterbodies shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority for approval prior to the commencement of any further 
works on site. Works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
submitted details  
 
REASON: To ensure appropriate mitigation is proposed and implemented 
to safeguard the identified water vole population. 
NOTE: Where it is argued that this cannot be delivered, a robust 
justification should be presented to the Council as part of seeking the 
discharge of the condition. 
 
20. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in full 
accordance with the recommendations made within section 6 of the 
Ecological Appraisal, dated 29th November 2016, prepared by Malford 
Environmental Consulting (with the exception of section 6.2 as changes to 
this section are required by condition 17 above) which is submitted in 
support of the planning application. 
 

Page 191



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for protected 
species / priority species / priority habitats. 
 
 
21. All visitor vehicular access shall be via the existing site entrance onto 
Fairwood Road and no access to or egress from the site shall be 
permitted from the track to the west of the site, barring in relation to use 
as an escape route in terms of an approved Flood Risk Management and 
Evacuation Plan. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety and neighbouring amenity. 
 
INFORMATIVES TO APPLICANT 
 
1. The applicant is advised that the site does not fall within a specific 
Environment Agency Flood Warning area, The Flood Risk Management 
Plan referred to in condition 13 should be based on that contained in the 
submitted Flood Risk Assessment following Consultation with Council's 
Emergency Planning Team. 
 
2. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. If the development is determined to be liable for CIL, a Liability 
Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount of CIL payment due. If 
an Additional Information Form has not already been submitted, please 
submit it now so that we can determine the CIL liability. In addition, you 
may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which case, please submit the 
relevant form so that we can determine your eligibility. The CIL 
Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability must be submitted to 
Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of development.  Should 
development commence prior to the CIL Liability Notice being issued by 
the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or relief will not apply and 
full payment will be required in full and with immediate effect. 
 
3. Safeguards should be implemented during the construction phase to 
minimise the risks of pollution from the development.  Such safeguards 
should cover: 
- the use of plant and machinery 
- wheel washing and vehicle wash-down 
- oils/chemicals and materials 
- the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles 
- the location and form of work and storage areas and compounds 
- the control and removal of spoil and wastes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 192



 
 
 

 
 
 

45c 16/12498/FUL - Land at No. 184 Melksham Lane, Broughton Gifford 
 
Public Participation 

 
Mr Juan Lopez, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
 
David Cox, as senior planning officer, presented the report which comprised an 
outline application for a 4 bedroom detached dormer bungalow. It was 
recommended that the application be refused for the reasons outlined in the 
report. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; the impact on the area’s flood risk; 
highway safety and parking; and impacts on the character and appearance of 
the open countryside. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. There were none. 
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Phil Alford, the unitary division member for Melksham Without North, spoke 
in support of the application and expressed his opinion that the proposed 
development would improve highway safety and would not have a detrimental 
impact on the neighbour amenity or surrounding environment. 
 
Cllr Phil Alford, seconded by Cllr Stewart Palmen, moved that the application be 
granted subject to 10 conditions outlined in summary form by the senior 
planning officer. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that the site was in the 
open countryside and outside of the settlement boundary; that there was no 
policy support for the application or any justification or special exception to 
counter this; and that the former nursery building was no longer on the site and 
that it was considered garden ground rather than previously developed 
brownfield land.  
 
At the conclusion of the debate the motion was lost. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, seconded by Cllr Andrew Davis, moved that permission be 
refused for the reasons given in the report.  
 
After a brief debate it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 
 

Page 193



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. The proposal relates to a site in the open countryside outside of the 
settlement boundary for Melksham and not forming part of the recognised 
village of Broughton Gifford and is not allocated for residential 
development within the adopted Wiltshire Core Strategy or included as 
part of the draft Housing Site Allocations DPD or a Neighbourhood Plan. 
The development fails to meet any of the special circumstances for the 
creation of additional residential units in such circumstances listed under 
Paragraph 4.25 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. The proposal therefore fails 
to promote a sustainable pattern of development and is contrary to Core 
Policies 1, 2, 15, 60 & 61 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
2. The applicant has not satisfactorily demonstrated how surface water 
would be dealt with on site in an area known to be prone to ground water 
flooding. The proposal cannot therefore satisfactorily demonstrate that it 
would not increase flood risk elsewhere. The proposal is therefore 
contrary to Core Policy CP67 and paragraphs 100 and 103 of the NPPF. 
 
 
 
45d 17/01935/FUL - 37 Newhurst Park, Hilperton 
 
Public Participation 

 
Mr Ricky Kerry, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Tony Jones, resident, spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Neville Yates, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
 
Steven Sims, as senior planning officer, presented the report which comprised 
the conversion of the existing double garage and its change of use to a fitness 
studio. Members were informed that this was a partially retrospective 
application and that it was a resubmission of application 16/11005/FUL. It was 
recommended that the application be approved with conditions in accordance 
with the officer’s report. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; the impact on the living conditions of 
neighbouring residents; the impact on the character of the area; parking issues; 
and impact on highway safety. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to questions it was confirmed that: the number of 
allocated parking spaces would broadly satisfy the Council’s car parking 
strategy requirements (the nominal shortfall was explained); that the proposed 
change of use would likely result in the property becoming subject to business 
rates but that this was not a planning issue; that the hours of operation would be 
limited to 25 a week and that any breach of a planning condition would be a 
matter for the planning enforcement team to investigate; and that it would be 
advisable to include a condition to limit any permission to the applicant only and 
not for future owners. 
 

Page 194



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, the unitary division member for Hilperton, spoke in objection to 
the application. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, seconded by Cllr Edward Kirk, moved that permission be 
refused. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: that the previous 
application had been refused on the grounds of its impact on the highway and 
that this remained the case; that based on the residency of the property it was 
likely that the site would require an additional parking space to the 4 proposed; 
that the noise generated on the site had a negative impact on its neighbours; 
and that the condition to mitigate the harm to neighbours and highways would 
not be enforceable. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate it was: 
 
Resolved: 
 
To refuse planning permission for the following reasons: 
 
The change of use of the former domestic garage to a commercial fitness 
studio use is considered inappropriate development by virtue of a lack of 
off road parking provision for the existing dwelling as well as a 
commercial gym studio located in a mainly residential area that would 
encourage the use of the private car and it is a use that does not 
encourage the use of sustainable transport alternatives; and, in 
recognising the retrospective nature of the development, vehicles have 
parked on the highway to the detriment of highway safety interests. The 
development is therefore contrary to Wiltshire Core Strategy Core Policies 
CP57, 60, 61 and 64. 
 
 

46 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 
 
It was agreed to hold a site visit to commence at 12 noon, prior to the meeting 
of the Western Area Planning Committee scheduled for 26 July 2017. Further 
details would be circulated to members. 
 

(Duration of meeting:  3.00 - 6.00 pm) 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 26 JULY 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, 
Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Roy While (Substitute) 
and Cllr Jerry Wickham (Substitute) 
 
 
 
  

 
47 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
 
Cllr Pip Ridout who was substituted by Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Cllr Peter Fuller who was substituted by Cllr Roy While 
 

48 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2016 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 28 June 2017. 
 

49 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Sarah Gibson declared a non-pecuniary interest for item 16/09259/FUL – 
Dorothy House Foundation, for her current professional capacity with the agent 
and would note take part in the debate or vote. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark referred to his register interest. 
 

50 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 

Page 197

Agenda Item 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

51 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

52 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between 16/06/17 and 
14/07/17 was received.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report from the 16/06/17 to 14/07/17. 
 

53 FOOTPATH NO. 15A DILTON MARSH DIVERSION ORDER 2017 AND 
DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT MODIFICATION ORDER 2017 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Francis Morland, spoke in objection to the application 
 
The Rights of Way Officer, Ali Roberts, outlined the report which recommended 
that the Order be forwarded to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs with the notification that Wiltshire Council supports the 
confirmation of the Order as made. 
 
Members of the Committee were given the opportunity to ask technical 
questions of the officer. 
 
A question was asked about whether the stiles, now removed, could be put 
back, the response was that the council would only be able to authorise stiles 
under Highway Act s.147 for the ingress and egress of animals so this would 
only be appropriate if the arable field was replaced with stock. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Jerry Wickham as the local Member noted that any objections should have 
been made in good time to allow the officers enough time to respond. 
 
A debate followed where a motion was then moved by Cllr jerry Wickham and 
second by Cllr Jonathon Seed to approve the officer’s recommendation. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 

Page 198



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Resolved 
 
That Wiltshire Council supports the Wiltshire Council Footpath No 15A 
Dilton Marsh Diversion Order 2017 and Definitive Map and Statement 
Modification order 2017 and for the Order to be forwarded to the Secretary 
of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs with the recommendation 
that it be confirmed as made. 
 

54 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
54a 16/09259/FUL - Dorothy House Foundation Ltd, Winsley BA15 3LE 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Richard Moore spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Evan Metz spoke in objection to the application 
Mr Dale Evans spoke in objection to the application 
Mr John Davis, applicant, spoke in support of the application 
Mr Ryan Carroll spoke in support of the application 
Mr Stuart Rackham, agent, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Ed Gilby, Winsley Parish Council, spoke on the application 
 
David Cox, as senior planning officer, outlined the report for a reconfiguration of 
the existing car park and extension to provide additional parking and associated 
works. It was recommended that the application be approved subject to 
conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; the principle of development in the Green 
Belt; impact on the openness of the Green Belt; impact on the Landscape and 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty; impact on protected species; impact on 
designated Heritage Assets; impact on Highways Safety, the impact on 
neighbouring amenities and it was noted that there had been a long standing 
issue with parking due to an increase in demand.   
 
The officer highlighted corrections to the report which included confirmation that 
there were 131 full time staff and 19 part time staff. It was noted that the 
correction would not make any material difference to the recommendation. The 
Committees attention was also drawn to the agenda supplement. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. The questions focused on: how steep the ramp was; the gap in 
woodland and the visibility of car headlights. 
 
In response to the questions it was noted that; the ramp would drop 8 metres 
over 110 metres equating to a fall of 1 in 8; the proposal includes more trees to 
be planted to fill the gap in the woodland to the south of the extended car park 
site but it would not be completely screened and that hurdles would be erected 

Page 199



 
 
 

 
 
 

to obscure most of the light from car headlights and that additional landscape 
planting should also help to block out light spill.  
 
Members of the public and the parish council had the opportunity to present 
their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Seed read a statement on behalf of the local Member Cllr Kidney which 
focused on: The large number of representations from residents concerning the 
impact of the development on the landscape and setting of Murhill. The primary 
concern was the impact on the Area of Outstanding Beauty noting that the 
report referred to the difficulties of landscaping. It was also necessary to take 
into consideration that the proposals had been significantly revised to tackle the 
issues of landscaping and there was a need to balance the concerns of 
residents with the vital work carried out by Dorothy House. It was mentioned 
that more in depth consultation should have taken place with residents of 
Murhill and Upper Westwood. A suggestion was made to impose conditions for 
the installation of landscape mitigation measures and that access to Dorothy 
House should be restricted via Limpley Stoke Road by imposing measures such 
as additional signage. There was also a suggestion for Dorothy House to 
consider holding an information session for local residents before work 
commenced.   
 
The officer noted that signage already existed pointing to the Limpley Stoke 
Road for access and that a travel plan could only advise on a particular route to 
be taken it could not enforce a travel route.  
 
At the start of the debate it was moved that the application be approved with the 
conditions given in the officer’s report subject to an additional condition for a 
travel plan to be put in place before the car park is used.  
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: the sensitivities of the 
application recognising the invaluable work of Dorothy House that had to be 
weighed up against the impact on the AONB and Green Belt, effects on the 
landscape; visibility of the development and light spill issues; impact on 
neighbours, the existing car park deficiencies and the need for additional 
parking; the 2004 permission granted for a car park extension permission was 
discussed and although not implemented it was noted that it would have served 
additional care, training and educational facilities.  Car park restrictions and 
timetabled landscape planting and the timing for the erection of the hurdles 
were also discussed and three additional conditions and a planning informative 
were identified. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate it was  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 

Page 200



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:  
 
Revised Site Location Plan – received 5 May 2017; Cross Section Plan A-A 
Rev H – received 5 May 2017; Proposed Cross Section B-B and C-C Rev E 
– received 12 May 2017; Cross Section Plan – Hurdle Screen details – 
received 5 May 2017; Ramp Cross Section Plan – received 5 May 2017; 
Existing Landscape Plan – received 23 September 2016; Feature match 
document 7 - received 5 January 2017; Data Image document 8 - received 
5 January 2017; Proposed Car Park Extension Sheet 1 of 2 – received 5 
January 2017; Proposed Car Park Extension Sheet 2 of 2 – received 5 
January 2017; Lux Map ground level Rev K – received 10 April 2017; Lux 
Map 2 metres above ground Rev K - received 10 April 2017; Construction 
and Management Plan – received 10 April 2017; Landscape Layout Plan 
Rev E – received 10 April 2017; Existing and Proposed Elevations Rev C – 
received 5 May 2017; Landscape and Ecological Management Plan– 
received 12 May 2017; 
 
The following Statements and supporting reports have also been 
appraised and form part of the development hereby approved: 
Updated Lighting Strategy Rev H – received 18 May 2017; The Landscape 
& Ecological Management Plan for the site, prepared by RSK ADAS Ltd., 
dated April 2017; Transport Statement – received 23 September 2016; 
Planning Statement - received 23 September 2016; Primary Ecology 
Report - received 23 September 2016; Arboricultural Report - received 23 
September 2016; The Desk Based Archaeological Report - received 23 
September 2016; The Landscape and Visual Assessment - received 23 
September 2016; An Addendum LVIA Report – received 5 January 2017; 
Drainage Strategy – received 5 January 2017; The Revised Operational 
Need Statement - received 5 January 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. The extended car park hereby approved shall not be brought into use 
until the replacement lighting scheme in the existing car park has been 
fully implemented on site. The lighting on the new 4 metre tall poles shall 
only be turned on during the hours of 0600 and 2200 and would be only 
activated by sensor trigger between the hours of 2200 and 0600. The 
lighting shall have an illumination level not exceeding 2 Lux and the 
lighting strategy and management shall be adhered in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the landscape value of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, to protect the character and appearance of 

Page 201



 
 
 

 
 
 

the conservation area and to safeguard the interests of neighbours and to 
limit the level of light pollution. 
 
4. The extended car park hereby approved shall not be brought into use 
unless and until the finished grass reinforcement ground system (which is 
commonly known as grasscrete) has been installed and the exact grass 
seeding mix, sow rate specification and timetable for seed planting have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
Thereafter, the installation shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
REASON: To define the terms of this permission and in the interests of 
the landscape value of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
 
5.  The lighting within the extended car park hereby approved shall strictly 
adhere to the lighting scheme and strategy in perpetuity and shall be only 
turned on during the hours of 0600 and 1800, and be fitted with a time 
delay switch, and triggered only by sensor between the hours of 1800 and 
2200. The lights on the 4 metre tall poles in the proposed car park 
extension shall not be operable at any time during the hours of 2200 and 
0600.  
 
REASON: In the interests of the landscape value of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, to protect the character and appearance of 
the conservation area and to safeguard the interests of neighbours and to 
limit the level of light pollution. 
 
6.  For the avoidance of any doubt (and to correct the anomaly contained 
within the submitted lighting strategy), the 1 metre high lighting bollards 
in the extended car park hereby approved shall only be turned on during 
the hours of 0600-1800 and be fitted with a time delay switch and triggered 
only by sensor between the hours of 1800 and 0600. The lights shall 
adhere these times in perpetuity. 
 
REASON: In the interests of the landscape value of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty, to protect the character and appearance of 
the conservation area and to safeguard the interests of neighbours and to 
limit the level of light pollution. 
 
7. No external lighting apparatus shall be installed on site until detailed 
elevation and specification plans of the lights have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter, the 
installation shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
REASON: In the interests of protecting protected species and the 
landscape value of the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
 
8. Within 6 months of the extended car parking being first brought into 
use, the landscape planting scheme shall be fully planted and completed 
in full accordance with the Landscape Layout Plan Rev E. All shrubs, 
trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 
protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, 

Page 202



 
 
 

 
 
 

within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
part of the development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features 
including the area of outstanding natural beauty. 
 
9. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 
discharge of surface water from the site incorporating sustainable 
drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first brought into 
use until surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved scheme.  
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 
an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development can be adequately 
drained. 
 
10. The proposed development shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the recommendations contained within The Landscape & Ecological 
Management Plan, prepared by RSK ADAS Ltd, and dated April 2017. 
REASON: In the interests of protecting protected species. 
 
11. The hereby approved development shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the Arboricultural Method Statement as set out in the 
Silverback arboricultural consultancy Ltd report dated August 2016. 
REASON: In the interests of the landscape value of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty 
 
12. Prior to the installation of the hereby approved external lighting 
columns, full specification details and elevation plans of the proposed 
lights and their covering shrouds shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter the lighting columns 
shall be erected in full accordance with the approved details and 
maintained in perpetuity. 
REASON: In the interests of the landscape value of the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty. 
 
13. Prior to the proposed car park being first brought into use, the access 
ramp shall be laid to tarmac and maintained as such at all times 
thereafter. 
REASON: In terms of defining the terms of this permission and in the 
interests of the landscape value of the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty. 

Page 203



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
14. Prior to the proposed car park being brought into use, a Travel Plan 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  The Travel Plan shall include details of implementation and 
monitoring and shall be implemented in accordance with these agreed 
details.  The results of the implementation and monitoring shall be made 
available to the Local Planning Authority on request, together with any 
changes to the plan arising from those results. 
REASON: To define the terms of the permission and to discourage the 
dependency on private car where possible and to introduce highway 
routing directions, where applicable. 
 
15. Prior to the development being brought into use, including the existing 
car park remodelling works, the applicant/developer shall submit a 
timetable report confirming when the hurdles shall be erected on site; and 
once agreed, the hurdles shall be installed in full accordance with 
approved proposed landscape plan drawing no. 2201 rev E and the hurdle 
plan drawing no. 2202 issue rev A and that the hurdles shall be 
maintained in perpetuity. 
REASON: To define the terms of the permission and in the interests of 
securing on site mitigation to reduce light spill/pollution from vehicles 
and safeguarding landscape value of the AONB. 
 
Informative: The applicant/hospice management team are encouraged to 
appoint a point of contact for local residents prior to the implementation 
of the development to discuss the construction timeframe and processes 
as well as the remodelling and installation of new lighting within both the 
existing and extended car parks, and to discuss any additional measures 
to reduce impacts and effects on local residents, the green belt and 
AONB. 
 
54b 17/00738/FUL - Park Cottage 20-21 Local South Wraxall, Bradford 
On Avon, BA15 2RT 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Mark Fairhurst spoke in objection to the application. 
Mr Christopher Mackenzie spoke in support of the applications 
Mr Ede spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Bella Walker, South Wraxall Parish Council, spoke on the application 
 
David Cox, as senior planning officer, presented the report for the demolition of 
the existing buildings on the site and the construction of a replacement dwelling. 
It was recommended that the application be approved subject to conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development and impact on the openness in the green 
belt; impact on designated heritage assets; impact on highways safety; impact 
on neighbouring amenities and the impact on protected species. 
 

Page 204



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members were informed of correction to the report noting that the replacement 
dwelling would be set back 1.6 metres from its current position.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer, which focused on the site being in the green belt, construction 
materials and fenestration treatment. 
 
In response it was confirmed that the site was located in the green belt and that 
the fenestration treatment on the rear elevation would not be visible from the 
road due to a retained hedgerow and the set-back nature of the proposal. The 
development proposal construction materials were also outlined. 
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 
In response to concerns raised during the public forum it was confirmed that 
officers had insisted during the planning process that the reading room should 
not be demolished but instead be incorporated into the replacement new house 
design due to its functional heritage and that if the replacement house was to be 
moved further back from the main highway. It would become out of keeping with 
the area which is noted for having housing close to the highway. Officers 
informed members that setting the new house further back into site would risk 
suburbanising the plot which could negatively affect the conservation area and 
green belt. 
 
The local member, Cllr Trevor Carbin, noted that the development would have a 
significant impact on the green belt and conservation area; the building would 
also be quite dominating but recognised that if moved back it would potentially 
impact the character of the conservation area and the street scene. 
 
At the start of the debate, a deferral of the item for the arrangement of a site 
visit was moved by Cllr Trevor Carbin, seconded by Cllr Ernie Clark. Issues 
raised during the debate included; the street scene illustration within the report 
on page 105 of the committee agenda was misleading and that it had to be 
understood that the proposed house would be set back 1.6m further and less 
dominating. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate the motion was lost. 
 
A motion was then moved by Cllr Jonathon Seed, seconded by Cllr Jerry 
Wickham that the application be approved with the conditions given in the 
officer’s report. 
 
After a brief debate it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 

Page 205



 
 
 

 
 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission. 
REASON:  To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans:  
 
Site Location Plan – received 25 January 2017; Site Plan as Existing - 
received 25 January 2017; Tree Protection Plan - received 25 January 
2017; Site Plan as Proposed 342 P003 P2 – received 17 March 2017; Roof 
Plan as Proposed 342 P102 P2 – received 17 March 2017; Ground Floor 
Plan as Proposed 342 P100 P2 – received 17 March 2017; First Floor Plan 
as Proposed 342 P101 P2 – received 17 March 2017; North East and South 
East Elevation Plans 342 P300 P2 – received 28 June 2017; South West 
and North West Elevation Plans 342 P031 P3 – received 23 June 2017 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
NOTE: This permission has also fully appraised the Design and Access 
Statement which included a Heritage and Planning Statement – received 
25 January 2017; A Supplemental Design and Access Statement – 
received 17 March 2017; The Hillside  Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
and Arboricultural Method Statement – received 25 January 2017; and the 
Simecology Bat Detector Survey Report (dated June 2017) – received 21 
June 2017 
 
3.  For the avoidance of any doubt, the development hereby approved 
requires the demolition of the outbuildings (i.e. the garage, greenhouse, 
sheds and stable block) shall be completed at the same time as the 
demolition works to Park Cottage. No development shall commence in 
terms of forming the foundations for the replacement dwelling until Park 
Cottage and all of the outbuildings identified for demolition have been 
demolished and the resulting debris has been removed from the site. 
REASON: To define the terms of this permission and in the interests of 
preserving the openness of the Green Belt and protecting and conserving 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
4. The materials identified in the materials key on Approved Plan Drawing 
No. 342 P 300 P2 shall be used in the construction of the development 
hereby approved. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and protecting and conserving 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England)Order 2015  (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending those Orders with or without 
modification), no development within Part 1, Classes A, B and E shall take 
place on the dwellinghouse hereby permitted or within its curtilage. 

Page 206



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON:  In the interests of visual amenity and protecting and 
conserving the character and appearance of the conservation area as well 
to protect the openness of the Green Belt and to enable the Local 
Planning Authority to consider individually whether subsequent planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions or enlargements. 
 
6. No demolition works shall commence on site until the protective 
fencing has been erected on site as recommended as part of the Hillside 
Trees Ltd Arboricultural Method Statement. The fencing shall remain in 
place until all the demolition and construction works have been 
completed. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity of the Green Belt and 
conservation area 
 
7. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict 
accordance with the recommendations made in the Bat Detector Survey 
Report (dated June 2017), prepared by Simecology, including Section 10 
and Appendix IV. The dwelling shall not be occupied until all the 
mitigation, compensation and enhancement measures stipulated in the 
aforementioned report have been fully implemented. 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for protected 
species. 
NOTE: The applicant is required to obtain a Natural England European 
Protected Species Mitigation Licence.   
 
8. Prior to the occupation of the replacement dwelling, details of the 
sensitive lighting scheme/design set out as a requirement in the Bat 
Detector Survey Report within paragraphs 10.13 to 10.17 shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for its written approval.  
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for protected 
species. 
 
9. Prior to the occupation of the replacement dwelling, details of 
compensatory nesting sites for swallows set out as a requirement in the 
Bat Detector Survey Report within paragraph 10.23 shall be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority for its written approval.  
REASON: To ensure adequate compensation for loss of bird nesting sites. 
 
10. No development above slab level pursuant to the construction of the 
replacement dwelling shall commence until a scheme of hard and soft 
landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include:- 
• The provision of a replacement tree including its size and species 
and location to be planted in accordance with BS3936 (Parts 1 and 4), 
BS4043 and BS4428. 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

Page 207



 
 
 

 
 
 

an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
11. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be 
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by 
vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, 
die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development pursuant to 
the construction of the replacement dwelling shall commence until a 
scheme for the discharge of surface water from roofs and all impermeable 
areas of hardstanding (including surface water from the access/driveway), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development 
shall not be first occupied until surface water drainage has been 
constructed in accordance with the approved scheme.  
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the development 
can be adequately drained. 
 
13. The replacement dwelling hereby approved shall not be first 
occupied until the first five metres of the access, measured from the edge 
of the carriageway, has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone 
or gravel). The access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
14. The replacement dwelling hereby approved shall not be first 
occupied until the on-site turning area and parking spaces have been 
completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. 
The areas shall be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
15. No walls shall be constructed on site, until a sample wall panel, not 
less than 1 metre square, has been constructed on site, inspected and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The panel shall then 
be left in position for comparison whilst the development is carried out. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
sample. 

Page 208



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to protect and conserve 
the character and appearance of the conservation area. 
 
16. The replacement dwelling hereby approved shall achieve a level of 
energy performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for 
Sustainable Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has 
been issued and submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority certifying that this level or equivalent has been 
achieved. 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.  
 
INFORMATIVES:  
1. Works that could affect nesting birds should not take place between 
March and August inclusive. All British birds (while nesting, building 
nests and sitting on eggs), their nests and eggs (with certain limited 
exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of 
Way Act 2000. If birds are nesting in the existing dwelling which is to be 
subject to works as part of the proposed development, work should be 
undertaken outside the breeding season for birds to ensure their 
protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between September and 
February inclusive. Further advice on the above can be sought from the 
Council Ecologists. 
 
2. The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) it is an offence to disturb or harm 
any protected species, or to damage or disturb their habitat or resting 
place. Please note that planning permission does not override the 
statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that a 
suspected protected species is encountered during the works, the 
applicant is advised to stop work and seek the advice of a suitably 
qualified and experienced ecologist. Please visit the following websites 
for more information: 
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/biodiversityanddeve
lopment.htm 
 
3. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved 
may represent chargeable development under the Community 
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire 
Council's CIL Charging Schedule. If the development is determined to be 
liable for CIL, a Liability Notice will be issued notifying you of the amount 
of CIL payment due. If an Additional Information Form has not already 
been submitted, please submit it now so that we can determine the CIL 
liability. In addition, you may be able to claim exemption or relief, in which 
case, please submit the relevant form so that we can determine your 
eligibility. The CIL Commencement Notice and Assumption of Liability 

Page 209



 
 
 

 
 
 

must be submitted to Wiltshire Council prior to commencement of 
development.  Should development commence prior to the CIL Liability 
Notice being issued by the local planning authority, any CIL exemption or 
relief will not apply and full payment will be required in full and with 
immediate effect. Should you require further information or to download 
the CIL forms please refer to the following website:  
 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk/planninganddevelopment/planningpolicy/communit
yinfrastructurelevy 
 
4. The applicant is required to obtain a Natural England European 
Protected Species Mitigation Licence.   
 
54c 17/01250/REM - Land South of Devizes Road, Hilperton 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Ben Coles spoke in objection to the application 
 
Eileen Medlin, as senior planning officer, presented the report which comprised 
a reserved matters application for the scale, layout and external appearance of 
the development and landscaping of the site following outline approval for the 
erection of up to 15 dwellings. It was recommended that the application be 
approved. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: scale; layout; external appearance of the development and landscaping 
of the site.  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which focused on: the S106 contributions secured by the outline 
permission; a question was asked about why no S106 contribution was secured 
for the local village hall; the protection of the hedgerow was discussed; along 
with SUDS and potential dangers to pedestrians making use of the proposed 
pavement located behind the existing hedgerow fronting Devizes Road. 
Securing sustainable construction, energy and water efficiencies as required by 
WCS CP41 were also identified. 
 
In response to the questions, it was confirmed what the s106 would secure and 
that the planning inspector at outline stage, had deleted any s016 obligation for 
the Trowbridge Sport Centre. The pavement was in place to protect the hedge 
and was agreed as part of the outline application; SUDs and land drainage 
matters were also covered as part of the outline consent. Members were also 
advised that a condition should require the applicant/developer to comply with 
CP41.  
 
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. 
 

Page 210



 
 
 

 
 
 

In response to issues raised in the public forum, the officer advised members 
that since the outline application was allowed on appeal, a badger sett had 
bene identified on part of the site and the layout of the housing had been 
negotiated by the case officer through consultation with the Council’s ecologist 
and urban designer and was acceptable, members were advised that the site 
could accommodate 15 homes and provide adequate amenity ground and 
space between the housing and furthermore, the density of the scheme was 
comparable with other recent/modern housing developments nearby and a 
committee slide was explained to cover this point. The design and detailing of 
the proposed houses was argued to be in keeping with the appearance of the 
area and enhanced landscaping and tree/hedge planting would break up the 
development. Officers also confirmed that at discharge of condition stage, 
neighbours could review submitted plans submitted pursuant to the exact 
planting specifications. The case officer agreed to consult on the details with the 
neighbour also.  
 
As local member, Cllr Ernie Clark noted that he was not aware that the 
landscape plan had been agreed with the path along the hedge. The affordable 
housing was easily identifiable due to being in blocks, whereas the private 
housing was not. The affordable housing should be spread about the site more 
to accord with WCS CP45. It was accepted that the original application 
approved up to 15 houses for the whole site but now with the badger sett 
identified, a large part of the site could no longer be developed and proposing 
15 homes on a smaller parcel of land was considered inappropriate.  
 
A motion was then moved by Cllr Ernie Clark, seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin, 
to refuse the application was presented.  
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: the need to secure a 
better layout and have the affordable housing spread about the site more and 
ensure it is not readily distinguishable compared to the market housing and 
consider the appropriate quantum of housing for the plot which has had its 
developable area reduced following the designation of green space for the 
badger plot. 
 
The original motion for refusal was withdrawn and a new motion to defer the 
application was moved by Cllr Jonathon Seed, which was seconded by Cllr 
Ernie Clark. 
 
At the end of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved  
 
It was unanimously agreed to defer the application and passed an 
instruction to officers to negotiate further with the applicant and secure 
the following: 
 
1. Proposing fewer houses on the site (mindful that the discovery of 
the badger sett reduces the amount of developable land) and to deliver a 
comparable housing density similar to Ashton Rise; 

Page 211



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
2. To re-site the affordable housing units and spread them around the 
site more; and ensure they are not readily distinguishable compared to 
the market housing; and, 
 
3. To review highway / pedestrian safety matters pursuant to the 
pavement behind the hedge. 
 

55 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 212



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 23 AUGUST 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Andrew Davis, Cllr Peter Fuller, Cllr Edward Kirk, 
Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr David Halik (Substitute), Cllr David Jenkins 
(Substitute) and Cllr Gordon King (Substitute) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Fleur de Rhé-Philipe and Cllr Tony Jackson 
 
  

 
56 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Trevor Carbin 
(substituted by Councillor Gordon King), Sarah Gibson (substituted by 
Councillor David Jenkins) and Philip Alford (substituted by Councillor David 
Halik). The Chair noted that all other members were in attendance. 
 

57 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 26 July 2017. 
 

58 Declarations of Interest 
 
It was noted, following a statement made by Councillor Jonathon Seed, that a 
number of Committee members would have considered application 
W/11/02440/FUL at Sutton Veny when it was before the Western Area Planning 
Committee in 2012, but that those members would be considering the matter 
afresh with an open mind. 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

Councillor Edward Kirk stated that due to a non-pecuniary interest he would not 
speak or vote on the application ref 17/05137/FUL - Coopers Chase, Church 
Street, Hilperton, Trowbridge, Wiltshire, BA14 7RL. 
 
Noting that there was an application in his ward, namely 17/05137/FUL, 
Councillor Ernie Clark referred the public to his declaration of interest open to 
public inspection. 
 

59 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 
 

60 Public Participation 
 
The question submitted by Councillor Ernie Clark and the response included in 
the agenda papers was noted. 
 
It was also noted that an additional question submitted had been responded to 
directly by officers. The Chairman reminded members that all questions should 
relate to the business of the Committee.  
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

61 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between the 14/07/2017 
and 11/08/2017 was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for 14/07/2017 and 
11/08/2017. 
 

62 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

63 w/11/02440/FUL - Land South Of Farm Bungalow, Deverill Road, Sutton 
Veny 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr William Owen, Mr Ian Walpole and Mr William Pierce spoke in objection to 
the application. 
Mr James Whilding, agent, spoke in support of the application 
Cllr Stephen Oxlade, Sutton Veny Parish Council, spoke on the application 

Page 214



 
 
 

 
 
 

Cllr David Searle, Longbridge Parish Council, spoke on the application 
 
Mike Kilmister, as Neighbourhood Planning Manager, outlined the report for the 
demolition of four existing poultry buildings to be replaced by four new poultry 
buildings. It was recommended that the application be approved subject to 
conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; the location of the site and that it is in the 
open countryside within an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty; the history of 
the application and the three reasons that the Committee deferred the 
consideration of the application; the access to the site and the connection to the 
A350; the proximity of other properties including industrial and residential; that 
the committee had had the opportunity to visit the site; the history and use of 
the existing buildings, and that the lawful use of the site is for agriculture and 
that of poultry rearing. 
 
The changes in the application from that previously reported to the Committee 
were explained including the reduction in the capacity for the number of birds; 
the comparison of the elevation of the new buildings to those on the site 
already; the topography of the site and the existence of a bund; the operation of 
the site and the impact on environmental health issues. 
 
The submitted plans and member site visit identified the provision of screening 
by trees; however it was acknowledged that additional landscape plan details 
would need to be submitted, which is recommended by condition, which would 
require the Council’s written approval.  The views of the site from the public 
rights of way and other neighbouring properties were identified and it was 
confirmed that the applicant had amended the scheme following discussions 
with the Environment Agency who had issued a permit – which sets out 
conditions in relation to potential noise, fugitive emissions (incl dust and flies), 
odour and ammonia releases; as well as pre-commencement conditions that 
need to be satisfied before on site operations are started. 
 
Members were advised that the public have been able to comment on the 
permit, and it was open to public scrutiny.  The officer explained that the 
Environment Agency in reaching their decision took account of all their relevant 
considerations and legal requirements to ensure the permit would provide a 
high level of protection for the environment and human health. the Environment 
Agency raised no objection to this application.  The Environment Agency raised 
no objection to the planning application.  
 
Members were also advised on planning policy and the weight that can be given 
to tests that are required to be met for major development in the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty and it was confirmed by officers that these tests 
had been met.  Members were informed about how the visual impact had been 
assessed and the officer explained in detail about ecology, heritage assets and 
visual amenity matters and where necessary planning conditions had been 
attached. The officer explained the views of the highways officers and the need 
for a traffic management plan and planning conditions to restrict traffic 

Page 215



 
 
 

 
 
 

movements.  Any ‘fall back’ position was explained in terms of the 
redevelopment/ re-use of the site. 
 
The committee was advised on the late submission received from the Area of 
Outstanding Natural Beauty officer and that landscape impact, lighting and use 
of materials and external colour finishes had been fully factored into the officer’s 
report and the planning authority needed to weigh up any public harm against 
the merits of the application. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response, officers stated: that the lawful use of the site was for 
agricultural and one which may continue to operate as a poultry unit if required 
in the future subject to requiring a permit if needed and any permissions 
required from the Council to bring the buildings up to modern day standards or  
new buildings; that the three issues raised by the previous committee in their 
deferral of the application had been addressed and were outlined in the report; 
along with the confirmation that the local highway authority, other consultees 
experts in their fields and planning officer had no objections and no refusal 
reasons were produced.  There would be comprehensive controI of the site 
operations under the Environmental Permitting system administered by the 
Environment Agency.  It would be monitored  by them regularly, at least 
annually, to ensure compliance with the permit. Any concern in the future 
regarding what is discharged from the buildings, ie noise, odour, dust etc it is for 
the Environment Agency to take any complaint and action accordingly. Failure 
to take appropriate steps to rectify those concerns would have the risk of having 
to reduce or cease operations.  The Environment Agency have the power to 
enter the site, unannounced, to investigate any complaints. 
 
Members of the public and the parish councils then had the opportunity to 
present their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Councillor Tony Jackson and Councillor Fleur De Rhe-Philipe as the adjacent 
and local Division Members addressed the Committee. 
 
At the start of the debate Councillor Jonathon Seed moved, subsequently 
seconded by Councillor Ernie Clark, that the application be approved subject to 
the conditions outlined in the officer’s report. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: the commendation given 
to the case officer for the detailed report, and the work undertaken to provide 
additional, more detailed planning conditions; how concerns about noise, 
vehicle movement and pollution could be mitigated against; that the 
Environment Agency had included pre-operation conditions to assess the 
impact of the proposals; how the conditions would be enforced and the 
additional conditions requiring the submission of a pest management plan; that 
the Environment Agency have confirmed that, following consultation with health 
bodies, there should not be any public health impacts from the proposals. 
 
It was also recommended that condition no. 17 should restrict hours of 
demolition and construction; and officers were asked if the planning conditions 

Page 216



 
 
 

 
 
 

would pass the test of ‘reasonableness’; members also remarked that the site 
visit had established the nature of site topography, landscaping and the position 
of the buildings in relation to the nearby housing; imposing vehicle restrictions 
for the development and the site was subject to some debate in terms of 
acknowledging the proximity of the industrial estate.  Members were also 
advised about amending condition no. 12; and how asbestos (if present on site) 
could be dealt with through the recommended planning conditions regarding the 
demolition of the site.  
 
Members also appreciated and acknowledged the views and concerns 
expressed by members of the public. Following advice provided from the 
planning officer, and with the agreement of the proposer and seconder, the 
proposal was amended to include revisions to condition no’s 4 and 12, and an 
informative added regarding the removal of asbestos. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate, and having been put to the vote, the meeting;  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 

1 a The development to which this permission relates shall 
be commenced within three years beginning with the date of 
this permission. 
b. Not less than one week's prior notice shall be provided in 
writing to the Local Planning Authority of the intended date for 
commencement of operations under the terms of this 
permission.  Such date shall be referred to hereinafter as the 
Commencement Date. 

 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the hereby 

approved plans (other than where amended by details submitted to 

and approved in writing in any subsequent discharge of planning 

condition application(s)) 
 

JW/0663/2010/200-01 revision B - Location 

and site plans JW/0663/2010/200-02 - 

Survey plan 

JW/0663/2010/200-03 revision D - Proposed 

layout plan JW/0663/2010/200-04 revision B - 

Floor plan JW/0663/2010/200-05 revision C - 

Page 217



 
 
 

 
 
 

Sections and elevations JW/0663/2010/200-

08 revision D - Lighting plan 

JW/0663/2010/200-10 revision B - As existing elevations and site 

sections REASON: In order to define the terms of this 

permission. 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development a Construction and 

Operational Lorry Traffic Management Plan (COLTMP)shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority, 

and the site shall be developed and operated in accordance with the 

approved COLTMP. The COLTMP shall include, inter alia, measures 

employed to ensure that i)the adjacent highway is kept clear of 

detritus, ii) there is adequate provision for the parking and turning of 

lorries within the site, 

ii) dequate provisions are made to ensure that the routeing of lorries 

to and from the site, including driver and third party instructions, is 

only by way of approaching and leaving the site via the A350 at 

Longbridge Deverill, iv) details of the management of vehicle 

movements, v) location of any temporary contractor's compound and 

internal parking provisions. 
 

REASON: In order to ensure that the amenity of the local highway 

network is adequately protected 
 

4 No external lighting shall be installed on site until plans/details 

showing the type of light appliance, the height and position of 

fitting, illumination levels and light spillage including methods to 

prevent any sideways or upward disruption of light have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The approved lighting shall be installed and shall be 

maintained in accordance with the approved details and no 

additional external lighting shall be installed.  

 

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to 

minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the 

development site within an AONB. 
 

5 If during development, contamination not previously identified is 

found to be present at the site then no further development (unless 

otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall 

be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written 

approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy 

detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The 

remediation strategy shall be implemented as approved. 
 

REASON: To prevent pollution of controlled waters. 

Page 218



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

6 No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 

soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :- 
 

- location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 

 

- full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 

protection in the course of development; 
 

- a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 

and planting sizes and planting densities, 
 

- finished levels and contours; 
 

- means of enclosure; 
 

- car park layouts; 
 

- other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas; 
 

- all hard and soft surfacing materials; 
 

- minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 

refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting etc); 

 

- proposed and existing functional services above and below 

ground (e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines 

etc indicating lines, manholes, supports etc); 
 

- details of the bundings 
 

- details of works for the protection of the public footpath 
 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape 

features. 
 

7 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping 

shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following 

the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 

development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge 

planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected 

from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a 

period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged 

or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others 

of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a 

programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 219



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 

development and the protection of existing important landscape 

features. 
 

8 No development shall commence on site in connection with the 

approval until details of the materials including colour finishes for 

the external surfaces of the development have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details. 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 

appearance of the area. 
 

9 No development shall commence on site until details of the LPG tank 

to be used on the development have been submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 

carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 

appearance of the area. 
 

10 No development to commence until full acoustic design proposals for 

the ventilation fans, including  sound frequency spectra for inlets, 

outlets and case radiation of the fans, specifications of the proposed 

attenuators, duct systems and outdoor terminations  and calculations 

on the sound levels generated by the fans via the paths described in 

the submitted report 'Second Addendum to Noise Impact Analysis' by 

S. and D Garritt Ltd dated 16th March 2016, has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. All works 

comprised in the approved details shall be completed before any part 

of the development is first bought into use. The level of noise emitted 

from site shall thereafter not exceed a rating Level 

 

(BS4142:2014) of 37dB between 07:00 and 23:00 and 23dB between 

23:00 and 07:00 at the boundary of Java Bungalow, Deverill Road. 
 

In meeting these levels the sound from the equipment will be at or 

below the typical measured background noise level (LA90) as shown in 

the submitted documents 'Addendum to Noise Impact Analysis' by S. 

and D Garritt Ltd dated 14th November 2014 and 'Second Addendum to 

Noise Impact Analysis' by S. and D Garritt Ltd dated 16th March 2016. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local 

Planning Authority before development commences in order that the 

development is undertaken in an acceptable manner in order to 

safeguard the amenities of the area in which the development is 

located. 
 

Page 220



 
 
 

 
 
 

11 The development will not commence commercial operations until a 

written scheme for post completion noise measuring has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

The scheme shall be designed by a suitably competent and qualified 

person. The written scheme shall provide details of how compliance 

with the sound levels in condition 10 will be demonstrated and 

include times and locations at which noise monitoring will take place 

and the equipment that will be used to take measurements. A post 

completion noise measuring shall be carried out within 12 weeks of 

the use commencing and within 16 weeks of the use commencing, a 

report written by a suitably competent and qualified person, detailing 

the results of the post completion noise measuring shall be 

submitted to the local planning authority. 
 

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free 

from intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the 

amenity of the area. 
 

12 Vehicle movements to and from, and on the site will be restricted to the 

hours of 8am - 6pm Monday to Friday only and no lorry movements on 

site at weekends and Bank or Public Holidays. 

 

 REASON:  To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 

intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of 

the area. 
 

13 No development shall commence on site (including demolition, 

ground works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP  shall  

include,  but  not  necessarily be limited to, the following: 
 

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities 
 

b) Identification of 'biodiversity protection zones' 
 

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive 

working practices) to avoid or reduce impacts during construction 

(may be provided as a set of method statements) 
 

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid 

harm to biodiversity features 

 

e) The times during construction when specialists ecologists 

need to be present on site to oversee works 
 

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication 
 

g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of 

works (ECoW) or similarly competent person(s) 
 

Page 221



 
 
 

 
 
 

h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 
 

i) Ongoing monitoring, including compliance checks by a 

competent person(s) during construction and immediately post-

completion of construction works. 
 

The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented 

throughout the construction period strictly in accordance with the 

approved details. 
 

A  report prepared by a competent  person(s), certifying that the 

required mitigation and/or compensation measures identified in the 

CEMP have been completed to their satisfaction, shall be submitted to 

the Local Planning Authority within 3 months of the date of 

substantial completion of the development or at the end of the next 

available planting season, whichever is the sooner. 
 

REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and 

compensation for protected species, priority species and priority 

habitats. 
 

14 Before works commence, a Landscape and Ecological Management 

Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The content of the LEMP shall include, 

but not necessarily be limited to, the following information: 
 

a) Specification of habitats to be created, 
 

b) Description of features to be managed; 
 

c) The above shown on a site map 
 

d) Aims and objectives of management 
 

e) Management prescriptions; 
 

f) Work schedule including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a 5 year period 
 

g) Details of the body or organisation responsible for 
implementation of the plan; 

 

h) Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; 
 

i) Timeframe for reviewing the plan 
 

j) Details and location of the 15 bat boxes and 15 bird boxes. 
 

k) Buffer strips along field edges to be cut less frequently 

l) Traditional management of hedgerows 
 

m) Dedication of underutilised areas of the site to create wildflower 
meadows 

Page 222



 
 
 

 
 
 

 

n) Hibernalcula and refuge log piles 
 

o) Incorporation of dropped kerbs and sumpless gullies 
 

The LEMP shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 

REASON: To ensure the long-term management of landscape and 

biodiversity features, and to maintain and enhance these in 

perpetuity. 
 

15 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 

scheme shall be constructed prior to the use commencing. 
 

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 

16 No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the 

discharge of surface water from the site, incorporating sustainable 

drainage details together with permeability test results to BRE365, 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The approved scheme shall be constructed prior to the use 

commencing. 
 

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately drained 
 

17 No development shall commence on site (including any works of 

demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall 

include the following: 
 

a) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
 

b) loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
 

c) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development; 

 

d) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding 

including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, 

where appropriate; 
 

e) wheel washing facilities; 
 

f) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction; 

 

g) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 

demolition and construction works; and 
 

h) hours of construction, including deliveries; 
 

Page 223



 
 
 

 
 
 

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 

Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with in full 

throughout the construction period. The development shall not be 

carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved 

construction method statement. 
 

REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 

Authority before development commences in order that the 

development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise 

detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of 

the area in general, detriment to the natural environment through the 

risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the 

construction phase. 
 

18 The development shall not be first bought into use until a Pests 

Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority. The Pest Management Plan should 

include measures for the management and control of pests such as 

flies and vermin. The approved Pests Management Plan shall be 

adhered to. 
 

REASON: In the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 

19 No materials shall be burnt on site at any time on any phase of 

the development during the building and construction works. 
 

REASON: In order to minimise nuisance 
 

INFORMATIVE(s): The applicant must ensure the development 

complies with the Water Resources (Control of Pollution) (Silage, 

Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil) Regulations 2010 (SSAFO). These 

regulations aim to prevent water pollution from stores of silage, slurry 

and agricultural fuel oil. They set out requirements for the design, 

construction and maintenance of new, substantially reconstructed or 

substantially enlarged facilities for storing these substances. Storage 

facilities should be sited at least 10 metres from inland freshwater or 

coastal water and have a 20-year life expectancy. The Environment 

Agency must be notified in writing about any new, substantially 

enlarged or substantially reconstructed system at least 14 days before 

it is first used. Further guidelines and factsheets on the SSAFO 

regulations are available from the following website: 
 

http://www.environment-aaencv.aov.uklbusiness/sectors/118798.aspx 
 

INFORMATIVE: Please be advised that nothing in this permission 

shall authorise the diversion, obstruction, or stopping up of any right 

of way that crosses the site. You are advised to contact Wiltshire 

Council PROW officer 

 

Page 224

http://www.environment-aaencv.aov.uklbusiness/sectors/118798.aspx


 
 
 

 
 
 

INFORMATIVE The applicant should note that the works hereby 

approved involve the removal and disposal of asbestos cement 

roofing. It should only be removed by a licensed contractor.  

Asbestos waste is classified as 'special waste' and as such, can only 

be disposed of by obtaining a site licence from the licensing 

authority (Environment Agency). Any contractor used must also be 

licensed to carry 'special waste'. 

 

64 17/05137/FUL - Coopers Chase, Church Street, Hilperton, Trowbridge, 
Wiltshire, BA14 7RL 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Cooper, spoke in support of the application 
 
Verity Giles, as planning officer, outlined the report for a proposed garage and 
studio. It was recommended that the application be approved subject to 
conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the principle of development; impact on the neighbouring properties; 
the views of the local residents including those submitted after publication of the 
report; the construction material and the windows proposed; the relationship to 
the existing dwelling and neighbouring properties including the potential impact 
on privacy and the adjacent listed building; the access to the site;  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. The questions focused on: the position of the dwellings in relation 
to the map. 
 
Councillor Ernie Clark proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor David 
Halik, that the proposal be approved subject to the inclusion of the following 
additional condition: 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended by the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) 
Order 2008 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with 
or without modification), there shall be no additions, extensions or enlargements 
or additional wall and/or roof openings to the garage/studio hereby permitted. 
  
REASON:  To define the terms of the permission and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area and to enable the Local Planning Authority to consider 
individually whether planning permission should be granted for additions, 
extensions, alterations and enlargements. 
 
In moving his proposal, Councillor Ernie Clark thanked the officers for their 
advice on this application. In response to an issue raised, officers advised that a 
further condition would be required to secure the use of materials to match the 

Page 225



 
 
 

 
 
 

host dwellinghouse, known as Coopers Chase. Following the consent of the 
proposer and seconder, this was included in the proposal. 
  
Members of the public and the parish council had the opportunity to present 
their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
At the conclusion of the debate it was; 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
Location Plan - Drawing No Drawing No. 2479-06 - received on 
13 June 2017; Site Plan and Block Plan, as received on 15 June 
2017; Drawing No. 2479-10 Rev B, and Proposed Elevations and 
Floor Plans, Drawing No 2479-11 Rev A - received on 5 July 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 The garage and studio accommodation hereby permitted shall 
not be used at any time other than for purposes ancillary to the 
residential use of the main dwelling, known as Coopers Chase 
and it shall remain within the same planning unit as the host 
dwelling.  
 
REASON: The additional accommodation is sited in a position 
where the Local Planning Authority, having regard to the 
reasonable standards of residential amenity, access, and 
planning policies pertaining to the area, would not permit the 
creation of a separate dwelling and additional residential unit. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 
amended by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or 
any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with 
or without modification), the garage hereby permitted shall not 
be converted to habitable accommodation. 

  

Page 226



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON:  To secure the retention of adequate parking 
provision, in the interests of highway safety. 
 

5 No development shall commence on site (including any works 
of demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which 
shall include the following:   
a)         the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;  
b)         loading and unloading of plant and materials;  
c)         storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 

development;  
d)        the erection and maintenance of security hoarding 

including any decorative displays and facilities for 
public viewing (if applicable);  

e)         wheel washing facilities;  
f)          measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 

construction;  
g)         a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting 

from demolition and construction works; and 
h)         measures for the protection of the natural environment. 
i)          hours of construction, including deliveries; 
 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied 
with in full throughout the construction period. The 
development shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
accordance with the approved construction method statement. 
 
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring 
amenities, the amenities of the area in general, detriment to the 
natural environment through the risks of pollution and dangers 
to highway safety, during the construction phase. 
 

  

6 Notwithstanding the details set out within the completed 
application form, the materials to be used in the construction of 
the external wall and roof surfaces of the development hereby 
permitted shall match the material, colour and texture used for 
the host dwellinghouse, known as Coopers Chase. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character 
and appearance of the area. 
 

  

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 
amended by the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008 (or 
any Order revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with 
or without modification), there shall be no additions, extensions 
or enlargements or additional wall and/or roof openings to the 
garage/studio hereby permitted. 

  

Page 227



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
REASON:  To define the terms of the permission and in the 
interests of the amenity of the area and to enable the Local 
Planning Authority to consider individually whether planning 
permission should be granted for additions, extensions, 
alterations and enlargements. 

 
Admin Note: Councillor Edward Kirk did not participate in the debate or vote 
having previously declared an interest in the item. 
 

65 17/05690/FUL - 8 Rowan Court, Melksham, Wiltshire SN12 6HS 
 
Public Participation 
 
Colin Goodwood, agent, spoke in support of the application 
 
Kate Sullivan, as planning officer, outlined the report for a car port. It was 
recommended that the application be refused. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: the materials to be used in the proposals; how the proposals is not 
considered permitted development; the relationship of the site to adjacent 
properties and the views from the street; and the objection raised by the Town 
Council;  
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. In response to the questions, the following matters were 
confirmed: the position of the gazebox, the parking provision and amount of 
hardstanding; the potential impact of the gazebox on vehicle movements to and 
from the existing access; that consideration of any future applications for similar 
gazeboxes would be decided on their own merits. 
  
Members of the public had the opportunity to present their views to the 
Committee, as detailed above. Councillor Jonathon Seed read out the 
statement submitted by the local ward member, Councillor John Hubbard who 
was unable to attend the meeting. 
 
At the start of the debate Councillor Gordon King, subsequently seconded by 
Councillor Edward Kirk, moved that permission should be granted for the 
proposal subject to appropriate conditions. 
 
In the debate that followed, issues discussed included: the need to delegate 
authority to officers to finalise the conditions to address issues including the 
panel material, lighting and screening. 
 
Following the conclusion of the debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 228



 
 
 

 
 
 

To delegate authority to the Head of Development Management Services 
to grant planning permission subject to conditions to be determined by 
officers, including conditions to address issues of the internal and 
external lighting, mechanical openings and vinyl coverings to be used; 
and to ensure the retention of appropriate boundary treatments. 
 
The wording of these conditions was delegated to officers and 
subsequently agreed as: 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
REASON:   To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans: 
 
Revised site location plan - received 04.07.2017; Block plan - 
received 04.07.2017; proposed plans - received 04.07.2017; 
proposed gazebox view - received 04.07.2017  
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 
 

3 Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, 
details pursuant to any internal and external lighting, 
mechanical openings and vinyl coverings shall be submitted 
to and for the written approval of the Council. Development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To define the terms of the permission and in the 
interests of amenity. 
 

4 The hedged boundary at and around the site frontage shall be 
retained and maintained for the lifetime of the development 
hereby approved. If the retained hedge is removed, uprooted, 
destroyed or dies, another hedge shall be planted at the same 
place, of a size and species and planted to be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In order to secure a level of screening and safeguard 
street scene amenity. 
 

66 Urgent Items 
 
There were no Urgent Items. 

Page 229



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 6.05 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 230



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2017 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Christopher Newbury (Chairman), Cllr Jonathon Seed (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Phil Alford, Cllr Trevor Carbin, Cllr Ernie Clark, Cllr Peter Fuller, 
Cllr Sarah Gibson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Stewart Palmen, Cllr Pip Ridout and 
Cllr Roy While (Substitute) 
 
 
 
  

 
67 Apologies 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Andrew Davis 
(substituted by Councillor Roy While). 
 

68 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on  23 August 2017 were presented. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve as a correct record and sign the minutes of the meeting held 
on 23 August 2017. 
 

69 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark referred to his register of interest for item 8a. 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis (attending as the local member – not part of the committee) 
declared that he was part of the Feoffees (Trustees) of St Lawrence Chapel 
relating to items 8b and 8c. 
 

70 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s Announcements. 
 
The Chairman gave details of the exits to be used in the event of an 
emergency. 

Page 231

Agenda Item 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

71 Public Participation 
 
No questions had been received from councillors or members of the public. 
 
The Chairman welcomed all present. He then explained the rules of public 
participation and the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 

72 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
Public participation 
 
Mr Francis Morland spoke on the appeals report. 
 
The Planning Appeals Update Report for the period between the 11/08/2017 
and 08/09/2017 was received. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Planning Appeals Update Report for11/08/2017 and 
08/09/2017. 
 

73 Appeals Report 
 

74 Planning Applications 
 
The Committee considered the following applications: 
 

75 17/01250/REM - Land South Of Devizes Road, Hilperton, Wiltshire 
 
Public Participation 
 
Mr Trowler, agent, spoke in support of the application 
 
Eileen Medlin, as Senior Planning Officer, outlined the report for a reserved 
matters application for the scale, layout & external appearance of the 
development and  It was recommended that the application be approved 
subject to conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
Include; scale, layout, external appearance of the development,  landscaping of 
the site, density, spread of the affordable housing and footpath access.. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer which there were none. 
 
Members of the public and the parish councils had the opportunity to present 
their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Ernie Clark, as the local member, explained that he accepted the spread of 
the affordable housing and that it would not stand out as much. There were still 

Page 232



 
 
 

 
 
 

concerns over density and that there had been no change to the applications 
number of dwellings despite the application being deferred at a previous 
meeting for those negotiations to take place.  
 
Cllr Ernie Clark moved a motion to refuse planning permission which was 
seconded by Cllr Trevor Carbin.   
 
A debate followed and the main points raised included; the inspectors report on 
density and allocated parking for 4 bedroom houses. 
 
Following the debate the motion was lost. 
 
Cllr Jonathon Seed moved a motion to approve the officers recommendation 
which was seconded by Cllr Roy While. 
 
A debate followed and the main points raised included; a condition to remove 
permitted development rights specific to the garages of the dwellings. 
 
Following the debate it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
 To Approve planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the following approved plans:  
 
Dwg SLP – Site Location Plan Revision P1, Received 09 February 2017 
Dwg 1 – Proposed Residential Development, Revision P4, Received 27 
June 2017 
Dwg 2 - Landscape Strategy Plan - Revision P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 3 – Street Scene and Site Sections – Revision P2, Received 13 July 
2017 
Dwg 5 - Single Garage Detail, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 10 – Avebury House Types Floor Plans (Plots 1 and 2) Revision P3, 
Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 11 – Avebury House Types Elevations (plots 1 and 2) Revision P4, 
Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 20 - Cherhill House Type Floor Plans (Plot 3) Revision P1, Received 
27 June 2017 
Dwg 21 – Cherhill House Type Elevations (Plot 3) Revision P2, Received 
27 June 2017 
Dwg 30 – Durrington House Types Floor Plans (Plot 5) Revision P2, 
Received June 2017 
Dwg 31 – Durrington House Types Elevations (Plots 5) Revision P2, 
Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 40 – Edington House Type Plans (Plots 4, 10, 12 and 13) Revision P2, 
Received 27 June 2017 

Page 233



 
 
 

 
 
 

Dwg 41 – Edington House Type Elevations (Plots 4, 10 and 13) Revision 
P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 42 - Edington House Type Floor Plans (Plot 12), Rev P2, Received 27 
June 2017 
Dwg 60 - Ramsbury House Type Floor Plans (Plots 6 and 11) Revision P2, 
Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 61 - Ramsbury House Type Elevations Revision P2 (Plot 6), Received 
27 June 2017 
Dwg 62 - Ramsbury House Type Elevations Revision P2 (Plot 11) Received 
27 June 2017 
Dwg AF01 - Block 1 Affordable House Type Plans (plots 14 and 15) Rev 
P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg AF02 – Block 1 Affordable House Type Elevations (Plots 14 and 15) 
Revision P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg AF03 - Block 2 Affordable House Types Plans (Plots 7 and 9) 
Revision P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg AF04 – Block 2 Affordable House Types Elevations (Plots 7 and 9) 
Revision P2, Received 27 June 2017 
Dwg 5278-100 Revision B – Vehicle Swept Path Analysis, Received 18 July 
2017 
Dwg 5278-101 Revision A – Drainage Strategy and Finished Levels, 
Received 18 July 2017 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
2. No development shall commence on site until a scheme of hard and 
soft landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority, the details of which shall include :- 
* location and current canopy spread of all existing trees and 
hedgerows on the land; 
* full details of any to be retained, together with measures for their 
protection in the course of development; 
* a detailed planting specification showing all plant species, supply 
and planting sizes and planting densities;  
* finished levels and contours;  
* means of enclosure;  
* car park layouts;  
* other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;  
* all hard and soft surfacing materials;  
* minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play equipment, 
refuse and other storage units, signs, lighting);  
* proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 
(e.g. drainage, power, communications, cables, pipelines indicating lines, 
manholes, supports);  
 
REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this 
matter to be considered prior to granting planning permission and the 
matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences in order that the development is undertaken in 

Page 234



 
 
 

 
 
 

an acceptable manner, to ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
3. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season 
following the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the 
development whichever is the sooner;  All shrubs, trees and hedge 
planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from 
damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of 
five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning 
authority.  All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development or in accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 
4. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the access, 
turning area and parking spaces thereto have been completed in 
accordance with the details shown on the approved plans. The areas shall 
be maintained for those purposes at all times thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
5. The approved brick panel which has been constructed on site and 
is illustrated and annotated on the sample photograph received on 14 July 
2017 shall then be left in a position on site for comparison purposes 
whilst the development is carried out.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved brick sample. 
 
REASON: in the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area 
 
6. No development shall commence on site until details of the roof 
tiles/slate and render type to be used on the development have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: The matter is required to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences in order that the development 
is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual amenity 
and the character and appearance of the area 
 
7. No development shall commence on site until a lighting design 
strategy for biodiversity for buildings, features or areas to be lit shall be 
submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
strategy shall: 

Page 235



 
 
 

 
 
 

a) Identify those areas/features on site that are particularly sensitive for 
foraging and commuting bats and that are likely to cause disturbance in 
or around their breeding sites and resting places or along important 
routes used to access key areas of their territory, for example, foraging; 
b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed (through the 
provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical 
specifications, including a Lux plot) so that it can be clearly demonstrated 
that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species using their 
territory or having access to their breeding sites and resting places; and 
c) Specify luminaires, heights and positions of fittings, direction and other 
features, e.g. cowls, louvres or baffles 
All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the 
specifications and locations set out in the strategy, and these shall be 
maintained thereafter in accordance with the strategy. Under no 
circumstances should any other external lighting be installed without 
prior consent from the local planning authority. 
REASON: To minimise light spillage into hedgerows and trees and to 
maintain dark foraging and commuting corridors for bats.  
 
8. The dwellings hereby approved shall achieve a level of energy 
performance at or equivalent to Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes. No dwelling shall be occupied until evidence has been issued and 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority 
certifying that this level or equivalent has been achieved.  
 
REASON: To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development equal 
or equivalent to those set out in Policy CP41 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy are achieved.  
 
9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting or amending that Order with or without 
modification), the garages hereby permitted shall not be converted to 
habitable accommodation.  
 
REASON: To secure the retention of adequate parking provision, in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
Planning Informative: 
 

1. Your attention is drawn to the fact that, whilst the details have been 
approved in relation to this reserved matters application, the 
conditions attached to the outline planning permission under 
reference 13/06879/OUT will need to be discharged prior to the 
commencement of works and adhered to as well as compliance 
with the associated S106 agreement. 
 

76 17/03839/FUL - 3 High Street, Warminster BA12 9AG 
 
Public Participation 

Page 236



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Mr Andrew Pollard, spoke in objection to the application 
 
Mr Duncan Lawrence, Agent, spoke in support of the application 
 
Mr Huy Nguyen, spoke in support of the application 
 
Mathew Perks, as senior planning officer, outlined the report for a proposed 
refurbishment of existing frontage building to provide 2 shops with 4 flats above 
plus new residential development of 5 dwellings and landscaping to the rear. It 
was recommended that planning permission should be granted, subject to 
conditions and a S106 legal agreement. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: principle of the development, the impacts on heritage asset(s), the 
access and parking impacts and neighbouring amenity impacts. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
of the officer. The questions focused on: access and parking. 
 
Members of the public and the parish council had the opportunity to present 
their views to the Committee, as detailed above. 
 
Cllr Andrew Davis, as the local member, informed the committee that he was a 
member of the Feoffees (Trustees) of St Lawrence Chapel, although he was 
speaking as the local member. Concerns raised included; the scale of the 
development, design, appearance, out of keeping with the area, bin storage and 
collection, noise impacts from Morrison’s and the church bells on those who 
reside in the new developments, the developments plans not being to scale and 
conservation issues. It was recommended that conditions be put in place in 
respect of archaeology and that the building work is finished before occupation 
and an informative about the bell ringing.  
 
Jocelyn Sage, Conservation Officer, informed the committee that  conservation 
were keen to retain the building but due to the buildings deteriorating condition 
that would be difficult. The development would enhance the conservation of the 
area and fit with the clustered characteristic of the town.  
 
Cllr Pip Ridout moved a motion to conduct a site visit which was seconded by 
the Chairman.  
 
During the debate issues raised included: the need for the site to be marked 
out. 
 
Following the debate it was; 
 
Resolved  
 
To defer the application for a site visit which would be held at 12noon on 
the 18 October 2017. 

Page 237



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
77 17/04445/LBC - 3 High Street, WARMINSTER BA12 9AG 

 
Mathew Perks, as senior planning officer, outlined the report for listed building 
consent to refurbish the existing frontage to provide 2 shops with 4 flats above. 
It was recommended that planning permission should be granted, subject to 
conditions. 
 
The key planning issues identified in the officer’s presentation were outlined to 
include: impact on the Grade ii Listed Building. 
 
Due to this application relating to item 8b, it was moved by Cllr Pip Ridout and 
seconded by the Chairman that the application be deferred until after the site 
visit. 
 
Following this it was; 
 
Resolved  
 
To defer the application for a site visit which would be held at 12noon on 
the 18 October 2017. 
 

78 Urgent Items 
 
The committee discussed the need to review the procedures on site visits. It 
was noted that a overview and scrutiny focus group had been formed to look at 
planning issues and procedures which included site visit procedures. 

 
(Duration of meeting:  3.00  - 4.40 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Jessica Croman of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718262, e-mail jessica.croman@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 238



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD 
ON 18 MAY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Dr Peter Jenkins (Vice Chairman), Dr Andrew Girdher, Dr Toby Davies, Dr Richard Sandford-
Hill, Christine Graves, Dr Gareth Bryant, Carolyn Godfrey, 
Chief Executive or Chairman Salisbury Hospital, Chief Executive or Chairman Bath RUH, 
Tracey, Toby Sutcliffe, Chief Executive or Chairman Great Western Hospital, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chair) and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
  

 
95 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction, Appointment of Vice-Chairman and 

Apologies 
 
The Chairman welcomed all to the meeting. Apologies were noted from Dr Andy 
Smith, Mike Veale, Nerissa Vaughan and Cllr Ian Thorn. 
 
Election of Vice-Chairman 
 
The Chairman invited nominations for the position of Vice-Chairman. Councillor 
Jerry Wickham, duly seconded, that Dr Peter Jenkins be appointed as Vice-
Chairman. 
 
There being no further nominations, and following the agreement of the 
meeting, it was; 
 
Resolved 
 
That Dr Peter Jenkins be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Health & 
Wellbeing Board 
 

96 Minutes 
 
The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 9 February 2017 be approved 
as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 239

Agenda Item 19



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

97 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

98 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chair drew the meeting’s attention to the announcement on the 
Sustainability Transformation Plan. 
 

99 Public Participation 
 
There were no questions submitted, but the Chairman reiterated her wish that if 
a member of the public had a question during the meeting they were 
encouraged to raise it. 
 

100 Update on recent Healthwatch Wiltshire Engagement Activity 
 
Emma Cooper, Chief Executive and Lucie Woodruff  from Healthwatch Wiltshire 
presented an updates on: the latest engagement with people that are living with 
dementia; and the Young Listeners project which is engaging with children and 
young people. A volunteer young listener gave their perspective on the impacts 

of the scheme on service users and for volunteers themselves. 

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion regarding 
dementia included:  how other advocacy groups are worked with to avoid 
duplication; that primary care is, often, the main point of contact for people 
accessing services; that people value a clear diagnosis and information, along 
with a further review and ongoing support; the approach of the GP practice to 
these issues, and that taking a carer-friendly approach, significantly impacted 
on the quality of life; the further engagement work and how providers would use 
the information; the further work with Alzheimers Support, and the next steps to 
identify where support groups are and where gaps in provision are; the 
reluctance of individuals to acknowledge the reality of their diagnosis. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion regarding 
the young listeners project included: where support is available in educational 
settings; that since the project had started, Healthwatch  Wiltshire had decide to 
launch dedicated youth arm which would be launched during volunteers week; 
the continuing work with schools to identify students to undergo further training 
to become Young Listeners; that Police, CCG and Council had helped to deliver 
a Youth Summit to spread the word about youth involvement; the need to give 
young people a platform, and how training allowed young listeners to develop 
rapport to enable people to open up; the efforts to address waiting times for 
services, and how digital solutions had been used to improve access. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 240



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

i) To note the outcomes of the extensive engagement that has taken 
place in Wiltshire since March 2016 

 
ii) To note the key messages within the 3 reports included as 

appendices  
 

iii) To recognise the commitment of Healthwatch Wiltshire’s Young 
Listeners and the part they have played in listening to children and 
young people across the county; 

 

iv) To recognise the constructive partnership approach between the 
voluntary sector, commissioners and providers which ensure that 
local people’s experiences are collected and taken into account; 

 

v) To confirm its commitment to the voice of local people influencing 
the commissioning and provision of services 

 
101 Update on Children's Community Healthcare Services 

 
Jayne Carrol and Val Scrase, Virgin Care, presented an update on progress 
made one year after the recommissioning of Children’s Community Healthcare 
Services. Stuart Hall, Wiltshire Parent Carers Council, also attend to offer the 
view of families receiving services. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that work had been undertaken, over the year since the start of the contract, to 
bring together 15 services and 4 organisations to create a single service for 
Wiltshire; that these included universal services, such as school nurses, and 
targeted services; the need to create a consistent model of provision; the need 
to listen to the views of families and carers; the journey to create a single 
electronic record for patients to communicate needs better; the vision to create 
a single point of contact and to co-locate teams; the efforts to work with teams 
to establish shared visions and values – including team spirit and empathy; the 
road map for change over the 5 year life of the contract, and what had been 
achieved in the first year; the challenges in bringing teams together; that a CQC 
inspection had taken place, the results of which would be published; how 
staffing gaps were addressed; how waiting times were addressed; and how 
views from children and families are recorded and other engagement work. 
  
The Chair thanked the officers from Virgin for the presentation and Mr Hall for 
offering the perspective from parents and carers. 
 

102 Outcomes Based Commissioning Peer Challenge 
 
Carolyn Godfrey, Wiltshire Council, provided an update on the findings of the 
recent Outcomes Based Commissioning Peer Challenge and the implications 
for delivery. 
 

Page 241



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
key matters that came out of the peer challenge; the need for clarity on 
engagement; the positive work down by the Area Boards and the potential to do 
more; the need for joined up workforce issues; how access to Adult Social Care 
(ASC) can be confusing and required more work; the action taken to address 
these issues; and that these will be included in the developing ASC 
transformation plan. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update. 
 

103 Better Care Plan Commissioning Intentions 
 
James Roach presented the report, which sought the Board’s approval of the 
proposed commissioning intentions for the Better Care Plan (BCP)in 2017/18 
and the use of additional money for adult social care. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
progress made since 2014; the record on integration and how increased 
investment had aided transformation; the changes to governance made 
following a recommendation from the Scrutiny Task Group; how the BCP had 
been expanded to include some equipment issues; the performance compared 
to other authority areas; the challenges that remain, particular in DTOCs; the 
demographic challenges and the increase in care needs; the major challenges 
in dealing with workforce issues;  
 
In response to the issues raised about workforce challenges, the Chairman 
suggested that this could be a topic for further discussion at the Board. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Roach, who was leaving his post, for his hard work in 
the area. 
 
Resolved 
  

1. To approve the priorities outlined in the BCP strategy for 2017/18; 
 

2. To approve the commissioning intentions for 2017/18; 
 

3. To approve the themes and  priorities outlined  for the use of the 
additional £5.8 million into adult social care during 2017/18; 
 

4. To approve the BCP budget for 2017/18 including the alignment of 
the community equipment budget; 
 

5. To approve the governance process outlined in the document and 
continuation of the section 75 agreement; and 
 

Page 242



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

6. To agree that any further changes to the BCP plan for 2017/18 due 
to pending national policy guidance will be subject to Chair and 
Vice Chairs action and sign off. 

 
104 Right Care 

 
Mark Harris and Tracey Cox, Wiltshire CCG, presented an update on the Right 
Care Programme. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
how the programme used national benchmark intelligence to reduce 
unwarranted variation where that impacts on patient outcomes in Wiltshire; the 
aim to ensure commissioning for value; how the programme and its information 
are integrated with other work programmes; the relative spend on early 
intervention and the outcomes achieved; the links to projects piloted in the 
Strategic Transformation Plan; the next steps in the programme and the 
involvement of public health; and the possibility of further reports once more 
outcomes achieved. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update. 
 

105 Health Education England 
 
Clare Hines, Associate Director, Health Education South West (HESW), gave a 
presentation on the role of Health Education England (HEE), the latest local 
Business Plan and workforce activity in the STP; and the development of 
Community Education Provider Networks.  
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
composition of the workforce in the NHS in the South West; that 
unpaid/voluntary workers and carers represented three quarters of all health 
care workers but that there appeared to be no formal training being made 
available in this area; that annual demand forecasts were undertaken for 
workforces; the likely increase in demand for paramedics; the links to specific 
regional and national recruitment programmes including those for Pharmacy 
and Maternity services; the impact of moving nurses from bursaries to loans, 
and that training posts would be filled; that smaller courses, such as podiatry, 
may have viability issues to address; that other post-registration and post-
graduate course are supported outside of the student loans; other programmes 
for recruitment including apprenticeships and those returning to work; the 
implications of financial restraints; and the funding support for training up 
paramedic staff. 
 
In response to issues raised during the discussion, James Scott stated there 
was a workforce workstream as part of the Strategic Transformation Plan, and 

Page 243



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

that she would refer the matter of creating multi-skilled heath and social care 
workers. 
 
The Chairman thanked officers for their update. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update. 
 

106 Mental Health and Wellbeing 
 
a) Francis Chinemana, Wiltshire Council, and Ted Wilson, Wiltshire CCG, gave 
an update on progress implementing the Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
Action Plan. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that information had been presented to the Joint Strategic Assessments (JSAs) 
at the Community Area level; the six main areas of focus in the strategy, 
including early intervention and awareness raising; the increased priority given, 
across the Community Areas, to mental health in the plans developed in 
response to the JSAs; the closer engagement work with users, carers and 
families; the potential for Healthwatch Wiltshire engagement on issues such as 
transitions and post traumatic stress disorder to fully inform work; and how 
integrated working, and shared training, can have positive impacts. 
 
The Chairman thanked officers for their update. 
 
Resolve  
 
To note the update. 
 
b) Julia Cramp, Wiltshire Council, gave an update on the provision of Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Service. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
recent national report measuring performance of local authorities; that Wiltshire 
was one of only a third of local areas to meet its targets, on a relatively low 
spend; the opportunities for pastoral care in schools; increased use of tools 
such as online counselling and other digital resources; the improved 
performance to address waiting times; that the local performance scorecard 
would be published; that Oxford Health were the preferred bidder allowing the 
council to refocus their work in target areas such as vulnerable children and 
eating disorders; how national funding has been beneficial to help drive change; 
and how early intervention can reduced strain on other services. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 244



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

1. To note the progress to date on the implementation of the CCG 
Local Transformation Plan for Children and Young People’s Mental 
Health and Wellbeing; 

 
2. To scrutinise the Local Transformation Plan and its performance to 

ensure it is reflective of local needs, is compliant with national 
expectations and is targeting efforts and resources in the right way 
to improve services; 
 

3. To note the progress being made to develop a new child and 
adolescent mental health service, to go live on 1 April 2018.  

 
107 Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat 

 
Ted Wilson, Chair of the Concordat Action Group, presented the update which 
followed the September 2016 Mental Health Crisis Care concordat paper, 
detailing progress in Wiltshire to improve Crisis Care Pathways. Dr Toby 
Sutcliffe, AWP, and Keith Pople, Alexander Technique, were also in attendance 
to provide additional information. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course on the presentation and discussion included: 
the focus on completing the actions agreed for the first year; that the year 2 
action plan, going forward, is to be agreed; that a single suite with increased 
capacity would be achieved; the balance to be struck between the benefits of 
joint working across the region, whilst maintaining facilities for the use of 
Wiltshire residents; the excellent work that had taken place with under 18s in 
Wiltshire; how case studies were used to test the new models; and where 
processes have been improved to reduce duplication (such as triage). 
 
Following a short debate, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note the development in combining the Swindon and Wiltshire 

Crisis Care Concordats. 
 

2. To approve the draft Terms of reference for the Swindon and Wiltshire 
Crisis Care Concordat. 

 
3. To considers the latest available data against key indicators at 

Appendix 3. 
 

108 Military Healthcare 
 
Col Sharon Woodhouse, Defence Primary Healthcare Central and Wessex 
Region, attended the meeting to provide a verbal update, regarding 
developments in military healthcare – including support for army rebasing and 
transitions.  

Page 245



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
reorganisation of regional governance; the army rebasing programme and its 
impacts; the transition of some staff into the NHS; the use of e-learning for 
training staff in more remote locations; the challenges of getting people signed 
up as veterans and signed up to GPs; the impact of GP shortages; the good 
working relationship with CCG, PH and NHS England; whether the needs to the 
Wiltshire military and veteran community were being met; the challenges faced 
by veterans and the issue of substance abuse; and the potential to recruit 
health and social care staff from military families. 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update 
 

109 Carers 
 
Due to time constraints, it was agreed that consideration of the item be deferred 
to the next meeting. 
 

110 Date of Next Meeting 
 
It was noted that the date of the next meeting would be 13 July 2017. 
 

111 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.52 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 246



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD 
ON 13 JULY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chair), Dr Peter Jenkins (Vice Chairman), 
Dr Andrew Girdher, Christine Graves, Nikki Luffingham, Angus Macpherson, 
Cllr Laura Mayes, Dr Richard Sandford-Hill, Mick Stead, Linda Prosser, Cllr Jerry Wickham 
and Carolyn Godfrey, Brian Stables and Cara Charles-Barks 
 
  

 
112 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements 

 
The Chair welcomed all the meeting and made the following announcements: 
 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) 2018 
 
As part of the requirement to undertake a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment, a 
survey had been set up to seek residents’ views. The PNA is being led by 
Public Health and supported by a stakeholder steering group. A draft would be 
considered in September, prior to a formal consultation period, and will return 
for final consideration in January 2018. 
 
Dr Peter Jenkins 
 
The Chair stated that Dr Peter Jenkins, the Clinical Chairman at Wiltshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group, would step down from his role at the end of 
September following a two-year term. She thanked him for his contributions and 
wished him well for the future. 
 

113 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Dr Toby Sutcliffe, Roger Hill 
Dr Andy Smith, Dr Toby Davies and James Scott. 
 

114 Minutes 
 
The meeting considered the minutes of the meeting held on 18 May 2017. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 247

Agenda Item 20



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 18 May 
2017 
 

115 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

116 Public Participation 
 
There were no public questions. 
 

117 Statement of Intent on Integration 
 
The Chair and Vice-Chair presented the Statement of Intent on Integration 
which set out the ambitions of partners for developing health and social care 
integration in the next few years. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that Wiltshire Council had agreed its Business Plan for next 10 years, and that 
integration was one of the main priorities; the shifting of emphasis onto 
prevention and early intervention; that this complemented the joint work 
underway on children, the importance of social activities in promoting good 
health; how best to share risk and rewards across different services in the 
Health & Social Care system as a whole; the issues of shared governance and 
the role of the joint Commissioning Board; the importance of performance 
management; the agreement of the CCG Board to jointly appoint with Wiltshire 
Council a Corporate Director; how best to align budgets for shared issues; how 
specific issues about data sharing can be addressed; the importance of 
engagement with service users and carers; the importance of explaining which 
serviceservices were in scope; how best to communicate with the public to help 
them understand the changes and develop a narrative on integration with 
Healthwatch Wiltshire; and how best to involve the acute hospitals in the plans. 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 

1. To formally endorses the Statement of Intent. 
 

2. To receive further updates 
 

118 Carers 
 
Sue Geary, Wiltshire Council, presented the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) which proposed an integrated approach to the identification and 
assessment of carers’ health and wellbeing needs. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
consultation undertaken in preparation of a strategy; that the formal adoption of 

Page 248



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

the strategy had been delayed to take into account the national carers strategy, 
but that this had been delayed; that an action plan had been developed in line 
with the draft strategy; that in the interim a template MoU had been developed, 
and that this had been tailored for Wiltshire; the involvement of different groups 
in the development of plans including Wiltshire Carers Partnership. 
 
In response to the presentation, the Police & Crime Commissioner stated that 
he would be happy to present the MoU to the Local Criminal Justice Board 
which included a wider list of partners. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting;  
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the progress with regards to the draft Carers Strategy and 

Implementation Plan; 
 
ii) To adopt the Memorandum of Understanding “An integrated 

approach to the identification and assessment of carers health and 
wellbeing needs” and commits to working together to deliver against 
the principles in the MoU. 

 
iii) To endorse the MoU as a document to which all partner 

organisations supporting carers in Wiltshire could sign to show their 
commitment to the principles set out within the document, and to the 
delivery of the Carers Strategy and Implementation Plan. 

 
iv) To continue to encourage other, willing, partners to sign up. 
 

119 End of Life Care Strategy 
 
Ted Wilson, Wiltshire CCG, and Kate Blackburn, Wiltshire Council, introduced 
the report which presented the refreshed End of Life Care Strategy for Adults 
2017-2020. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
work building on the first strategy developed in 2014; the progress that had 
been delivered, and the actions monitored by the joint board; how the voluntary 
sector are involved; that priorities should be reaffirmed, and how it aligns to 
national guidance; how Health Watch Wiltshire had taken a lead on some of the 
public engagement activities; the favourable national and regional average 
comparisons on certain indicators include allowing increasing number of people 
to die at home; that a future joint report would be delivered later in the year; how 
ambulances services are involved and appropriate care given;  the importance 
of increased awareness amongst the community and the conversation should 
continue to use plain English; the improved out of hours access to palliative 
drugs; the improvements made to access to information and support given to 
hospitals; and that the strategy related to adults only, but that there was work 

Page 249



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

ongoing with children and their families (including on the implementation of the 
latest NUCE guidance). 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To support the refreshed Wiltshire End of Life Care Strategy for 

Adults 2017-2020. 
 
ii) To agree to an update on the delivery of the implementation plan with 

attendance from local hospices in the autumn. 
 
iii) That officers should consider how best to refer, in the strategy, to the 

services available to children. 
 

120 Implementation of GP Five Year Forward View in Wiltshire 
 
Jo Cullen, Wiltshire CCG, presented the report which provided an update on the 
five year programme. 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
previous consultation undertaken and the updates given to the Board; the 
delegated responsibilities to CCG from NHS England to procure primary 
services; the work undertaken regarding workforce and resilience; the progress 
made in year two of the plan, and the areas that will continue to need focused 
attention; the increasing number of practices that are facing resilience issues, 
for example practices closing; how partners work together to transfer people to 
other practices; that 19% of GPs are over 55, and the difficulties of recruiting 
staff to Wiltshire; how different service models and officer roles could be used to 
reduce the burden on GPs; (given 1 in 4 consultations could be undertaken by 
someone else); how best to meet improved access expectations; the impact of 
Brexit on recruitment; whether enough GPs are being trained; the implications 
of the larger age profile; the national initiatives to develop a broader team of 
multidisciplinary primary care staff and develop better telephone triage; the 
importance of educating patients; the evidence, including that from CQC 
inspections, shows that Wiltshire has some of the very best GPs, who are 
delivering service transformation despite significant pressures.are over 55, and 
the difficulties of recruiting staff to Wiltshire; how different service models and 
officer roles could be used to reduce the burden on GPs (given 1 in 4 
consultations could be undertaken by someone else); how best to meet 
improved access expectations; the impact of Brexit on recruitment; whether 
enough GPs are being trained; the implications of the larger age profile; the 
national initiatives to develop a broader team of multidisciplinary primary care 
staff and develop better telephone triage; the importance of educating patients; 
the evidence, including that from CQC inspections, shows that Wiltshire has 
some of the very best GPs, who are delivering service transformation despite 
significant pressures. 

Page 250



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Following the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the progress and work to date in developing the General 

Practice Forward View (GPFV) Stage 2 Plan, recognising the role and 
input from the GP Resilience Board in providing clinical leadership 
and oversight of the resilience programmes; 

 
ii) To note the complexity and synergy of the programmes under GPFV – 

such as the Integrated Urgent Care procurement to expand general 
practice capacity; the Estates and Technology Transformation Fund 
for development of investment in infrastructure; GP IT programmes to 
link to the Local Digital Roadmap work; the Vulnerable Practice 
programme with increasing numbers of practices in crisis; and 
training programmes for all staff groups to develop and enhance the 
widening skill mix of the primary care workforce; 

 
iii) To note the GPFV Plan builds on the Wiltshire Primary Care Offer in 

place from April 2016 as a 3 year programme - based on the principles 
delivering primary care services at scale to support increased 
efficiencies and address issues of recruitment and retention of a 
competent, capable and resilient primary care workforce to deliver 
high quality services in primary care; and 

 
iv) To note the details in the GPFV about the future models of care for 

larger organisational forms - Multi Specialty Community Providers or 
Primary and Acute Care Systems; with the commitment the foundation 
of NHS Care will remain the list based system of general practice. 

 
121 Integrated Urgent Care Procurement 

 
Jo Cullen, Wiltshire CCG, presented the item which provided an update to the 
Board on the procurement of integrated urgent care 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: 
that the procurement exercise had been running since autumn 2016; the role of 
an urgent care clinical advice hub; the complex nature of urgent care; the work 
of Health Watch Wiltshire to help the project to understand the issues faced by 
the public; the issues of transport, particularly for those in more rural areas; the 
impact of the military population; that the joint procurement had included 
services across the Banes and Wiltshire STP footprint; that NHS England had 
included urgent dental care in the procurement; that the project had moved into 
a preferred provider stage, and hoped to award contract in September; and that 
out of hours mental health services for children were not included in the 
procurement but that the links were recognised. 
 

Page 251



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
To note the update 
 

122 Joint Strategic Assessment 
 
Kate Blackburn, Wiltshire Council, presented the report which provided an 
update on the Joint Strategy Assessment (JSA). 
 
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
relevant statutory responsibilities of the board; the work undertaken specific to 
each community area; how the data had changed and how it was reflected in 
the document; how better benchmarking was undertaken against authorities 
with similar profiles; how the data can be shared with partners; and how the 
definition of wellbeing could draw upon the carers’ definition. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the need to update the Health & Wellbeing JSNA for Wiltshire; 
 
ii) To agree to support the work of Wiltshire Council to update the HWB 

JSNA in the format outlined below; 
 
iii) To examine where action at a strategic level might continue to 

encourage further action across Strategic Partner Organisations to 
improve the Health & Wellbeing of the Wiltshire population. 

 
123 Healthwatch Wiltshire Annual Report 

 
Lucie Woodruff presented the Annual report from Health Watch Wiltshire 
(HWW). 
 
In the course of the presentation and discussion, the issues highlighted 
included: that this was HWW’s fourth annual report; the engagement with the 
public on services such as dementia; the powers available to visit and review 
services; the role of volunteers in delivering the services; how the website and 
social media is being used to make contact; that dementia, and general primary 
care remained a priority; the work towards becoming accredited for support and 
development of volunteers; that local wellbeing guides had been developed; the 
improvement to information on Dementia and End of Life care; the creation of 
the Young Listeners project, which had received some national recognition; the 
priorities for action going forward including children and young people, 
particularly engaging secondary pupils; the project to set up Youth Watch 
Wiltshire; the planned visits of a HWW to each community area; how partners 

Page 252



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

can work with HWW to share intelligence and best practice; that the charity 
behind HWW had won the contract to provide similar  services in the Somerset 
and Gloucestershire areas, but HWW frontline staff would remain separate and 
service would not be diminished but enhanced through a central office with 
specialists undertaking research. 
 
The Chair thanked HWW for their update and for their constructive work in 
Wiltshire. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
1. To note and comment on the content of the Annual Report 

 
2. To recognise the progress which has been made during 2016/17 in 

fulfilling the statutory duties of a local Healthwatch 
 

3. To take up the offer for Healthwatch Wiltshire to share the outcomes 
from its engagement work as appropriate in the future. 

 
124 Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 

 
Richard Crompton, Chair of the Board, presented the annual report of the 
Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board. 
  
Issues highlighted in the course of the presentation and discussion included: the 
impact of the ageing population on the work of the board; that over 4000 
concerns had been raised with less than 10% requiring further investigation; 
that the demand does appear to be levelling off following years of increases; 
that 60% of concerns were raised by professionals with 17% requiring further 
investigation; the plans to better integrate staff dealing with safeguarding issues 
through a multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH)) for adults; the development 
of new staff guidance and training to raise awareness; the launch of a new 
website; that financial support had been secured from the Police and the CCG 
to add to the contributions from Wiltshire Council; that good support was being 
provided from partners; that recommendations for two safeguarding adult 
reviews had been received and lessons learnt can be reviewed; that work was 
ongoing to cement the relationship with Children’s Board to cover transition 
issues. 
 
The Chair, Richard Crompton, specifically thanked partners involved in World 
Elder Abuse day, and stated that he looked forward to continue to work with 
partners to raise the profile of the issues regarding the Board and its work. 
 
In answer to a question from Councillor Jerry Wickham, Richard Crompton that 
in some performance measures some authorities delivered a nil return which 

Page 253



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

would then skew the national average, but that Wiltshire’s performance was 
similar to authorities of a similar size. 
 
At the conclusion of the discussion, the meeting; 
 
Resolved 
 
i) To note the publication of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board 

Annual Report 
 
ii) To agree to support the work of the Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults 

Board 
 
iii) To agree to an annual update from Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults 

Board and to receive additional items as required (including annual 
business plans and safeguarding adults reviews). 

 
125 Date of Next Meeting 

 
It was noted that the date of the next meeting would be changed, and that 
partners would be informed once a date had been arranged. 
 

126 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 am - 12.12 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Will Oulton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713935, e-mail william.oulton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 254



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 
 
 

 
PART 1  MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD MEETING HELD ON 13 
JULY 2017 AT THE NORTH WILTSHIRE ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE 
BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton, Lynda Croft, Sarah Holbrook, Mike Pankiewicz, Howard Pearce 
(Chairman) and Barry Reed 
 
 
 
  

 
26 Membership 

 
The Chairman welcomed Cllr Britton to the meeting, Cllr Britton had replaced 
Cllr Christopher Newbury on the Board. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the change to the membership as detailed above.  
 

27 Attendance of non-members of the Board 
 
Officers from the Wiltshire Pension Fund were in attendance.  
 

28 Apologies 
 
Apologies for absence were received from David Bowater.  
 

29 Minutes 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting and the Board’s action log were 
presented. 
 
The Board considered the action log and it was requested that action 6.21 in 
respect of feedback on CIPFA guidance could be set to complete and action 
8.12 to review the Investment Strategy Statement be set to an April 2018 
deadline. It was understood that action 6.8 was soon to be completed as the 
tPR checklist on publishing scheme information would be included in the Fund’s 
Annual Report.  

Page 255

Agenda Item 21



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2017.  
 
To note the action log and to update actions 6.21, 8.12 and 6.8 as detailed 
above.  
 

30 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

31 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman updated that himself and the Vice Chairman had recently 
attended a CIPFA conference at which there had been much discussion around 
new information from the Pensions Regulator and insurance indemnity for 
Board members. Advisers at the conference had recommended that funds 
purchase insurance for their Board members, since they were non-Council 
committees and therefore were not covered by their insurance policy. It was 
noted other Funds had not developed their Local Pension Boards and risk 
management to the same extent as Wiltshire. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Chairman.  
 

32 Public Participation and Councillors Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

33 Election of the Vice-Chairman 
 
Nominations were sought for the position of Vice Chairman, the Vice 
Chairmanship of the Board was to alternate each year between the employer 
and scheme member representatives. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Mike Pankiewicz as Vice Chairman for 2017-18.  
 

34 Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee 
 
The Head of Pensions updated on the key decisions from the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund Committee held in June; the Committee had agreed the legal 
documentation for Brunel Pension Partnership and agreed to its Admitted Body 
Status in the Wiltshire Pension Fund. A further update was to be provided under 
Part 2 of the agenda.  

Page 256



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee.  
 

35 Training Item- Complaints and Dispute Handling 
 
The Fund’s Benefits Manager provided a training session on complaints and 
dispute handling within the Fund. It was explained that once a dispute was 
raised with the Fund, officers would try to resolve this, if the matter couldn’t be 
resolved it would be referred to an independent adjudicator, and following that 
to the Associate Director for Finance with support from Hymans Robertson. 
Should a dispute progress pass these stages, the final stages were referral to 
the Ombudsman and then the courts. The Fund’s complaints process was 
similar in that officers would initially try and resolve complaints, they would then 
be referred to the Head of Pensions, following that to independent complaints 
officers at Wiltshire Council, and then to the Ombudsman. Following both 
disputes and complaints, the Fund would always analyse the events to see 
where lessons could be learnt to prevent similar issues in the future.  
 
Details were provided as to when the Fund would consider making Distress and 
Inconvenience payments, it was highlighted this was recompense when the 
Fund recognised it had made an error. Members heard that employers were 
required to provide details of the adjudicators they used in disputes, the Fund 
had requested these details and recently provided employers with further 
guidance, particularly in respect of ill health retirement cases. Approximately 30 
employers had submitted details of their adjudicators to date 
 
In response to questions it was confirmed what over the last 3 years, only 6 
disputes had reached stage 1, and 2 at stage 2, none had gone to the 
Ombudsman, no complaints had progressed to independent review.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To thank Craig Payne for the informative training session.  
 

36 Scheme, Legal, Regulatory and Fund update 
 
The Head of Pensions provided Board members an update on Fund, Scheme, 
Legal and Regulatory matters.  
 
A key update included a recent High Court decision which ruled that 
Government guidance that funds should not pursue policies contrary to UK 
defence or foreign policy was unlawful. The ruling would impact on guidance for 
preparing an Investment Strategy Statement. The implication of the Markets in 
Financial Instruments Directive II (MiFid II) consultation paper was discussed, 
the Fund had responded to the consultation and an update on the matter would 
be brought to the next meeting. The Board also heard that PwC had produced a 

Page 257



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

report ‘Options for Academies in the LGPS’, which highlighted issues 
experienced by stakeholders, recommendations on the matter would be 
progressed by the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB). In respect of the Wiltshire 
Pension Fund, it was heard that officers were in the process of introducing an 
ill-health liability insurance for scheme employers, this was to be available from 
August 2017.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Fund, Scheme, Legal and Regulatory update.  
 

37 Risk Register Update 
 
The Board was presented with the latest Risk Register for the Fund. PEN011 
‘Lack of expertise of Pension Fund Officers & PEN012 ‘Over-reliance on key 
officers’ had been raised to a red risk, despite mitigation action, as the Strategic 
Pension Manager had resigned, meaning a considerable loss of expertise. Two 
further resignations had recently been received at the administrator level. The 
Pension team roles were being considered for realignment as a result of this 
change and also the development of Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
PEN026 ‘Impact of MiFid II Regulations’ had been added as a risk to reflect 
current concerns over the implementation of the regulations which would mean 
the Fund would be classified as a ‘retail’ investor. PEN 020 ‘Pooling of LGPS 
assets’ remained a red risk due to the significant resource required by officers 
to progress the project to implementation stage. 
 
Members discussed the staff turnover at the Fund, it was acknowledged that at 
present turnover was high, however staffing had been stable for a long time 
prior to this. Officers considered the recent changes were due to an increase in 
the scale and complexity of the work staff were required to undertake and the 
difficulty the Fund had in matching salaries offered in the private sector. The 
Board recommended administrative support for the Fund remain in house and 
the Fund should review staffing to ensure it firstly supported the statutory 
requirements of the Fund. It was acknowledged that poor performance in 
meeting statutory obligations could lead to complaints/disputes and thus further 
cost and resource pressures on the Fund.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and recommend that the Fund review resource 
allocated to fulfilling its statutory requirements.  
 

38 Review of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Statement of Accounts 
 
The Strategic Pension Manager introduced the Fund’s Statement of Accounts 
for 2016-17 which would form part of the Annual Report and also Wiltshire 
Council’s accounts. The Chairman recommended that wording in the Statement 

Page 258



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

of Accounts be amended to reflect the remit of the Board to provide advice and 
support to the administering authority. It was also noted that section 17 of the 
report referred to Related Party Disclosures and recommended the Fund look 
into the new requirement to disclose the names of key management personnel. 
The Strategic Pension Manager advised these changes would be made to 
future reports. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Wiltshire Pension Fund Statement of Accounts. 
 
To recommend future reports contain the details of key management 
personnel and wording describing the role of the Local Pension Board be 
amended as detailed above.  
 

39 Internal Audit 
 
A summary of the Internal Audit Report was provided; the report had given the 
Fund a ‘reasonable assurance’ rating with only two medium priority 
recommendations in respect of GMP, Altair and payroll reconciliations.  
 
Members noted the risks identified by the audit were the same as in the 
previous year and recommended resource be invested to ensure they be 
addressed. The Head of Pensions advised he had two staff working on 
reconciliations and an update on progress would be provided to a future 
meeting. It was explained that employers paid for reconciliation work through 
their contribution rates and the Fund did this in-house to reduce costs. The 
Chairman also recommended resource be directed to ensure the Fund’s 
compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation which was to come 
into force in 2018. Officers noted data management was an important issue and 
would bring a report on data management to a future meeting. The Head of 
Pensions advised he would report on the implementation of audit 
recommendations in 6 months’ time, the auditor would also monitor this.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Internal Audit report and recommend that resource be 
directed to address the risks in respect of reconciliations and data 
management. 
 

40 Feedback from the Wiltshire Pension Fund Annual General Meeting 
 
The Head of Pensions presented feedback on the Fund’s first AGM which had 
been held on 21 June 2017. The officer advised that an AGM was an 
opportunity to improve communication with members and was recommended by 
CIPFA. The attendance from the first AGM had been 25, with a mixture of 
employer and scheme members present. It was considered the first AGM had 
been a successful event.   

Page 259



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
The AGM had included presentations from officers, the Actuary, Mercer, Baillie 
Gifford and had featured an open forum for members to ask questions. 
Feedback from the event had been very positive, a priority for next year was to 
work on the balance between items of interest for employers and scheme 
members. The Board supported the idea of holding the 2018 AGM in 
September/October, inline with the finalisation of the Annual Report. It was also 
suggested thought be given to whether to split the AGM into two halves, one for 
employers, one for members. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update from the AGM and support a move to hold this later in 
the year to coincide with the publication of the Annual Report. 
 
To recommend officers review the format of the AGM in response to the 
needs of employers and scheme members.  
 

41 Review of Governance Compliance Statement 
 
Members were presented with the Fund’s Governance Compliance Statement 
which set out the delegations from Wiltshire Council around the operation of the 
Fund. Officers advised the details of the Local Pension Board would be included 
as an appendix. The Chairman advised the DCLG guidance referenced in the 
Governance Compliance Statement was out of date and DCLG would need to 
renew this.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Governance Compliance Statement.  
 

42 Local Pension Board Annual Report and Benchmarking 
 
The Head of Pensions presented the LPB Annual Report and results of 
benchmarking undertaken to compare the report to that of other Funds. The 
Board was advised there were very limited LPB Annual Reports in the South 
West, and where reports existed nationally they had varying degrees of content. 
It was considered that Wiltshire’s Board had the most full and comprehensive 
report in comparison to others. Members considered that the Board had made 
material recommendations to the Fund over the last 12 months and was now 
well established.  
 
It was recommended the Annual Report include a ‘RAG status’ or similar means 
to indicate where Board recommendations had been implemented, likewise to 
track compliance with the Pensions Regulator Code of Practice. The Head of 
Pensions advised that the tPR checklist of compliance would be included. 
 

Page 260



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

It was commented that the Board’s response to the SAB survey on the 
operation of Local Pension Boards should make reference to the benchmarking 
of annual reports and that the Fund could explore the idea of regional LPB 
reports.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Annual Report and to delegate authority to officers, in 
consultation with the Chairman, to amend the document to track tPR 
compliance and the implementation of Board recommendations.  
 

43 The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice 14 Survey Results 
 
The summary results of the Pensions Regulator’s survey were presented and it 
was considered the Fund has responded positively and ensured improvement 
plans were in place. Currently the Fund was investigating software through 
which data submitted by employers would be reviewed before submission to the 
Fund to ensure only quality data was included. 
 
Members made the point that summary results did not allow for differentiation 
between LGPS and national schemes, and some of the questions had been 
unclear which could have affected the results. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the results of the Pensions Regulator Code of Practice 14 Survey. 
 

44 Proposed Response to Scheme Advisory Board Local Pension Board 
Survey 
 
The Chairman presented a proposed response from the Board to the SAB’s 
survey on the operation of Local Pension Boards nationally. Members were in 
agreement with the Chairman’s proposal and recommended that comments 
requesting more collaboration and benchmarking between Boards be included. 
 
The outcome of the SAB survey would be reported to a future meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree the proposed response to the survey, with the addition of 
comments to support more collaboration and benchmarking between 
Boards.  
 

45 Review  of Wiltshire Pension Fund Website 
 
At it’s last meeting, the Board had received a presentation on the Fund’s 
website by the Communications Manager. The Chairman invited members to 
submit feedback on the site before the next meeting in October.  

Page 261



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Resolved: 
 
To request that members submit their feedback on the Wiltshire Pension 
Fund website prior to the October Local Pension Board meeting.  
 

46 Implementation of Costs Transparency 
 
The Strategic Pension Manager explained that recent SAB Guidance and 
CIPFA Accounting Standards recommended investment managers disclose 
their fees to allow for transparency and consistency in the industry. The 
disclosure was entirely voluntary, however that it would hopefully promote a 
culture change in the market, 3 of the Fund’s managers had signed up to the 
Code. The Chairman of the SAB was promoting this new standard for funds to 
adopt as a policy. 
 
The Board expressed support for costs transparency and recommended it be 
factored into Wiltshire Pension Fund and Brunel Pension Partnership manager 
appointments. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the implementation of costs transparency and 
recommend it be factored into the Wiltshire Pension Fund and Brunel 
Pension Partnership manager appointment process.  
 

47 How did the Board do? 
 
The Chairman led a discussion on the operation of the Board and current 
workplan. The merits of reducing the number of meetings was discussed and it 
was agreed that, where possible, reports should come to the Board in advance 
of the Committee to allow the LPB to input into reports and for their 
recommendations to be considered by the Committee. It was considered the 
Risk Register should continue to be reviewed quarterly and that training items 
were important to maintain. It was noted that the outcome of the SAB survey 
may highlight issues to be reviewed. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To review the timetabling and work plan of Board meetings following 
consideration of the SAB survey results.  
 

48 Urgent items 
 
There were no urgent items.  
 
 
 

Page 262



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

49 Date of next meeting and forward plan 
 
The next meeting was to be held on 18 October.  
 
In light of the discussion about the Board’s workload it was agreed that an item 
on external audit was not required at the next meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To remove the item on external audit from the work plan for the next 
meeting.  
 

50 Exclusion of the Public 
 
To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute numbers 51- 54 because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

51 Local Pension Board Insurance Indemnity 
 
The Head of Pensions presented proposals for an insurance indemnity policy 
for the Local Pension Board.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the purchase of an insurance indemnity policy for the Board 
for the minimum amount (£1m) at the least cost, and to review the issue in 
12 months.  
 

52 Brunel Pension Partnership and Investment Pooling 
 
The Head of Pensions provided an update on the establishment of Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the progression of Brunel Pension Partnership. 
 
 
 
 

Page 263



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

53 Key Decisions of the Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee and Investment 
Sub Committee 
 
There were no further confidential updates arising from the recent Wiltshire 
Pension Fund Committee and Investment Sub-Committee meetings.  
 

54 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 6 April 2017.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.10 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone, of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 264



 
 
 

 
 

JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MINUTES OF THE JOINT STRATEGIC ECONOMIC COMMITTEE (SWLEP) 
MEETING HELD ON 28 JUNE 2017 AT COMMITTEE ROOM A - COUNCIL 
OFFICES, MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr David Renard (Chairman), Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr John Thomson, Cllr Oliver Donachie, John Mortimer, Cllr Toby Sturgis (Substitute - 
Part II) and Cllr Garry Perkins 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
 
  

 
25 Apologies 

 
 
It was detailed that the as a result of portfolio changes, Councillor Chuck Berry was 
now a member for Wiltshire, and Councillor Oliver Donachie was now a member for 
Swindon. Committee substitutes for Swindon Councillors would be Councillor Garry 
Perkins, Councillor Toby Elliott and Councillor Brian Ford, Committee substituted for 
Wiltshire Council would be Councillor Richard Clewer, Councillor Bridget Wayman 
and Councillor Toby Sturgis. 
 
Apologies were received from Mr Adam Schallamach, Vice-Chairman of the SWLEP, 
Councillor Chuck Berry and Councillor Russell Holland. 
 
Councillor Holland was substituted by Councillor Perkins, and Councillor Berry was 
substituted by Councillor Toby Sturgis. 
 

26 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To receive the minutes of the SWLEP Board meeting held on 22 march 2017. 
 
And that subject to the correction to Minute 15 to change ‘Paddy Ashley’ to 
‘Paddy Bradley’ to approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 13 April 2017. 
 

27 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 

Page 265

Agenda Item 22



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
28 Chairman's Announcements 

 
There were no announcements. 
 

29 Public Participation 
 
Mr Llewellyn, a member of the public in attendance, sought details of why the Minute 
37 was to be considered in private, with the reason detailed under Minute 36. 
 

30 Swindon and Wiltshire Local Enterprise Partnership (SWLEP) Commissioning 
Group Highlight Reports 
 
The highlight reports as reviewed by the SWLEP Commissioning Group regarding 
Local Growth Fund and other projects were received. 
 
During discussion it was noted the full business case for the A350 project had been 
signed off and construction work had commenced, and that the Corsham Mansion 
House project had been called in by the Secretary of State following approval by 
local planning committees. It was also stated the Junction 17 project would be 
underway in a few weeks from the meeting. 
 
Details were also provided on he Careers and Enterprise Company, which was 
working with over 40 schools and engaging over 40 advisers with mentoring 
underway, and that a call for further loan applications for businesses under the 
Growing Places Infrastructure Fund had been launched. 
 
The Committee also discussed progress with the Higher Futures project, which was 
looking to widen its scope, with further more detailed discussion under the next 
agenda item. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updates to SWLEP projects. 
 

31 Higher Futures Proposal 
 
The Committee received a copy of a report to the SWLEP on the Higher Futures 
project, introduced by John Mortimer, Chairman of the SWLEP, and Paddy Bradley, 
Director of the SWLEP. The project had been set up with a government grant to 
address the higher level skills gap across Swindon and Wiltshire, to provide impartial 
advice and brokerage to employers, together with organisation development support 
and sector knowledge of skills requirements. The SWLEP paper followed a review of 
proposed outputs of the project and its operating model, proposing an extension of 
the service to broader and lower level skills as well. 
 
The Committee were informed that the scheme had not been operating as originally 
envisaged, and that it had been out of sync with development of a growth hub and 

Page 266



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

higher education strategy, with the proposals intended to integrate the new approach. 
The Board’s suggestion would then be sent to central government to amend the 
original agreement. Since the original agreement the depart of Education rather than 
Department for Business, Industry and Skills was responsible for the scheme. 
 
The Committee was also told that there would still be a focus on the higher end of 
skills, for example with key performance indicators seeking to double the number of 
learners embarking on higher or degree apprenticeships by 2019/20. 
 
The Committee discussed the SWLEP paper and proposal, with concerns raised that 
half the grant funding had already been spent setting up the scheme, and already the 
scheme was being refocused, with a need for clearer demonstration of effectiveness. 
There were also concerns that the new focus on broader and lower skills training was 
a significant departure from the scheme’s intended purpose.  
 
In response to queries about the education providers steering those being engaged 
with to particular courses it was stated that the SWLEP was confident this was not 
the case. In response to reference to the Ministry of Defence and higher skills training 
for military leavers not being followed up, it was stated the Ministry had their own 
schemes in place, and that the government had been challenged over this, though 
some of the committee felt more could have been achieved rather than changing 
direction so significantly. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the SWLEP Board decision as follows: 
 

1) That Higher Futures provides employers with access to a range of 
impartial skills advice, support and brokerage, the priority being higher 
level skills following the model set out at section 4 below. 

 
2) That Higher Futures is to become part of the Growth Hub so that it is 

integrated into the wider framework of support for business. 
 

3) That the Board seeks approval from Government for a new delivery 
model and revised outputs, namely 2000 learners embarking on level 4+ 
programmes through Higher Futures by 2020, including doubling the 
number of learners embarking on higher or degree apprenticeships 
across the LEP area between 2015/16 and 2019/20 academic years. 

 
But to request that the SWLEP Board continue to challenge the government to 
deliver the programme as originally envisaged in relation to military leavers. 
 

32 European Structural Investment Fund 2014-2020 Updates 
 

Page 267



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Committee received an update on the European Structural Investment Funds, as 
detailed in the report papers. It was also confirmed that Wiltshire Councillor Fleur de 
Rhé-Philipe would continue to act as Chair of the ESIF Group and could report to the 
Committee as required. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

33 Strategic Housing Market Assessment and Functional Economic Market Area 
Assessment (SHMA/FEMAA) 
 
On 14 February 2017 the Committee received an outline of the methodology and 
headline findings of the final draft Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and 
Functional Economic Market Area Assessment (FEMAA). A report was presented to 
the meeting, updating the Committee on the joint work taking place between Wiltshire 
Council and Swindon Borough Council to progress the SHMA and FEMAA , and 
identifying four housing market areas and three ‘best fit’ functional economic market 
areas as detailed in the papers. 
 
The Committee discussed the report, noting the Ministerial Statement and 
government guidance on the status of SHMA evidence, noting that the Core Strategy 
and Local Plan requirements would remain the applicable housing requirement for 
each authority. Attention was also drawn to the Housing White Paper published in 
February 2017, as detailed in the report. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To consider the final draft SHMA and FEMAA, and to recommend to the 
respective councils that they consider and agree to jointly publish the 
documents, subject to any part II discussions. 
 

34 Date of the Next Meeting 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 18 October 2017, and would take 
place in Swindon. 
 

35 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

36 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 to 
exclude the public from the meeting for the following items of business 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would 

Page 268



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the information 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 
Reason for taking the item in private: 
 
Paragraph 3 – information relating to the financial information or business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
 

37 Strategic Housing Market Assessment and Functional Economic Market Area 
Assessment (SHMA/FEMAA) 
 
The Committee received and considered a confidential report and the draft final 
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) and Functional Economic Market 
Area Assessment (FEMAA), commenting upon its findings and the process for its 
progression. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the final SHMA and FEMAA would be published in the autumn 2017 
subject to consideration by both authorities' Cabinets including approval of a 
release date. 
 

 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30  - 11.25 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 269



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 

 

 
PART 1 MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE PENSION FUND COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 28 JUNE 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, 
TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Stuart Dark, Cllr Tony Deane (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King, Linda Stuart and 
Cllr Roy While (Vice Chairman) 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Mr Jim Edney, Michael Hudson and Cllr Philip Whitehead 
  

 
28 Membership 

 
The following changes had been made to the membership of the Committee: 
 

 Wiltshire Councillors Simon Jacobs and Christopher Newbury as elected 
member representatives replaced Sheila Parker and Charles Howard. 

 Stuart Dark (Unison) as an Employee Member Observer replaced Tony 
Gravier. 

 
The Chairman expressed his disappointment that so many apologies had been 
sent for this meeting.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the changes to the membership.  
 

29 Attendance of non-members of the Committee 
 
Cllr Philip Whitehead (Cabinet Member for Finance and IT) was in attendance. 
 

30 Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Mike Pankiewicz, Sue Eley, Cllr Simon Jacobs, 
Cllr Christopher Newbury and Cllr Steve Weisinger.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 271

Agenda Item 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

31a Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved:  
 
To confirm the Part 1 (public) minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 
2017. 
 
31b Minutes and Key Decisions of the Local Pension Board 
 
The Head of Pensions updated on items discussed at the Local Pension Board 
meeting on 6 April 2017 including: Key Performance Indicators, the Fund’s 
Communication Strategy and Risk Register. It was explained that the Board had 
recommended the Fund consider developing a graduate recruitment 
programme and that this recommendation was being explored by officers. The 
Board had also reviewed the Fund’s dispute resolution process and deferred a 
decision on whether to purchase indemnity insurance. It was highlighted that a 
survey reviewing Local Pension Boards was shortly to be released which the 
Board and the Committee would be able to respond to, overall it was 
considered that the system worked well in Wiltshire. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Part 1 minutes and recommendations arising from the Local 
Pension Board meeting held on 6 April 2017 
 
31c Minutes and Key Decisions of the Investment Sub-Committee 
 
The Head of Pensions summarised matters discussed at the Investment Sub 
Committee in March 2017 including: the quarterly update on investments, equity 
and Liability Driven Investment (LDI) protection strategies. The Sub Committee 
had requested further exploration of leverage options for LDI and this would be 
presented to their next meeting the following week.  
 
The Chairman highlighted the need for the Fund to be aware of the 
environmental implications of its investing and to invest responsibly.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Part 1 minutes and recommendations arising from the 
Investment Sub- Committee meeting held on 1 March 2017. 
 

32 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman advised the Committee that the Strategic Pension Manager was 
leaving her role to take up employment elsewhere; members wished the officer 
well  in her new role. 
 
The Head of Pensions advised that dates for an LGPS Fundamentals training 
course had been released and encouraged Committee members to attend.  
 

Page 272



 
 
 

 
 
 

33 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

34 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present.  
 

35 Appointment of the Investment Sub Committee 
 
Nominations were sought for positions on the Investment Sub Committee in 
accordance with the Terms of Reference. The Committee Secretary explained 
that positions were allocated to the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 
Committee, one to a Wiltshire Councillor member of the Committee according to 
the rule of political proportionality, and one to a co-opted member on the 
Committee. It was noted that there was a long-standing convention that the co-
opted member be a Swindon Councillor to represent the second largest 
employer body within the Fund. Cllr Steve Weisinger, although not present, had 
confirmed in writing that he could continue in his role on the Sub Committee if 
required.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To make the following appointments to the Investment Sub Committee as 
voting members: Cllr Tony Deane, Cllr Roy While, Cllr Gordon King and 
Cllr Steve Weisinger 
 

36 SWAP Internal Audit Report 
 
A report presented the internal audit report on key controls for Members to note; 
the report had been updated only slightly since it was last reviewed by 
Committee. It was highlighted that the Fund had been given ‘Reasonable 
Assurance’ which was a positive outcome as no major concerns had been 
identified. Minor issues arising from the Audit were in respect of reconciliations 
and the Pensions Team were working to address these, including comparing 
their data to that held by HMRC as part of a GMP reconciliations exercise.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updated SWAP internal audit report.  
 

37 Pension Fund Administration Outturn Statement 2016-17 
 
The Head of Pensions presented the Fund’s outturn statement for the last 
financial year which identified that overall the Fund had underspent compared 
to its projected budget. It was highlighted that the Fund had paid increased fees 
to investment managers however this was a positive as it was a result of 
excellent performance by the assets. Other overspends were due to increased 
cost of actuarial services and establishing Brunel Pension Partnership (BPP). In 
response to questions, it was confirmed that expenditure to set up BPP would 

Page 273



 
 
 

 
 
 

be recovered overtime as part of projected savings, and that in 2016-17 
overspends in some budgets had been offset by savings in investment custodial 
and related services.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Fund’s outturn statement for 2016-17.  
 

38 Draft Statement of Accounts 
 
The Committee was presented with the draft Statement of Accounts outlining 
financial transactions during 2016-17. The Statement of Accounts was to be 
included in the final Wiltshire Council Statement of Accounts. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft Wiltshire Pension Fund Financial Statements 2016-17 
for publication, subject to the completion of the audit. 
 

39 Annual General Meeting Feedback 
 
The Head of Pensions presented feedback on the Fund’s first AGM which had 
been held on 21 June 2017. The officer advised that an AGM was an 
opportunity to improve communication with members and was recommended by 
CIPFA. The attendance from the first AGM had been 25, with a mixture of 
employer and scheme members present. It was considered that the meeting 
had been a success and would be promoted further next year with officers 
aspiring to have 100 attendees present.  
 
The AGM had included presentations from officers, the Actuary, Mercer, Baillie 
Gifford and had featured an open forum for members to ask questions. The 
feedback from the event had been very positive, a priority for next year was to 
work on the balance between items of interest for employers and scheme 
members. The Treasurer to the Fund suggested that other AGMs in the public 
and private sector be attended by officers to identify best practice for AGMs. 
The Fund intended to hold the 2018 AGM in September/October of that year, 
inline with the finalisation of the Annual Report.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the Annual General Meeting.  
 

40 Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Head of Pensions updated on changes to the Fund’s Risk Register. 
PEN011 ‘Lack of expertise of Pension Fund Officers & PEN012 ‘Over-reliance 
on key officers’ had been raised to a red risk despite mitigation action as the 
Strategic Pension Manager has resigned, meaning a considerable loss of 
expertise. The Pension team roles were being considered for realignment as a 
result of this change and also the development of Brunel Pension Partnership.  

Page 274



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
PEN026 ‘Impact of MiFid II Regulations’ had been added as a risk to reflect the 
current concerns over the implementation of the regulations which would mean 
the Fund would be classified as a ‘retail’ investor. PEN 020 ‘Pooling of LGPS 
assets’ remained a red risk due to the significant resource required by officers 
to progress the project to implementation stage.  
 
In response to questions it was confirmed that the structure of the Pensions 
team would be reviewed in light of the vacancy for Strategic Pension Manager 
and this was expected to be finalised within 8 weeks. Councillors expressed 
concern that the Fund was unable to recruit suitable candidates due to the limits 
of the Wiltshire Council pay structure, officers were confident they would recruit 
if the jobs were graded at the appropriate level. The Treasurer to the Fund 
confirmed that salaries were reviewed approximately every 12 months however 
the flexibility of working and office location were also important to staff and the 
service had received good responses from the 2017 staff survey. Members 
questioned whether market supplements could be offered; these could be 
offered only when there were vacancies in the structure that couldn’t be back-
filled. Concern was expressed as to the impact of vacancies on the workload of 
other staff. The Fund’s Independent Advisor was impressed that Committee 
was monitoring staffing and was reassured significant issues could be 
prevented as a result of this support.  
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Risk Register and measures being taken to mitigate risks.  
 

41 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Committee was to be held on 27 September 
2017.  
 

42 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

43 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute Number 44-47  because it is likely that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraphs 1 & 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public. 
 
 
 

Page 275



 
 
 

 
 
 

44 Brunel Pension Partnership Update 
 
The Treasurer to the Pension Fund presented proposals to allow the 
progression of Brunel Pension partnership for Committee consideration. 
 
Resolved: 
 

To 

a) Note the progress of the Brunel Penson Partnership project; 

b) Agree the approval of the attached legal documents listed below: 

i. The Articles of Association 

ii. The Shareholders' Agreement 

iii. The Services Agreement 

iv. Business Plan 

v. The Terms of Reference of the Oversight Board 

vi. The Terms of Reference of the Client Group 

vii. The Terms of Reference of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 

viii. The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee 

ix. The Remuneration Policy 

c) Agree the delegation to the Associate Director, Finance and Chief Legal 

Officer in consultation with the Chairman of the Pension Fund Committee 

to approve any minor amendments prior to final signing; 

d) Approve the delegation to the Associate Director, Finance to authorise 

signing and sealing the final legal documents attached relating to the 

incorporation of Brunel Pension Partnership Limited; as amended in 

accordance with c) above; 

e) Agree the shareholder’s representatives as outlined in the table in 

paragraph 24 of the report; and 

f) The Committee delegates authority to Wiltshire Council’s Monitoring 

Officer and Associate Director, Finance to complete a lease agreement for 

the lease of a building space in Bristol to be sub-let to BPP Limited on or 

after 19 July 2017. That is subject to those officers securing a back to 

back indemnity from the other nine funds engaged in the partnership over 

this lease to which the Committee delegate authority for Wiltshire Pension 

Fund to enter. 

 

 

Page 276



 
 
 

 
 
 

45 Request for Admitted Body Status - Brunel Pension Partnership 
 
A report presented an application from Brunel Pension Partnership to obtain 
Admitted Body status within the Wiltshire Pension Fund for the new Local 
Authority Company. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the applications for the Brunel Pension Partnership Limited to 
join the Wiltshire Pension Fund, preferably as an Admitted Body, subject 
to written confirmation that the 10 Founding Funds provide a guarantee to 
its pension liabilities. 
 

46 Investment Quarterly Progress Report 
 
The Committee was updated on the performance of the Fund’s investments. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the investment reports and the update provided by officers and 
advisers at the meeting. 
 
47a Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm the Part 2 minutes of the meeting held on 23 March 2017. 
 
47b Minutes and Key Decisions of the Investment Sub-Committee and 
Local Pension Board 
 
Resolved: 

 

To note the Part 2 minutes of the meetings of the Investment Sub 

Committee and Local Pension Board held on 1 March and 6 April 2017.Y 

 
 

(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 12.20 pm) 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Libby Johnstone of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718214, e-mail libby.johnstone@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 278



 
 
 

 
WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MINUTES OF THE WILTSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEETING HELD ON 
29 JUNE 2017 AT WESSEX ROOM - THE CORN EXCHANGE, MARKET PLACE, 
DEVIZES, SN10 1HS. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Peter Evans (Substitute), Cllr Anna Cuthbert, Cllr Ross Henning, 
Cllr Brian Mathew, Cllr Jonathon Seed, Cllr Junab Ali, Cllr Abdul Amin, Alan Bishop, 
Cindy Creasy and Chris Henwood 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Sue Evans 

  

 
14 Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 

 
Resolved: 
 
To elect Councillor Richard Britton as Chairman for the forthcoming year. 
 
To elect Councillor Junab Ali as Vice-Chairman for the forthcoming year. 
 

15 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillor John Smale, who was substituted by 
Councillor Peter Evans. 
 

16 Minutes and matters arising 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 2 
March 2017. 
 
Note: As the Chairman had to leave the meeting before it concluded, the minutes 
were signed after the meeting by the Vice-Chairman. 
 

17 Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

18 Chairman's Announcements 
 
Through the Chair it was stated following the last annual conference of Police 
Commissioners there had been the suggestion of creating a national association of 

Page 279

Agenda Item 24



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Police and Crime Panels as well. The Chairman would keep the Panel updated as to 
any progression. 
 
There would be an LGA workshop on 12 July 2017 in Faringdon principally related to 
scrutiny of fire services, but which would also be relevant to Police and Crime Panels. 
 
On behalf of the Panel the Chairman also acknowledged the well-deserved award of 
an MBE to the Police and Crime Commissioner in the Queen’s Birthday Honours for 
his many years of public service. 
 

19 Public Participation 
 
There were no statements or questions submitted relevant to the Panel’s remit. 
 

20 PCC Annual Report 
 
All Police and Crime Commissioners are required to produce an annual report on 
performance against a Police and Crime Plan, including financial information. The 
report would be a public facing document, and the Panel have a duty to comment 
upon it prior to publication. 
 
Angus MacPherson, Police and Crime Commissioner, presented the draft annual 
report, highlighting key achievements, challenges, delivery of aims and a financial 
overview. He emphasised that performance monitoring was constant, and that 
despite evolving threats Wiltshire was one of only seven police forces which had 
received a rating of ‘good’ in all areas of business assessed by the Police 
Effectiveness, Efficiency and Legitimacy (PEEL) programme from Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC). Other details noted in the report was recorded 
crime being up 11%, with domestic burglary a majority priority which was receiving 
additional resource. He also commented upon recent terrorist acts, and commended 
the Chief Constable for his leadership, and all the staff for their work on the frontline 
to protect the people of Wiltshire. 
 
The Panel discussed the draft report and sought additional detail from the 
Commissioner. In response to queries it was stated there had been a trend in falling 
anti-social behaviour, though this was to some degree likely to be due to 
recategorization of some offences as violence without injury crime, of which there 
had been an increase. As noted in the report, however, there had been genuine 
increases in some specific crime types. 
 
The 10,000 who had signed up to community messaging from the police was 
discussed, with comments on how this could be expanded working with partners 
such as the fire service and local councils, and it was felt the Panel should write to 
both local authorities to encourage cooperation to improve the system’s reach, as 
well as avoid duplication of effort. 
 
It was noted that considerable savings had been made, and that although they had 
performed well in the circumstances, Wiltshire remained one of the lowest funded 

Page 280



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

forces in the country. Details of lobbying efforts to central government for a funding 
formula that reflected in a fairer way the increased costs arising from rurality and 
other issues that impacted the cost of policing in Wiltshire were noted, although it 
was stated the funding formula was unlikely to be reviewed in the short term. 
However the Panel requested a public letter be sent to the new policing minister on 
the subject. 
 
Other topics discussed included increased involvement of the commissioner with the 
Criminal Justice Board, recruitment and retention of Special Constables, in particular 
signposting volunteers to other areas they could assist if they were unable to 
progress to be a Special, police morale, high retirement rates, emphasising the 
scrutiny function of the Panel and detailing how the Chief Constable was held to 
account by the Commissioner. 
 
Suggestions were also made on layout and presentation of the draft annual report, 
including listing the partners worked with and display of performance data. 
 
Resolved: 
 
For the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to take into account the 
comments raised by the Panel in the meeting and to redraft the annual report 
as appropriate. 
 

21 Quarterly data (Q4)- Performance / Risk / Finance / Complaints 
 
Performance 
The Police and Crime Commissioner presented a report on performance information 
for the fourth quarter 2016-17, being 1 January-31 March 2017, before receiving 
questions from the Panel. 
 
It was noted that domestic burglary rate had increased, and while it was the case as 
detailed in the report that the rate had risen from a very low base, there was concern 
from some members that the focus on that historic low base meant the significant 
increase was being seen in the wrong context, as the intent would be ensure it 
stayed low. There were also questions on how racially motivated crimes were noted 
and recorded. 
 
It was also felt that including headline figures of more than just the preceding quarter 
would be useful for comparative purposes, in order to identify any trends rather than 
what might seem as anomalous quarterly increases.  
 
Risk 
The risk register was also presented. Details were sought on unsuccessful attempts 
to collaborate with other police services such as Avon and Somerset, and how much 
specific risk should be listed as a result. There were also questions on the delayed 
implementation of a new communications system, which was impacted by national 
issues relating to coverage from the contractor. 
 

Page 281



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

In response to queries it was confirmed that projects were reviewed more frequently 
than once a quarter to monitor progress, even though the register itself was only 
updated quarterly. 
 
Complaints 
The Panel also received a report from Professor Allan Johns on the monitoring of 
professional standards, including complaint appeals for the past year. It was stated 
Wiltshire was not out of line with national figures in seeing a high number of 
complaints, the vast majority of which received local resolutions, and it was not felt 
there were concerns at the efficiency and effectiveness of the processes. It was also 
noted that discussions were underway with the commissioner’s office on undertaking 
a review with regard to compliance in respect of the recording of complaints, and the 
Panel requested details at its next meeting should a review take place, which the 
Panel felt it should. 
 
Details were sought on the number of appeals being upheld, the obligation of officers 
and staff to report wrongdoing, recording of complaints, source of complaints and 
other matters as noted in the report. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the updates as detailed. 
 

22 Deficit/Savings Report 
 
A report was received on actions taken to balance the 2017-18 budget and early 
planning for the 2018-19 budget. Following a 1.9% rise in the police precept, 1.3% 
reduction in central funding and growth pressures on the budget, a total of £2.280m 
of savings needed to be identified. 
 
Details of the savings for 2017-18 as well as savings achieved in previous years were 
provided, with reductions coming through operations support, managing vacancies, 
pensions savings and forensics. It was noted over £2m have been saved since 2011 
through improved collaborations such as the Tri-Service and Firearm training facility, 
and that legal agreements determined how much each collaborator saved as a result. 
The largest amount of savings overall, and another £0.336m for 2017-18, was from 
General Expenditure, which included general training, travel, equipment sets and 
other associated expenditures. 
 
Details were also provided on forecast savings for 2018-19 of £2.4m, with focuses on 
further moves toward community focused PCSOs and Local Crime Investigators, as 
well as additional collaboration. The Panel were informed it was anticipated the plan 
would lead to a balanced budget. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update. 
 

Page 282



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

23 Review of Community Policing 
 
The meeting was informed a review on the Community Policing model was ongoing 
and a report would be published in July 2017, which would enable further 
adjustments if appropriate once the model could be evaluated. Key questions would 
include how well the model had been embedded, if it was effective at improving 
customer experience, community and staff wellbeing and the public perception. Staff 
had been surveyed and there had been hundreds of public responses to a 
consultation on the model. 
 
The Panel discussed the Community Policing model, noting that it was important that 
implementation had been consistent, and that areas where this had not been 
achieved would need early identification to address. It was also commented that 
more written updates from the community teams would be of assistance to local 
democratic bodies and the public. 
 
To note the update. 
 
The Chairman left the meeting at 1300. Councillor Junab Ali in the Chair. 
 

24 Restorative Justice 
 
A brief update was received on the Restorative Justice programme (insert video link), 
with referrals into the service, designed to rehabilitate offenders through engagement 
and reconciliation with victims and the community. 
 

25 Specials Recruitment 
 
An update was provided on the recruitment of Special Constables, with 68 who had 
completed the training and over 200 candidates attending the initial experience day, 
testing fitness levels and other issues. Specials would be allocated to community 
policing teams. 
 
The Panel noted that the main priority was retainment, not merely recruitment, and it 
was stated feedback from Northampton Police had been of attrition rates of 40%. 
 
In response to concerns about regular constables and Police Federation acceptance 
of Specials, it was stated there had been an increase in support, as staffing levels 
required their assistance. The Panel also highlighted the importance of signposting 
candidates to other areas they could volunteer or assist, should they not be able to 
be appointed as a Special Constable. 
 
Details were also sought on whether there was a split between the main urban and 
rural areas of Wiltshire in terms of candidates. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update 

Page 283



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
26 Member Questions 

 
Two questions had been submitted, which would be circulated with the minutes. 
 

27 Forward Work Plan 
 
The forward plan not having been included with the agenda, it would be circulated 
after the meeting. 
 

28 Future meeting dates 
 
The next meeting of the Police and Crime Panel will be on 14 September 2017. 
 
Future meeting dates were: 7 December 2017. 
 

 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 1.30 pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Emily Higson, of Democratic 

Services, direct line 01225 713990, e-mail emily.higson@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 
 

Page 284



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 26 JULY 2017 AT 
THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Richard Britton (Chairman), Cllr Tony Deane, Cllr Stewart Dobson (Vice 
Chairman), Cllr Peter Evans (Substitute), Cllr Gavin Grant (Substitute), 
Cllr Tony Jackson, Cllr Edward Kirk, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Leo Randall and 
Cllr John Walsh 
  

 
12 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr Ian Thorn (who was substituted for by Cllr 
Gavin Grant), and Cllr Mike Hewett (who was substituted for by Cllr Peter 
Evans). 
 

13 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes from the meeting held on 24 January 2017 were received and an 
update was provided on the progress made in following up priority four items in 
the January internal audit report. A full report on progress would be provided at 
the next Audit Committee meeting. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee 
held on 24 January 2017. 
 

14 Declarations of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 

15 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman announced that there would be an extraordinary meeting of the 
Audit Committee at 2pm on 26 September 2017 where the annual reports from 
the internal auditor would be presented. Arrangements had been put in place o 
ensure timely receipt of future internal audit reports.  
 
 
 
 

Page 285

Agenda Item 25



 
 
 

 
 
 

16 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public in attendance. No questions had been 
submitted. 
 

17 Appointment to the Constitution Focus Group 
 
A representative from the Audit Committee was sought to join the Council’s 
Constitution Focus Group. It was explained that the group operated as a cross-
party advisory forum to examine key elements of the constitution for 
recommendation to the Standards committee. 
 
Cllr Stewart Dobson, seconded by Cllr Leo Randall, moved that Cllr Richard 
Britton be elected as representative and it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Cllr Richard Britton as the Audit Committee’s representative 
on the Constitution Focus Group. 
 

18 KPMG - Report to those charged with governance 
 
Matthew Tiller, Chief Accountant, explained that the audit process covered both 
the council’s financial position and their arrangements for financial 
management. He introduced Darren Gilbert from KPMG, the council’s external 
auditor, who presented the report and highlighted the key information. The audit 
included an examination of the council’s annual accounts and pension fund, and 
arrangements for achieving value for money. The report gave an unqualified 
audit opinion of the Statement of Accounts.  
 
During the year 2016/17, there had been temporary vulnerability in the council’s 
IT control environment, leading to the reduced reliability of the data available 
during the period and a consequent need for a higher level of inspection than 
usual. The auditor thanked the finance team for their support with undertaking 
these additional checks and confirmed that the issue had been resolved. In 
response to a question from the chairman it was clarified that this the issue had 
been resolved through the removal of system Super-Users and that the problem 
was not expected to reoccur. It was also confirmed that no evidence had been 
found of abuses during the period of vulnerability. Members reported their 
satisfaction that this had been picked up and resolved by the audit process. 
 
An error detected during the PPE audit had been caused by an incorrect re-
evaluation of social housing stock. All adjustments were recorded in Appendix 3 
of the report. A request was made to update the diagram depicting the council’s 
governance structure in the Annual Governance Statement to reflect the 
relationship between the Audit Committee and the Pension Board.  
 
The report found that Wiltshire Council had a good understanding of future 
financial challenges and had appropriate arrangements in place to deal with 
them. In response to a question, it was confirmed that council assets which had 

Page 286



 
 
 

 
 
 

been transferred to parish and town councils would be removed from future 
accounts but that these transfers had not taken place during the period under 
consideration in the audit report. 
 
The auditor reported that the accounts had been well prepared and that the 
council had good control measures in place. While not covered by the audit 
process, the Annual Governance Statement had been considered and had not 
raised any concerns. The auditor explained that their certificate would be issued 
following the publication of the Pension Fund annual report, due to the need for 
both reports to be aligned. This would take place later in the year.  
 
The Committee was asked to accept the report on behalf of the council and to 
consider its conclusions when considering the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The Chairman thanked Darren Gilbert and KPMG for their work and 
congratulated the team involved in producing the accounts. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To receive the ISA260 report from the external auditors in its receipt of the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts 2016/17. 
 
To delegate authority to the Chairman of the Audit Committee to sign the 
letter of the management representation. 
 

19 Annual Governance Statement 
 
Ian Gibbons, Associate Director of Legal and Finance, presented the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) and explained that it formed part of the 
Statement of Accounts. The AGS covered the year 2016/17 and the information 
included had been considered by KPMG and was in line with their findings. 
 
In response to the request made earlier in the meeting, it was confirmed that the 
diagram depicting the council’s governance arrangements would be amended 
to include the statutory pension body and its relationship with other council 
committees. 
 
After discussion, members were satisfied that there was no necessity to add the 
period of vulnerability in the IT control environment as a significant governance 
issue, as it had been resolved and did not pose a future risk. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the draft AGS for publication with the Annual Statement of 
Accounts 2016-17. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 287



 
 
 

 
 
 

20 Statement of Accounts 
 
Matthew Tiller, Chief Accountant, presented the Statement of Accounts for 
2016/17 and explained that the updated format included the addition of a short 
narrative. 
 
In response to questions it was confirmed: that the final return to reserves from 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) was higher than the total underspend due 
to savings budgeted for in anticipation of future housing stock maintenance; that 
the componentisation of asset valuation applied only to property worth more 
than £2million and that none of the council’s housing stock met this criteria; and 
that efforts were being made to increase the percentage of invoices paid within 
30 days of receipt.  
 
Two amendments were made including that the Conservative majority of 37 
cited on page 79 of the agenda pack would be corrected to 24; and that the 
wording of the ‘Governance’ section of the report would be altered to reflect the 
role of the Audit Committee in ensuring effective governance. 
 
The committee was asked to delegate to the Chairman the signing of the 
Statement of Accounts. The Associate Director advised that the Chairman was 
asked to sign to confirm the account’s accuracy based on the advice of the 
finance team and external auditors, and that responsibility for ensuring the 
accuracy of the accounts lay with the corporate directors, and the council’s 
auditors. 
 
The Chairman thanked the officer for his report. 
 

21 Information Governance 
 
Robin Townsend, Associate Director for Corporate Function, Procurement and 
the Programme Office, provided a progress update on the information 
governance improvement programme. In response to a self-referred information 
governance (IG) inspection, an IG improvement board had been established to 
oversee a programme of works that had come from the inspector’s report. 93% 
of these actions had now been completed.  
 
The Public Service Network (PSN) compliance certificate had been granted and 
the SIRO report, providing a review of the work completed, would come to the 
next meeting of the Audit Committee. Headlines would include the response 
procedure to Freedom Of Information requests (FOIs); moving to a single 
contract for record storage and management; and transferring the council’s 
digital information to Sharepoint to make the process of sharing information 
internally more robust. 
 
It was discussed that data protection regulations were relevant and important 
for councillors to observe as well as council officers. Members asked that they 
received a briefing on this, with particular regard to the storing of personal data, 
and the appropriate handling of case work. 
 

Page 288



 
 
 

 
 
 

The Chair thanked the Associate Director and his team for their work and the 
progress that had been made and it was agreed that the Committee be kept up 
to date with significant current and emerging Information Governance issues 
and the measures being taken by the Authority to ensure it meets the national 
and mandatory standards. 
 

22 Forward Work Programme 
 
The forward work programme was presented and it was agreed to add the 
SIRO annual report to the next Audit Committee agenda. 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Forward Work Programme with the additions specified above 
 

23 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Members were reminded of the extraordinary meeting to be held at 2pm on 26 
September, and that the next ordinary meeting of the Audit Committee would be 
held on 9 November 2017. 
 

24 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.00 - 11.30 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line (01225) 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 289



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 290



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
13 JULY 2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 
8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr Steve Oldrieve, 
Cllr Bridget Wayman and Cllr Philip Whitehead (Substitute) 
  

 
17 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Cllr John Thomson, and Cllr Jerry Wickham who 
was substituted for at the meeting by Cllr Philip Whitehead. 
 

18 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2014 were received and it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the 
Officer Appointments Committee held on 25 June 2014. 
 

19 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

20 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman had no announcements to make. 
 

21 Public Participation 
 
No members of the public were in attendance 
 

22 Appointments following Changes to the Senior Management Structure 
 
Joanne Pitt, Head of HR and OD, presented the report which comprised the 
proposed appointment into two Corporate Director posts on the grounds of 
finding suitable alternative employment within the council’s new management 
structure. 
 

Page 291

Agenda Item 26



 
 
 

 
 
 

23 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

24 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified 
in Minute no. 25 because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information to the public. 
 

25 Appointments following Changes to the Senior Management Structure 
(continued) 
 
Appendix 4 and 5 of the report were presented and after discussion it was 
 
Resolved: 
 
That subject to consultation with the leader and cabinet members, to 
approve the appointment of Dr Carlton Brand to the following post: 
Corporate Director Communities, Transformation & Resources, and 
statutory Electoral Registration Officer and Returning Officer. 
 
That subject to consultation with the leader and cabinet members, to 
approve the appointment of Carolyn Godfrey to the following post: Interim 
Corporate Director pending recruitment to Corporate Director Children & 
Education (and statutory director of children’s services) and Corporate 
Director Adult Care & Health (and statutory director of adult social 
services). 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.00 - 9.10 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Becky Holloway of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 718063, e-mail becky.holloway@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 292



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
2 AUGUST 2017 AT PITMAN ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Steve Oldrieve, Cllr Chuck Berry (Substitute) and Cllr Bridget Wayman 
 
 
 
 
  

 
26 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Jerry Wickham who was 
substituted by Cllr Chuck Berry. 
 

27 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 July 
2017. 
 

28 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

29 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

30 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions.  
 

31 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

Page 293

Agenda Item 27



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

32 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 
Minute No. 33 because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information to the public.  

 
33 Appointment of Corporate Director - Growth, Investment and Place 

 
The Committee conducted a competitive selection process to appoint to the role 
of Corporate Director, Growth, Investment & Place prior to appointing to that 
post. 
 
After discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint Mr Alistair Cunningham to the post of Corporate Director, 
Growth, Investment & Place with effect from 14 August 2017, subject to 
consultation with the Leader and Cabinet members.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  9.30 am - 1.45 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 294



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OFFICER APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 3 AUGUST 2017 AT PITMAN ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE (Chairman), Cllr John Thomson (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Laura Mayes (Substitute), Cllr Steve Oldrieve and Cllr Jerry Wickham 
 
Also  Present: 
 
 
 
  

 
34 Apologies 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr Bridget Wayman who was 
substituted by Cllr Laura Mayes. 
 

35 Declaration of Interests 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting. 
 

36 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements made at the meeting. 
 

37 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present at the meeting or questions from 
members of the Council. 
 

38 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

39 Exclusion of the Public 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 to exclude the public from the meeting for the business specified in 

Page 295

Agenda Item 28



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Minute No. 40 because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information to the public.  

 
 
 
 

40 Appointment of Corporate Director - Children and Education 
 
The Committee conducted a competitive selection process to appoint to the role 
of Corporate Director, Children & Education prior to appointing to that post. 
 
After discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To appoint to the post of Corporate Director, Children & Education Mr 
Terence Herbert with effect from 14 August 2017, subject to consultation 
with the Leader and Cabinet members.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.30 am - 3.50 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 296



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 5 JULY 
2017 AT THE KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chairman), Cllr Tony Jackson (Vice Chairman), 
Cllr Richard Clewer, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Ricky Rogers, Cllr Hayley Spencer, 
Cllr Tony Trotman and Cllr Mike Hewitt (Substitute) 
 

 
 
  

 
24 Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr David Jenkins and Cllr Baroness 
Scott of Bybrook OBE (who was substituted by Cllr Mike Hewitt). 
 

25 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 1 March 2017. 
 

26 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.  
 

27 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chairman made the following announcement:- 
 
 
# EPIC impressions launch  The Chairman was pleased to announce that this 
new initiative had been launched that day with stands in the atriums of all three 
hubs, with members of the #EPIC team on hand to show staff how to send an 
impression. 
 

Staff would now be able to thank colleagues and highlight their hard work by 
sending them an EPIC impression via grow. 
 

Page 297

Agenda Item 29



 
 
 

 
 
 

EPIC impressions was a quick way to send thank you or well done messages to 
colleagues which would then appear on their grow profiles and could also be 
added to their annual appraisal form. 
 
Further information and guidance about leaving EPIC impressions, was 
available at EPIC impressions workspace on grow. 
 

28 Public Participation 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions. 
 

29 Appointment of Sub-Committees 
 
To appoint members to serve on the sub-committees of this Committee 
for the ensuing year as set out below:- 
 
(a) Senior Officers Employment Sub-Committee 

Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr Richard Clewer & Cllr Hayley Spencer. 
(Substitute Members: Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Bob Jones 
MBE, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Fleur de Rhe-Philipe, Cllr Baroness Scott of 
Bybrook OBE, Cllr Ian Thorn & Cllr Tony Trotman.) 
 

(b)  Appeals Sub-Committee 
Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr Richard Clewer & Cllr David Jenkins. 
(Substitute Members: Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr Jon Hubbard, Cllr Gordon King, 
Cllr Fleur de Rhe-Philipe, Cllr Baroness Scott of Bybrook OBE, Cllr Hayley 
Spencer, Cllr Ian Thorn & Cllr Tony Trotman.) 

 
(c)  Grievance Appeals Sub-Committee 

Cllr Allison Bucknell, Cllr Tony Jackson & Cllr Hayley Spencer. 
(Substitute Members: Cllr Peter Evans, Cllr David Halik, Cllr Jon Hubbard, 
Cllr David Jenkins, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Ian Thorn & 
Cllr Tony Trotman.) 

 
30 Professional Qualification Learning Loans Policy and Procedure 

 
The Committee considered a report by the Associate Director, People & Business 
which set out a new professional qualification learning loans policy and procedure 
to enable employees to access an interest-free learning loan to undertake a 
professional qualification that supported their career aspirations and development. 
 
It was explained that this proposed new policy and procedure aimed to support 
employees who would be required to self-fund the cost of a qualification and may 
not have the means to pay all of the cost of the course upfront.  With the current 
budget constraints placed on service areas, this would enable employees to invest 
in their own development with support from the Council and still enable them to 
continue to gain qualifications and develop their career. 
 
It was noted that the policy would require a short term outlay of funds from the 
Council to pay course providers but this would be recouped from an employee’s 

Page 298

https://wiltshire.sabacloud.com/Saba/Web_spf/SPCTNT62Site/pages/pagelistview/pgcnt000000000017010


 
 
 

 
 
 

salary over the duration of the course. Should the employee leave and the Council 
was unable to recoup the loan, the outstanding amount would be invoiced to the 
employee. If the outstanding amount could not be recovered, then it would be 
charged to the service area budget.  
 
After some discussion, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the proposed Professional Qualification Learning Loans Policy 
and Procedure. 

 
31 Quarterly Workforce Report: January - March 2017 

 
The Committee received a workforce report, excluding fire, police and school 
staff, for the quarter ended 31 March 2017.  
 
It was explained that this was a new format for the existing quarterly workforce 
report which aimed to raise awareness of the size and makeup of the workforce 
and of the issues that affected it.  When appropriate it would provide the 
opportunity to explore and discuss issues identified from analysis of the data 
arising from workforce transactions. 
 
It was noted that the first section of the new report would provide key 
observations from the data that had been analysed for the quarter. This would 
be followed by a themed commentary which would provide a deeper analysis 
and insight into a specific topic that was current for the Council. The indicators 
at the end of the report would give an instant view of selected trends over the 
last year to see the wider picture of what was changing in the workforce. It was 
proposed that the following key themes be chosen when the most relevant and 
applicable:- 
 

 Sickness absence 

 Employee turnover 

 Resourcing and recruitment 

 Employee costings 

 Apprentices 

 Employee engagement 

 Under 25s/demographics 

 Agency 
 
Attention was drawn to sickness absence during this quarter where it was 
noticed that 9,472 days were lost.  Over the previous four financial years on 
average there had been a 6% increase in absence days in this quarter due to 
seasonal factors. The highest absence across the council directorates 
continued to be in Waste and Environment where work was being carried out to 
establish reasons for this and if there were any preventive measures which 
could be undertaken. 
 

Page 299



 
 
 

 
 
 

Members enquired if there were any comparator statistics available from other 
local authorities from which this council could compare sickness rates especially 
in Waste and Environment.  It was explained that such benchmarking figures 
were not available as a significant number of councils outsourced these 
services. However, Members did wonder how the level of sickness affected 
service delivery but were pleased to note that the depots were being visited by 
health & safety and occupational health officers to help ascertain the causes of 
these problems.  It was also noted that workshops on mental health issues were 
being provided for managers. 
 
The Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, thanked the officers for the new and 
helpful format for the quarterly workforce reports and asked Members to let her 
have details of any further changes or additional information they would like to 
see included which she would pass on to the officers.   
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the contents of the report.      
 

32 Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee was due to be 
held on Wednesday 6 September 2017 at County Hall, Trowbridge starting 
at 2.00pm, to be preceded by a further training session on staff 
engagement and workforce development starting at 1.00pm for all 
Members and substitute Members of this Committee. 
 

33 Urgent Items 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  11.00 am  - 11.40 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton of Democratic 
Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 300



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 44 
 

 

 

DRAFT Minutes of the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority held at 10:00 hours on Tuesday 

27 June 2017 at the  

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Salisbury 

 

These are draft minutes prepared by officers to be approved by the Fire and Rescue 

Authority at their next meeting. 

 

Members present: Cllr Spencer Flower (Chairman); Cllr Garry Perkins (Vice 

Chairman); Cllr Steve Allsopp; Cllr Abdul Amin; Cllr Mark Anderson; Cllr Richard 

Biggs; Cllr Kevin Brookes; Cllr Steve Butler; Cllr Les Burden; Cllr Ernie Clark; Cllr 

Malcolm Davies; Cllr Andrew Davis; Cllr Matthew Dean; Cllr Beverley Dunlop; Cllr 

Brian Dalton; Cllr Peter Hutton; Cllr Colin Jamieson; Cllr Susan Jefferies; Cllr Bob 

Jones; Cllr Rebecca Knox; Cllr Colin Lovell; Cllr Christopher Newbury; Cllr Paul 

Oatway; Cllr Byron Quayle; Cllr Pip Ridout; Cllr Christopher Rochester; Cllr Vikki 

Slade; Cllr Ann Stribley; Cllr Robert Yuill.   

 

Officer attendance: CFO Ben Ansell, Clerk & Monitoring Officer, Mr Jonathan Mair; 

ACFO John Aldridge; ACFO Jim Mahoney; ACFO Mick Stead; Director of Finance & 

Treasurer, Mr Phil Chow; Director of Corporate Services, Mr Derek James; Head of 

Democratic Services and Corporate Assurance, Mrs Jill McCrae; Head of 

Information Management and Communications, Mrs Vikki Shearing; Media & 

Communications Manager, Ms Louise Knox; HR Consultant, Mr Steve Mason; Group 

Manager Seth Why; Area Manager Craig Baker; Democratic Services Officer, Mrs; 

Marianne Taylor 

 

17/23  Welcome 
   
17/23.1  The Monitoring Officer opened the meeting and welcomed newly 

appointed Members to their first meeting and all attendees. 
 

  

Page 301

Agenda Item 30



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 45 
 

17/24  Election of Chairman 2017/18 
   
17/24.1  The Monitoring Officer asked for nominations for the role of Chairman of 

the Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority: Cllr Flower was 
proposed and seconded, there being no other nominations and on being 
put to a vote Cllr Flower was elected unanimously.  

   
17/24.2  Members supported a vote of thanks for the outgoing Chairman, Cllr 

Rebecca Knox. 
   
17/24.3  RESOLVED: That Cllr Spencer Flower be elected as Chairman of the 

Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority for 2017/18. 
 

17/25  Election of Vice Chairman 
   
17/25.1  The Chairman asked for nominations for the role of Vice Chairman.  Cllr 

Perkins was proposed and seconded and there being no other 
nominations and on it being put to a vote Cllr Perkins was elected as Vice 
Chairman unanimously. 

   
17.25.2  RESOLVED: That Cllr Garry Perkins be elected as Vice Chairman of 

the Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority for 2017/18. 
 

17/26  Apologies 
   
17/26.1  Apologies were received from Cllr Nick Martin and the Director of People 

Services, Ms Jenny Long.  
   

 

17/27  Code of Conduct, Declarations of Interest and Notifications of Any 
Other Business 

   
17/27.1  The Chairman asked the meeting for any disclosures of pecuniary interests 

under the Localism Act. There were no disclosures.  
 

17/28  Welcome Address 
   
17/28.1  The Chairman welcomed all Members and especially those attending their 

first meeting.  He thanked Members for the confidence they had shown in 
him and hoped that he would provide chairmanship as good as his 
immediate predecessor. 

   
 

Page 302



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 46 
 

17/29  Confirmation of the Minutes of the Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and 
Rescue Authority meeting on 9 March 2017 

   
17/29.1  The Chairman asked Members to review the minutes from the meeting 

held on 9 March 2017.  
   
17/29.2  One Member asked that letters of thanks should be sent to all Members 

not returned to the Authority following the recent elections.   The Clerk & 
Monitoring Officer confirmed that letters of thanks were sent to Members 
who were not standing.  He would extend this to Members not re-elected 
or not returned to the Authority by their constituent Council.  The previous 
Chairman confirmed that Certificates of Service were given to retiring 
Members. 

   
17/29.3  The Chairman asked Members to review and approve the minutes from 

the meeting of 9 March 2017. 
   
17/29.4  RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting of the Authority held on 

9 March 2017 be confirmed without amendment, and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 

   
17/29.5  ACTION: The Clerk and Monitoring Officer will write letters of thanks 

to Members not re-elected or returned to the Authority. 
 

17/30  Minutes of the Finance, Governance & Audit (FG&A) Committee 
meeting on 22 March 2017 

   
17/30.1  The Chairman of the FG&A summarised the main business considered by 

the Committee. 
   
17/30.2  RESOLVED: The Minutes of the above meeting be received. 

 

17/31  Appointments to Committees 2017/18 
   
17/31.1  The Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Combination Scheme) 

Order 2015 sets out the proportions in which the constituent councils are 
each entitled to appoint councillors to serve as Members of DWFRA. The 
Authority must then appoint Members to serve on its committees; to a 
range of other positions and to outside bodies.  

   
17/31.2  The Clerk & Monitoring Officer took Members through the nomination 

requirements and asked Members to approve a number of appointments.  
   
17/31.3  Nominations were invited for the roles of chairmen of each of the 

following Authority’s main committees and on it being put to a vote, the 
following were elected 
Chairmen 2017/18: 

Page 303



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 47 
 

  Policy & Resources (P&R) Cllr Spencer Flower  
  Finance, Governance & Audit (FG&A) Cllr Bob Jones 
  Appeals Committee: Cllr Matthew Dean. 
  Note the Chairman of the Authority is also the Chairman of the 

Appointments, Complaints and Disputes Committee. 
   
17/31.4  Members were asked to note each political group’s choice of group 

leader: 
  Conservative group leader – Cllr Spencer Flower 
  Liberal Democratic group leader – Cllr Bob Jones 
  Labour group leader – Cllr Abdul Amin 
   
17/31.5  Member champions 2017/18: 

  Health and Safety – Cllr Bob Jones & Cllr Robert Yuill 
  Children and young people – Cllr Susan Jefferies 
  Equality, Diversity and Inclusion – Cllr Garry Perkins; Cllr Rebecca Knox 
  Prevention & Health Partnerships - Cllr Rebecca Knox; Cllr Colin 

Jamieson 
  Response – Cllr Christopher Newbury 
  Asset Management and Climate Change – Cllr Matthew Dean  
  On-Call – Cllr Colin Jamieson; Cllr Steve Butler; Cllr Andrew Davis 
  Protection – Cllr Pip Ridout 
  Governance – Cllr Christopher Newbury; Cllr Bob Jones 
   

17/31.6  Appointments to various bodies 2017/18 
  Local Government Association (LGA) – General Assembly – Cllr Spencer 

Flower; Cllr Garry Perkins; Cllr Christopher Newbury. 
  LGA Fire Commission – Cllr Spencer Flower; Cllr Rebecca Knox; Cllr 

Garry Perkins as deputy 
  Bournemouth Community Partnership Board – Cllr Malcolm Davies 
  Safer Poole – Cllr Les Burden 
  Dorset Community Safety Partnership – Cllr Kevin Brookes 
  Swindon Community Safety Partnership – Cllr Garry Perkins 
  Wiltshire Community Safety Partnership – Cllr Peter Hutton 
  South West Councils – Cllr Spencer Flower 
  South West Councils Employers’ Panel – Cllr Garry Perkins 
  Wiltshire Assembly – Cllr Spencer Flower & CFO 
   
17/31.7  Members discussed future appointments where vacancies arise and 

agreed to the proposal in line with recommendation six of the report. 
   
17/31.8  RESOLVED: That the Committee Chairmen be elected as set out in 

minutes 17/31.3 and that the appointments be made as set out in 
minutes 17/31.5 and 17/31.6. 

   
17/31.9  RESOLVED:  Members noted the agreed group leaders.  
   

Page 304



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 48 
 

17/31.10  RESOLVED: That the Chairman and Monitoring Officer, after 
consultation with group leaders, are granted delegated authority to 
appoint Members to serve on outside bodies not identified in this 
report; or where Member vacancies arise on the Committees of the 
Authority. 

   
17/31.11  RESOLVED: That the Monitoring Officer, after consultation with 

group leaders, is granted delegated authority to appoint Members to 

Committees, in line with group leader nominations. 

17/31.12  ACTION: The Monitoring Officer to advise the Democratic Services 
Officer of Committee membership and membership of outside 
authorities, once completed. 
 

17/31.13  ACTION: Democratic Services to update the various lists, the 
website and circulate to Members and Officers. 

 

17/32  Fire and Rescue Service Overview (DVD) 
   
17/32.1  Members viewed the Service’s June podcast which is also available to 

view on the website (dwfire.org.uk).  The podcast covered a range of 
activities that had taken place to engage with the community, young 
people and the British military to prevent accidents, incidents and fires. A 
number of serious fire and rescue activities were also highlighted in the 
June podcast. 

   
17/32.2  The Chairman thanked the Service for the work carried out to develop the 

podcast. 
 

 

17/33  Service Performance Review 2016-17 
   
17/33.1  The Chief Fire Officer gave a comprehensive presentation on the 

Service’s performance and key activities over the last 12 months against 
priorities and key lines of enquiry. 

   
17/33.2  Of particular note was the good work being carried out through 

engagement with a number of young people to change and save lives; 
and with vulnerable people through partnership working and safe and 
well visits which help to reduce risk in the home.   

   
17/33.3  Positive relationships with safeguarding boards, local resilience forums 

and the good measures for outcomes through internal and external audits 
were noted. 

   
17/33.4  Grenfell Tower fire, London 14/6/17 
  The Chief Fire Officer presented a short briefing on the Grenfell Fire 

Tower tragedy and reminded Members that there is an on-going public 

Page 305



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 49 
 

inquiry.  It was important therefore not to prejudge in any way the 
outcomes of that inquiry.  Members were brought up to date on the 
number of residential high-rise (more than18m) properties in our 
constituent/local areas. Since the tragic incident the Service has been in 
contact with those responsible for the buildings also identifying ‘clad’ 
buildings and ensuring adequate fire safety is in place.  The Chairman 
and CFO has written to all local authority leaders, MPs, Police and Crime 
Commissioners, Chief Executives and other key stakeholders as well as 
working nationally to ensure local strategy is aligned with national 
strategy. Any extra budget expenditure as a result of this tragedy will 
depend on the outcome of the inquiry into the fire. 

   
17/33.5  RESOLVED: The report was noted. 

 

 

17/34  Draft Community Safety Plan 2017 
   
17/34.1  The Director of Corporate Services, Derek James presented this report 

giving context to the Community Safety Plan, which set out the Service’s 
key priorities and explained the drivers that have been taken into 
account.  

   
17/34.2  An additional priority “supporting and developing our people” is included 

in the Community Safety Plan. The plan is further underpinned by a 
comprehensive service delivery plan and this and the delivery 
arrangements were outlined at the meeting. 

   
17/34.3  Members asked for the commentary associated with Making every penny 

count to be more sensitively worded. The amended draft to be circulated 
and presented to the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee on 7 
July. Members approved the plan in principle, subject to wording 
amendments. 

   
17/34.4  RESOLVED: The report and the Community Safety Plan 2017-21 

were approved in principle, subject to some final text changes to be 
approved by the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee on 7 
July. 

   
17/34.5  ACTION: Director of Corporate Services to amend wording for the 

Making every penny count priority and seek final approval on 
wording from the Finance, Governance and Audit Committee on 7 
July. 

 

17/35  Policy Amendments 
   
17/35.1  The Authority has a number of key policies to underpin its governance 

arrangements. In response to changing national frameworks and positive 
suggestions by specialist auditors, policy amendments were proposed to 

Page 306



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 50 
 

the Corporate Governance Policy and the Health and Safety Policy. These 
changes maintain the currency and effectiveness of our overall 
governance and assurance arrangements. These policy amendments will 
also support both the Statement of Assurance and Annual Governance 
Statement which will be considered by the Finance, Governance and Audit 
Committee at its meeting in September. 
 

17/35.4  RESOLVED: Members approved the amendments to the Corporate 
Governance and the Health and Safety policies. 

 

17/36  Date of Next Meeting 
   
17/36.1  The Chairman confirmed the date of the next DWFRA meeting as Friday 8 

September 2017 at Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Headquarters, Five Rivers Health and Wellbeing Centre, Hulse Rd, 
Salisbury SP1 3NR, from 10am. 

   
 

 

Part 2 

 

17/37  To consider closing the meeting to the press and public. 
   
17/37.1  Members of the press and public were asked to leave the meeting. 
   
17/37.2  Strategic Leadership Team, with the exception of the Chief Fire Officer, 

were also asked to leave the meeting. 
   
17/37.3  RESOLVED: the meeting was closed to the public and press in 

accordance with Section 100A (2 & 3) of the Local Government Act 
1972, to exclude the press and public for the business specified 
below because it is likely that if members of the public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraphs 3 & 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public 

   
 

17/38  Strengthening the senior leadership team 
   

17/38.1  The monitoring officer described how the Authority in its shadow form had 
agreed the structure of the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) and the 
description of the Chief Fire Officer’s current role.  The structure of the SLT 
was agreed subject to review within two years.  The report before 
Members represented that review.   

   
  

Page 307



CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 

CONFIDENTIAL/SENSITIVE 
Initials ____ 

Page 51 
 

17/38.2  The Chief Fire Officer outlined his first six months in the role.  He explained 
his reasoning for strengthening SLT and the improvements in 
organisational effectiveness this would bring.  HR Advisor, Steve Mason 
then gave Members an overview of the proposed methodology for 
consultation and appointment. 

   
17/38.3  RESOLVED: Members approved the four recommendations and the 

resulting budget implications. 
 

The meeting closed at 12:35hrs. 

 

Signed: ____________ 

Page 308


	Agenda
	1 Cabinet
	Minutes

	3 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	4 Children's Select Committee
	Minutes
	51 Provision of SEND Schools

	5 Environment Select Committee
	Minutes

	6 Health Select Committee
	Minutes

	7 Strategic Planning Committee
	8 Strategic Planning Committee
	9 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes
	60 Planning Appeals and Updates

	10 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	11 Northern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	12 Eastern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	13 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	14 Southern Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	15 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	16 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	17 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	18 Western Area Planning Committee
	Minutes

	19 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	20 Health and Wellbeing Board
	Minutes

	21 Local Pension Board
	Minutes

	22 Joint Strategic Economic Committee
	23 Wiltshire Pension Fund Committee
	Minutes

	24 Wiltshire Police and Crime Panel
	25 Audit Committee
	Minutes

	26 Officer Appointments Committee
	Minutes

	27 Officer Appointments Committee
	28 Officer Appointments Committee
	29 Staffing Policy Committee
	30 Dorset and Wiltshire Fire Authority

